
A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF  

SAN BERNARDINO 
 

TO BE HELD TELEPHONICALLY 
December 14, 2021 AT 3:00 P.M. 

 
Zoom Meeting – Board of Commissioners will be forwarded instructions 

Members of the public may call:  
Call In Number (669) 900-6833 

Meeting ID: 862 1098 9330 
Password: 397766 

 
 
 

 

This meeting is being held in accordance with the Brown Act as currently in effect and will take place in 

accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) et seq. (AB 361), which allows attendance by the Board 

of Commissioners, Housing Authority staff, and the public to participate and conduct the meeting by 

teleconference, videoconference, or both.   

 

Members of the public wishing to participate should call in using the teleconference information stated above.  

In addition to providing public comments using the above teleconference information, public comments, limited 

to 250 words or less, may also be submitted via web at https://hacsb.com/board-of-commissioners/ and/or via 

email at publiccomment@hacsb.com and will be read into the record, limited to 3 minutes per comment.  Some 

comments may not be read due to time limitations.   

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

 
PUBLIC SESSION 

 
 
 
1) Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
2) Adopt Resolution No. 129 authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting 

procedures by the Board of Commissioners, as authorized by Government Code Section 
54953(e) et seq., for the period of December 14, 2021 through January 13, 2022. 
(Pages 1-5) 

 
  
3) Additions or deletions to the agenda 
 
4) General Public Comment - Any member of the public may address the Board of 

Commissioners on any matter not on the agenda that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board. To make a comment on a specific agenda item, you may do so 
during the meeting online or, alternatively, please submit your comments via email or 

mailto:publiccomment@hacsb.com


online by 1:00 p.m. on the Tuesday of the Board meeting. Comments should be limited 
to 250 words or less Please submit your comments via web at https://hacsb.com/board-
of-commissioners/ and email at publiccomment@hacsb.com. Your comments will be 
placed into the record at the meeting. Efforts will be made to read the comments into the 
record, but some comments may not be read due to time limitations. 

 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
5) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Gov’t Code Section 54957.6: 
  HACSB designated negotiator/representative: Jennifer Dawson, Director of  
  Human Resources 
  Employee organization: Teamsters Local 1932 

 
 
 

DISCUSSION CALENDAR 
(Public comment is available for each item on the discussion calendar) 

 
 

 
6) Receive the Executive Director’s Report for December 14, 2021.  

(Page 6) 
 
7) Receive update from staff on Emergency Housing Vouchers implementation. 

(Page 7-8) 
  
8) Adopt Resolution No. 131 approving revisions to the Housing Authority of the County of 

San Bernardino’s Employee Personnel Handbook. 
 (Pages 9-13) 
 
9) 1 – Authorize the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino to enter into a Pre-

Development Loan Agreement and Promissory Note in an amount not to exceed 
$2,185,341 with Housing Partners I, Inc., to serve as pre-development financing for the 
Valencia Grove and Arrowhead Grove revitalization projects, said Pre-Development 
Loan and Promissory Note to be executed in substantially the form attached, such 
approval to be evidenced conclusively by the execution and delivery thereof. 

 
2 – Authorize and direct the Executive Director upon consultation with Legal Counsel, to 
execute and make modifications as necessary to the Pre-Development Loan Agreement 
and Promissory Note and the documents or exhibits attached to the Pre-Development 
Loan Agreement and Promissory Note and to execute all documents or certificates 
which are necessary or appropriate to carry out and close the transaction as 
contemplated in the Pre-Development Loan Agreement and Promissory Note.  
(Pages 14-51) 

 
10) Adopt Resolution No. 130 approving revisions to the Admissions and Continued 

Occupancy Plan governing the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s 
public housing program. 
(Pages 52-57) 

 
11)  1 – Award contract No. PC1232, effective January 1, 2022, to S & Sons Electrical 

https://hacsb.com/board-of-commissioners/
https://hacsb.com/board-of-commissioners/
mailto:publiccomment@hacsb.com


Contractors Corporation for the electrical panel upgrades to the 98 units in the Los 
Olivos Public Housing community in the city of Upland, in an amount not to exceed 
$509,500. 

 
 2 – Authorize and direct the Executive Director to execute and deliver the contract to S & 

Sons Electrical Contractors Corporation, upon consultation with Legal Counsel, to 
approve any non-substantive revisions necessary to complete the transaction.  
(Pages 58-154) 

 
12) 1 – Approve a grant of easement and right of way to Southern California Edison, to use 

and maintain above ground electrical power system on real property owned by the 
Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino, at 508 The Terrace in the City of 
Redlands. 
 
2 – Authorize and direct the Executive Director, upon consultation with Legal Counsel, to 
accept and sign ancillary documents or exhibits necessary to finalize and record the 
grants of easement with the County of San Bernardino Recorder. 
(Pages 155-179) 
 
 
 

13)  1 – Approve Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. PC973, effective January 1, 2022, with 
Kimball, Tirey, & St. John LLP for Eviction and Non-Eviction Services increasing the 
current contract by $50,000 for a total amount not to exceed $316,000 and extending the 
term through December 31, 2023. 

 
 2 – Authorize and direct the Executive Director to execute and deliver the contract 

amendment to Kimball, Tirey & St. John LLP and, upon consultation with Legal Counsel, 
to approve any non-substantive revisions necessary to complete the transaction. 

 (Pages 180-185) 
  
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 
 APPROVAL OF CONSENT ITEMS: # 14 - 17  
 
14) Approve the meeting minutes for the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority 

of the County of San Bernardino Regular Meeting held on October 12, 2021. 
(Pages 186-195)  

 
15)  Approve the meeting minutes for the Board of Commissioner of the Housing Authority of  
 the County of San Bernardino Regular Meeting held on November 9, 2021. 
 (Pages 196-202) 
 
16) Approve and file Agency-wide Financial Statements through August 2021. 

(Pages 203-206) 
 
17) Approve vacated tenant accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be written off as 

collection losses for the month of September 2021. 
(Pages 207-211)   

 
18) Individual Board member Comments 
 



19) Adjourn 

 
 
 
This agenda contains a brief description of each item of business to be considered at the 
meeting.  In accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, this meeting agenda is posted at least 72 
hours prior to the regularly scheduled meeting at the Housing Authority of the County of San 
Bernardino (HACSB) Building located at 715 East Brier Drive, San Bernardino, California, 
92408. The agenda and its supporting documents can be viewed online at 
http://www.hacsb.com.  However, the online agenda may not include all available supporting 
documents or the most current version of documents. 
 

 
If you challenge any decision regarding any of the above agenda items in court, you may be 
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised during the public testimony 
period regarding that agenda item or in written correspondence delivered to the Board of 
Commissioners at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 
 
It is the intention of the HACSB to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  If you 
require special assistance, HACSB will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable 
manner.  Please contact Cynthia Robinson at (909) 890-5388 at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting to inform us of your particular needs. 
 
HACSB ofrece asistencia idiomática gratis. Para ayuda con este documento, por favor llámenos 
al (909) 890-0644. 
 

http://www.hacsb.com/


REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
AB361 Brown Act Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Adopt Resolution No. 129 authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by 
the Board of Commissioners, as authorized by Government Code Section 54953(e) et seq., for 
the period of December 14, 2021 through January 13, 2022.  
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB communication is open, honest and consistent. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of this item will not result in a financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of 
San Bernardino (HACSB) as there is no financial impact associated with this item.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On March 4, 2020, amid rising concern surrounding the spread of COVID-19 throughout 
communities in the state, California Governor Gavin Newsom issued a series of Executive Orders 
aimed at containing the novel coronavirus including modification of certain requirements created 
by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act), the state’s local agency public meetings law. The orders 
waived several requirements, including requirements in the Brown Act requiring the physical 
presence of members of the legislative body, the clerk or other personnel of the body, or of the 
public as a condition of participation in or for the purpose of establishing a quorum for a public 
meeting, of which allowed teleconferencing of the meeting coupled with proper noticing to the 
public.  
 
On March 10, 2020, the Board of Supervisors of the County of San Bernardino declared the 
existence of a local emergency in response to the COVID-19 global pandemic of which 
Government Code section 54953(e) et seq. further requires state or local officials have imposed 
or recommended measures to promote social distancing; or the legislative body of HACSB finds 
that meeting in person would present imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees. 
 
On October 12, 2021, the Board adopted Resolution No. 125 (Item No. 10) authorizing the use of 
remote teleconference meeting procedures by the Board of Commissioners, as authorized by 
Government Code Section 54953(e) et seq., for the initial period of October 12, 2021 through 
November 11, 2021.  
 
On November 9, 2021, the Board adopted Resolution No. 127 (Item No. 7) re-authorizing the use 
of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the Board of Commissioners, as authorized by 
Government Code Section 54953(e) et seq., for the period of November 12, 2021 through 
December 12, 2021. 

1



Continue Resolution AB361 Brown Act Remote Meetings During a State of Emergency 
December 14, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
At this time, due to a variety of factors related to the circumstances of the State of Emergency, 
including the County of San Bernardino’s community transmission metric of “substantial” per the 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), the highly contagious Delta variant, the 
anticipated number of attendees, the likely inability to socially distance, and due to the unique 
characteristics of the size and capacity of its meeting location, it is recommended that the HACSB 
Board of Commissioners meetings continue to be conducted by the remote teleconference 
meeting requirements as authorized by Government Code section 54953(e), as meeting in person 
would present an imminent risk to the health or safety of meeting attendees due to the 
aforementioned reasons.  
 
Approval of this item finds that, as a consequence of the State of Emergency, the HACSB Board 
of Commissioners (Board) meetings shall be conducted by the remote teleconference meeting 
requirements as authorized by Government Code section 54953(e) et seq. and will allow for 
observation and participation by the Board Members and the public via Zoom teleconferencing 
and phone access through January 13, 2022. 
 
In order to be prepared for the transition to full in person meetings in the future, we will continue 
work on making changes to both meeting rooms to transmit the board meetings to the training 
room in HACSB’s administrative office, which would accommodate any overflow from the board 
room in order to maintain social distancing within both spaces. 
 
If approved, this authorization will remain valid for an additional 30 days and per Government 
Code section 54953(e) and will need to be revisited every 30 days thereafter.  
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 1, 2021. 

 

2



 

01272.0001/742029.3 FG  

HOUSING AUTHORITY RESOLUTION NO. 2021-129 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING 
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ACKNOWLEDGING 
THE GOVERNOR’S STATE OF EMERGENCY DECLARATION AND 
AUTHORIZING THE USE OF REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETING 
PROCEDURES BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, AS AUTHORIZED BY 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953(E) ET SEQ., FOR THE INITIAL PERIOD 
OF DECEMBER 14, 2021 THROUGH JANUARY 13, 2022 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino (Authority) is 

committed to preserving and nurturing public access, transparency, observation and participation 
in meetings of the Board of Commissioners (Board); and  
 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the Board are open and public, as required by the Ralph M. 
Brown Act, codified in Government Code sections 54950 et seq., so that any member of the public 
may attend, participate, and observe the Board and conduct its business; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, as amended by Assembly Bill 361 (2021), codified in 
Government Code sections 54953(e) et seq., allows for remote teleconferencing observation and 
participation in meetings by members of a legislative body and members of the public, without 
compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3) regarding 
teleconferencing, subject to the existence of certain conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, the initial required condition is that a state of emergency is a declaration of a 
state of emergency by the Governor pursuant to the California Emergency Services Act at 
Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme 
peril to the safety of persons and property within the state and within the boundaries of the 
Authority, caused by conditions as described in Government Code section 8558; and  
 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, pursuant to Government Code Section 8625, Governor 
Newsom declared the existence of a state of emergency for the State of California, in response 
to the outbreak of respiratory illness due to a novel coronavirus (a disease now known as COVID-
19); and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020, the Board of Supervisors of the County of San Bernardino 

declared the existence of a local emergency in response to the COVID-19 global pandemic; and; 
and  
 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953(e) et seq. further requires that state or local 
officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; or, the legislative 
body of the Authority finds that meeting in person would present imminent risk to the health and 
safety of attendees; and  

WHEREAS, California Department of Public Health (CDPH) and the federal Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) caution that the Delta variant of COVID-19, currently the 
dominant strain of COVID-19 in the country, is more transmissible than prior variants of the virus, 
may cause more severe illness, and that even fully vaccinated individuals can spread the virus to 
others resulting in rapid increases of COVID-19 cases and hospitalizations 

3



 

01272.0001/742029.3 FG  

(https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019Ͳncov/variants/deltaͲvariant.html); and 

WHEREAS, San Bernardino County currently has a Community Transmission metric of 
“substantial”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board hereby acknowledges that such emergency conditions continues 
to exist in the Authority, such that meeting in person for the meetings of the Board would present 
imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees as a result of the increased risk of the spread 
of the COVID-19 virus among those in attendance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds that due to the ongoing State of Emergency and the 
public health threat posed by COVID-19, the Board seeks to make findings, as required by 
Assembly Bill 361, that as a result of the COVID-19 State of Emergency, the highly contagious 
Delta variant, the anticipated number of attendees, the likely inability to socially distance, and due 
to the unique characteristics of the size and capacity of its meeting location, meeting in person 
would present an imminent risk to the health or safety of meeting attendees; and  

 
WHEREAS, the circumstances of the State of Emergency continue to directly impact the 

ability of the members of the legislative body and members of the public to meet safely in person 
at the meeting facilities of the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board hereby finds that, as a consequence of the State of Emergency, 

the Board shall conduct its meetings without compliance with Government Code section 
54953(b)(3), and shall instead comply with the remote teleconference meeting requirements as 
authorized by Government Code section 54953(e) et seq.; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Board affirms that it will allow for observation and participation by Board 
Members and the public via Zoom teleconferencing and phone access in an effort to protect the 
constitutional and statutory rights of all attendees.  

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING 
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO FINDS, RESOLVES, AND ORDERS 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into this 
Resolution by this reference. 

 
Section 2. The Board hereby recognizes and acknowledges the existence and conditions 

of the State of Emergency as proclaimed by the Governor. 
 
Section 3. Before the State of Emergency, the Authority met at a facility at which 

approximately 20 people would regularly attend, and periodically filling the meeting room to 
capacity and thereby limiting the ability of attendees to socially distance.    

 
Section 4.  As a result of the March 4, 2020, State of Emergency, and the highly contagious 

Delta variant, meeting in person at the meeting facilities of the Authority would present an 
imminent risk to the health or safety of attendees due to the unique characteristics of the size and 
capacity of its meeting location, the anticipated number of attendees, and the likely inability to 
socially distance.  As such, the Board hereby authorizes the use of the remove teleconferencing 

4



 

01272.0001/742029.3 FG  

procedures for meetings of the Board, as authorized by Government Code section 54953(e) et 
seq., for the period of December 14, 2021 through January 13, 2022. 
 

Section 5. The Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to take all actions 
necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open and 
public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable 
provisions of the Brown Act, for all Board meetings. 
 

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall be 
effective until the earlier of (i) January 13, 2022, or such time the Board adopts a subsequent 
resolution in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during 
which the Board may continue to teleconference without compliance with Government Code 
section 54953(b)(3), but otherwise as permitted by Government Code section 54953(e) et seq. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  
 

NOES:   
 

ABSENT:   
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
    ) ss. 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 
I, __________, Secretary of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino, hereby certify the foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the 
record of the action taken by the Board of Commissioners, by vote of the members present, as 
the same appears in the Official Minutes of said Board at its meeting of Tuesday, December 14, 
2021. 

 
 

___________________________  
                                       Secretary 

5



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Executive Director’s Report for December 14, 2021 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Receive the Executive Director’s Report for December 14, 2021. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
Operate in a Fiscally-Responsible and Business-Like Manner. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
This item will not result in a financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of San 
Bernardino (HACSB) as there is no financial impact associated with this item.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Executive Director’s report summarizes ongoing initiatives of HACSB’s strategic plan, Moving 
to Work activities, overall agency updates, as well as other initiatives federally regulated by the 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.  
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable.  
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 2, 2021. 

 

6



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Emergency Housing Vouchers Update  
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Receive update from staff on Emergency Housing Vouchers implementation.  
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB has secured the resources needed for accomplishing its mission. 
HACSB communication is open, honest and consistent. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
This item will not result in a financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of San 
Bernardino (HACSB) as this is a monthly informational update.   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On September 14, 2021 (Item No. 8) the Board of Commissioners (Board) awarded a contract to 
Brilliant Corners for housing navigation services for HACSB’s Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) 
program in the amount of $4,323,517.  The contract is funded in part by supportive services fees 
received by HACSB from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and 
the Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funds awarded by the County of San Bernardino.  In 
conjunction with the approval of the contract, the Board requested monthly updates on the 
performance of the housing navigation process. This item is the second report as requested by 
the Board and as such this report will focus on preliminary data and other implementation related 
items. As the EHV program progresses and Brilliant Corners is further utilized, more information 
on the performance of the contract will be presented.  
 
The EHV program launched on October 4, 2021, for HACSB to start receiving referrals. We are 
happy to state the program is off to a very successful start as far as referrals received. A 
breakdown of the referrals received as of December 1st is as follows:  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Coordinated 
Entry System 

(CES) 

Victim Service 
Providers (VSP) 

Total submission 
to Date 

Referred for 
Housing 

Search/Navigation 
Housed 

344 42 386 49 0 

7



Emergency Housing Voucher Housing Navigation Status Update  
December 14, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
The Victims Service Providers (VSP) whose referrals are reflected in the table above and that 
have signed the Memorandum of Understanding are listed below:  
 

▪ Desert Sanctuary  
▪ Family Assistance Program 
▪ House of Ruth  
▪ Option House  
▪ Victor Valley Domestic Violence, Inc.  

 
The data in the table represents about 7 weeks since the program was launched. As such the 
rate of referrals is very favorable and HACSB is pleased with the progress of the program thus 
far. These referrals have to be made eligible for a voucher by HACSB staff and incomplete 
applications continue to be a challenge. HACSB provided guidance and offered further training at 
the EHV partner meeting held on November 18th and will continue to do so at future partner 
meetings.  Once a family has been issued an EHV, they will be referred to Brilliant Corners to 
provide assistance in securing a housing unit. It is still early to evaluate the effectiveness of 
Brilliant Corners as they have only been working with referrals for a few weeks. Early feedback 
from Brilliant Corners suggests clients do not want to take the units Brilliant Corners has identified 
and secured primarily in San Bernardino, but instead prefer the west end of the county and the 
high desert. Management will continue to have regular meetings with Brilliant Corners to monitor 
progress.  
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 07, 2021. 

 

8



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Employee Handbook Policy Revisions 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Adopt Resolution No. 131 approving revisions to the Housing Authority of the County of San 
Bernardino’s Employee Personnel Handbook.  
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB has secured the resources needed for accomplishing its mission. 
HACSB communication is open, honest and consistent. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of the proposed revisions to the Employee Personnel Handbook does not have any 
financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s (HACSB) approved 
annual budget.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
HACSB is planning to install a comprehensive internet-based networked video surveillance 
camera system at multiple HACSB facilities as a means to enhance overall safety, security, theft 
protection, and protection of propriety information. The surveillance cameras will be installed in 
exterior areas of buildings as well as in the lobbies of our larger offices.   
 
Prior to installing such cameras, HACSB is proposing a new policy to the Employee Personnel 
Handbook, Policy 4012 Cameras in the Workplace (Policy 4012), to regulate the use of cameras 
and surveillance monitoring rules to protect the legal and privacy interests of HACSB, its 
employees, and the community.  Policy 4012 requires advance approval by the Executive Director 
for installation of cameras and puts parameters on monitoring in the workplace.  The policy also 
restricts personal camera use by employees to protect the privacy of clients, as well as stipulates 
that HACSB use of cameras must not violate federal, state laws or applicable law.  
 
In addition to the policy, there will be set guidelines for surveillance equipment operators.  The 
guidelines set forth definitions and requirements for the surveillance equipment operators which 
include proper training and use of equipment.  
 
Staff request approval of Policy 4012 Cameras in the Workplace.  
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 2, 2021.  

9



HOUSING AUTHORITY RESOLUTION NO. 2021-131 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO APPROVING REVISIONS TO THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF 

THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO EMPLOYEE POLICY HANDBOOK 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino (HACSB) Employee Policy 
Handbook sets forth the terms and conditions of employment for all full-time and part-time employees; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Employee Policy Handbook contains the employment policies and practices of 

HACSB in effect at the time of publication, and it supersedes all previous policies, rules, procedures 
and past practices of HACSB, both oral and written; and 

 
WHEREAS, HACSB desires to amend its policies and procedures for the addition of Policy 

4012 Cameras in the Workplace and its use of surveillance in the workplace. 
 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 

OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Board of Commissioners finds that all of the facts set forth in the Recitals are true 
and correct and are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2. The Board of Commissioners hereby approves the addition to the HACSB Employee 
Policy Handbook, policy section 4012 Cameras in the Workplace, of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A”. 
 
Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: COMMISSIONER: 
 
 NOES: COMMISSIONER: 
 
 ABSENT: COMMISSIONER: 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 
 I, __________, Secretary of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino, hereby certify the foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the record 
of the action taken by the Board of Commissioners, by vote of the members present, as the same 
appears in the Official Minutes of said Board at its meeting of Tuesday,      ,  20  . 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Secretary 

10



 

 

4012 Cameras in the Workplace 

The Agency regulates the use of cameras in the workplace.  The objective of this policy is to regulate the 

use of cameras in order to protect the legal and privacy interests of the Agency, its employees, and the 

community.  

Restrictions on Employee Camera Use 

Employees are prohibited from using cameras or other visual recording devices in:  

• Office areas where customer privacy may be compromised. For example, in briefings or one on 

one meetings with clients. 

• Resident units where pictures are not needed for documentation of deficiencies or other work-

related issue.  

• Areas and/or meetings where proprietary Agency information could be disclosed. 

Employees may record workplace activities that are not prohibited by law or do not compromise 

confidential information as described above.  However, employees may not record certain workplace 

activities of other individuals without the individual’s or Agency’s consent.  

Agency use of Cameras 

The Agency has the right to install surveillance cameras in Agency Facilities for specific business reasons, 

such as safety, security, theft protection, or protection of proprietary information. The conduct of 

surveillance monitoring or recording, and the use of surveillance cameras at the Agency, are limited to 

uses that do not violate federal or state constitutional protections against unreasonable search and 

seizure or other applicable laws, including federal and state laws prohibiting wiretapping and electronic 

surveillance of oral communications.  Additionally, surveillance cameras shall be used in a professional, 

ethical, and legal manner and shall avoid unnecessary intrusions upon individual civil liberties such as 

privacy, freedom of expression, and freedom of assembly. 

All surveillance cameras will only be installed with advance approval of the Executive Director.  

Surveillance cameras are primarily used to record access at building entrances and exterior of the 

buildings. Only authorized personnel, as determined by the Executive Director, will be involved in, or have 

access to, surveillance monitoring. 

This policy does not apply to the use of legally permissible wiretapping or electronic surveillance by law 

enforcement agencies during criminal investigations.  

Surveillance Monitoring 

The Agency may find it necessary to monitor work areas with surveillance cameras when there is a specific 

job- or business-related reason to do so. The Agency will do so only after first ensuring that such action is 

in compliance with state and federal laws.   

Employees should not have any expectation of privacy in work-related areas, such as desks, work stations, 

storage areas, or Agency-owned vehicles.   

Employee privacy in non-work areas (such as restrooms, locker rooms, residential areas) will be respected 

to the greatest extent possible, and no surveillance monitoring or recording shall be done in such areas.  

11



 

 

Legal advice will be sought in advance in such rare cases where non-work-area privacy must be 

compromised. 

Any records created as a result of surveillance monitoring or recording shall not to be used or disclosed, 

except in certain circumstances. Exceptions include a legitimate purpose related to employment or 

business functions, a requirement that the footage is presented to law enforcement, or a need for the 

footage in administrative, civil, or criminal proceedings. Furthermore, surveillance monitoring or 

recording shall not be done at meetings with employee representatives or union representatives, unless 

prior written consent is provided.   

Information and images obtained through surveillance systems shall not be accessed, used, or disclosed 

except as outlined in this policy.  All recordings shall be kept in accordance with the Agency’s records 

retention policy.  

Any employee violating this policy may be disciplined up to and including termination.  

For specific guidelines and information on surveillance camera operation and use, employees may review 

the full guidelines on file with Human Resources.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12



Surveillance Camera Guidelines 

Upon approval by the Executive Director, surveillance cameras may be installed in designated locations.  

Only approved Surveillance Equipment Operators will be granted access to any recordings collected. 

Surveillance Equipment Operators 

All surveillance equipment operators will: 

1. Be trained on technical, legal, and ethical use. 

2. Provide written acknowledgement that they have read and understand the Surveillance Camera 

Policy and Guidelines. 

3. Perform their duties in accordance with the Surveillance Camera Policy and Guidelines in place. 

4. Access surveillance images only to the extent permitted by the Surveillance Camera Policy. 

Surveillance equipment operators are prohibited from: 

1. Monitoring individuals based on characteristics of race, gender, ethnicity, national origin, sexual 

orientation, or disability. 

2. Monitoring intimate behavior. 

3. Viewing the non-work areas or interior of residential areas through windows, doors, or other 

means. 

4. Duplicating images or permitting access to others to surveillance images except as specifically 

permitted by policy. 

5. Using the surveillance equipment for viewing, recording, accessing or otherwise using a 

surveillance system or surveillance images in any manner that is inconsistent with policy and/or 

outside the scope of the usage approved by the Executive Director. 

Surveillance equipment operators may use Agency authorized equipment for viewing of surveillance 

images and may not authorize unauthorized persons to access.   

Any deliberate shut down of surveillance camera or systems must receive consent from the Executive 

Director.  

Definitions 

Surveillance Camera or Surveillance System: any system, camera, technology device, communications 

device, or process, used alone or in conjunction with a network for the purpose of the gathering, 

monitoring, and recording or storing an image or images of Housing Authority facilities and/or people in 

such facilities.  Images captured by surveillance cameras may be real-time or preserved for review at a 

later date.  Such devices may include, but are not limited to, closed circuit television, web cameras, real-

time surveillance systems, and computerized visual monitoring.  

Housing Authority Facilities: Surveillance cameras or systems may be installed on all Housing Authority 

owned, leased, or controlled property, both internal and external, and includes all buildings, offices, 

common areas, grounds, and all other spaces.  

Surveillance Monitoring or Recording: the process of using surveillance cameras to observe, review, or 

store visual images for the purpose of deterring crime and protecting public safety and security.  

13



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Pre-Development Loan to Housing Partners I, Inc. supporting revitalization efforts at Valencia 
Grove and Arrowhead Grove Projects 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
1. Authorize the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino to enter into a Pre-

Development Loan Agreement and Promissory Note in an amount not to exceed $2,185,341 
with Housing Partners I, Inc., to serve as pre-development financing for the Valencia Grove 
and Arrowhead Grove revitalization projects, said Pre-Development Loan and Promissory 
Note to be executed in substantially the form attached, such approval to be evidenced 
conclusively by the execution and delivery thereof. 

2. Authorize and direct the Executive Director upon consultation with Legal Counsel, to execute 
and make modifications as necessary to the Pre-Development Loan Agreement and 
Promissory Note and the documents or exhibits attached to the Pre-Development Loan 
Agreement and Promissory Note and to execute all documents or certificates which are 
necessary or appropriate to carry out and close the transaction as contemplated in the Pre-
Development Loan Agreement and Promissory Note. 

 (Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB has secured the resources needed for accomplishing its mission. 
HACSB is a leading developer and provider of affordable housing in the County of San 
Bernardino. 
HACSB clients, programs, and properties are embraced by all communities. 
HACSB clients live in safe and desirable homes and communities where they can develop 
and prosper. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino (HACSB) has Capital Fund grant funding 
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) specifically identified and 
set aside for the purpose of “Redevelopment Activities” under the annual Moving to Work (MTW) 
Plan. Specifically, HACSB has been allocated Demolition, Disposition Transitional Funding 
(DDTF) for units removed from the public housing inventory through a HUD approved disposition 
action. In 2018, HACSB was allocated $1,105,833, followed by a 2019 allocation of $1,079,508. 
Staff is proposing the combined DDTF amounts for 2018/19 of $2,185,341 be loaned to our non-
profit affiliate, Housing Partners I, Inc. (HPI), for the purpose described herein. Because the 
source of these funds are HUD grants, staff proposes that payments be deferred, and the loan 
forgiven once fully expended for program eligible uses pursuant to the HUD Capital Fund 
program. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

14



Pre-Development Loan to Housing Partners I, Inc. supporting Valencia Grove and Arrowhead 
Grove revitalization Projects 
December 14, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

On August 10, 2021, the Board of Commissioners adopted Resolution No.117 authorizing various 

actions to advance the development process for the Arrowhead Grove (former Waterman 

Gardens Public Housing) revitalization project in San Bernardino. Similarly, On September 14, 

2021, the Board adopted Resolution No. 121 authorizing various actions to advance the 

development process for the Valencia Grove (former Orange-Lugonia Public Housing) 

revitalization project in Redlands. In both instances (HACSB is partnering with HPI for the 

development of the new project(s). HPI serves as the managing member, with HACSB as 

member, of an LLC created specifically to participate in ownership of each of the project(s). This 

is the format utilized in each of the previous construction phases (now completed) at both sites. 

In order to continue the development momentum, staff is proposing that HACSB provide HPI with 

pre-development funding pursuant to the proposed Predevelopment Loan Agreement provided 

with this memo to cover various costs necessary to advance the project(s) for construction 

readiness for the next phase at each site. Such costs are primarily related to architecture and 

engineering but may also include fees required by the planning and/or building departments of 

the local jurisdiction(s) as related to project entitlement and permitting. In any event, staff will 

require HPI to provide full written documentation of costs incurred prior to release of any loan 

proceeds, which are anticipated to be requested on a “progress draw” basis. HACSB will review 

each draw request to confirm eligible use of funds as well as review and approve actual work 

completed to date in order to ensure HUD program compliance. The loan of the funds, which shall 

be forgivable upon successful completion of the project, is evidenced by the proposed Promissory 

Note provided with this memo. 

PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 2, 2021. 

 

15



 

 

PREDEVELOPMENT  

LOAN AGREEMENT  

 

 

by and between 

 

 

 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 

 

and 

 

HOUSING PARTNERS I, INCORPORATED 

 

 

 

 

Dated _____________, 2021 

 

 

16



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

 

01272.0010/754122.1  i 
 

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS 1 

Section 1.1Definitions..........................................................................................................1 
Section 1.2Exhibits. .............................................................................................................3 

ARTICLE 2 LOAN PROVISIONS 3 

Section 2.1Loan. ..................................................................................................................3 
Section 2.2Interest................................................................................................................3 
Section 2.3Use of Funds. .....................................................................................................4 
Section 2.4Security.  The Authority Loan is unsecured. .....................................................4 
Section 2.5Disbursement Requirements. .............................................................................4 

Section 2.6Repayment of the Authority Loan. ....................................................................4 
Section 2.7Nonrecourse. ......................................................................................................5 

ARTICLE 3 PREDEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 5 

Section 3.1Predevelopment Activities. ................................................................................5 

Section 3.2Financing Proposal.............................................................................................5 
Section 3.3Conceptual Site Plan. ..........................................................................................6 
Section 3.4 Design Development Documents. .......................................................................7 

Section 3.5Land Use Approvals. .........................................................................................7 
Section 3.6Financing Plan. ..................................................................................................8 

Section 3.7Construction Plans. ............................................................................................9 

ARTICLE 4 ONGOING OBLIGATIONS 10 

Section 4.1Periodic Reports. ..............................................................................................10 
Section 4.2Inspections. ......................................................................................................10 

Section 4.3Borrower Supervision of Predevelopment Activities. .....................................10 
Section 4.4Information. .....................................................................................................11 
Section 4.5Records. ...........................................................................................................11 

Section 4.6Audits. ..............................................................................................................11 
Section 4.7Compliance with Laws. ...................................................................................11 
Section 4.8Notices. ............................................................................................................13 

Section 4.9Non-Discrimination. ........................................................................................15 
Section 4.10 Insurance Requirements. ..............................................................................15 
Section 4.11 Transfer. .......................................................................................................16 

ARTICLE 5 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BORROWER 16 

Section 5.1Representations and Warranties. ......................................................................16 
Section 5.2Survival of Representations and Warranties. ...................................................18 

ARTICLE 6 TERMINATION, DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 18 

Section 6.1No Fault Termination. ......................................................................................18 

17



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

(continued) 

Page 

 

01272.0010/754122.1  ii 
 

Section 6.2Events of Default. ............................................................................................18 
Section 6.3Default Remedies. ............................................................................................19 
Section 6.4Right of Contest. ..............................................................................................19 

Section 6.5Remedies Cumulative. .....................................................................................19 

ARTICLE 7 GENERAL PROVISIONS 20 

Section 7.1Relationship of Parties. ....................................................................................20 
Section 7.2No Claims. .......................................................................................................20 
Section 7.3Amendments. ...................................................................................................20 

Section 7.4Entire Understanding of the Parties. ................................................................20 
Section 7.5Indemnification. ...............................................................................................20 

Section 7.6Non-Liability of Authority and Authority Officials, Employees and 

Agents. .............................................................................................................21 
Section 7.7No Third Party Beneficiaries. ..........................................................................21 
Section 7.8Action by the Authority. ..................................................................................21 
Section 7.9Waivers. ...........................................................................................................21 

Section 7.10 Notices, Demands and Communications. ....................................................21 
Section 7.11 Applicable Law and Venue. .........................................................................22 

Section 7.12 Parties Bound. ..............................................................................................22 
Section 7.13 Attorneys' Fees. ............................................................................................22 
Section 7.14 Severability. .................................................................................................22 

Section 7.15 Force Majeure. .............................................................................................23 
Section 7.16 Conflict of Interest. ......................................................................................23 

Section 7.17 Title of Parts and Sections. ..........................................................................23 
Section 7.18 Multiple Originals; Counterpart. ..................................................................23 

Exhibit A Schedule of Performance 

Exhibit B Predevelopment Budget 

18



 

01272.0010/754122.1  1 

 

PREDEVELOPMENT LOAN AGREEMENT 

 

 

This Predevelopment Loan Agreement (the "Agreement") is dated as of __________, 2021 

(the "Effective Date"), and is by and between the HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY 

OF SAN BERNARDINO, a public body, corporate and politic (the "Authority") and HOUSING 

PARTNERS I, INCORPORATED, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 

("Borrower"). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. Borrower is performing certain predevelopment activities associated with the 

development of real property located in the cities of Redlands and San Bernardino, San Bernardino 

County, California (collectively, the "Property"). 

 

B. Borrower has requested financial assistance from the Authority to fund the 

predevelopment activities associated with the development of the Property into affordable housing 

developments and community serving facilities (collectively, the “Development”). 

 

C. The Authority desires to provide Borrower financial assistance in the amount of 

_____________ Dollars ($___________)(the "Authority Loan") to assist Borrower fund certain 

predevelopment activities. 

 

D. The Authority and Borrower desire to enter into this Agreement to establish certain 

terms and conditions relating to the Authority Loan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals hereof and the mutual promises and 

covenants set forth in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows:  

 

 

ARTICLE 1  
DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS   

Section 1.1 Definitions. 

The following capitalized terms have the meanings set forth in this Section 1.1 wherever 

used in this Agreement, unless otherwise provided: 

(a) "Agreement" means this Predevelopment Loan Agreement. 

(b) "Authority" means the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino, 

a public body, corporate and politic. 

(c) "Authority Executive Director" means the Authority Executive Director of 

the Authority or the Authority Executive Director's designee. 

(d) "Authority Loan" has the meaning set forth in Recital C. 

19



 

01272.0010/754122.1  2 

 

(e) "Borrower" means Housing Partners I, Incorporated, a California nonprofit 

public benefit corporation, and its permitted successors and assigns. 

(f) "Conceptual Site Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3 below. 

(g) "Conditions Satisfaction Date" has the meaning in Section 3.1(c) below. 

(h) "Construction Closing" means the date upon which all financing necessary 

for the construction of any new Improvements on the Property closes, and any deeds of trust related 

to such financing, are recorded against the Property. 

(i) "Construction Plans" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.7 below. 

(j) "Default" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.1 below. 

(k) "Default Rate" means the lesser of the maximum rate permitted by law and 

ten percent (10%) per annum. 

(l) "Design Development Documents" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.4 

below. 

(m) "Development" means the Property and the Improvements. 

(n) "Development Budget" has the meaning given in Section 3.6(a) below. 

(o) "Effective Date" means the date first written above. 

(p) "Financing Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.6 below. 

(q) "Financing Proposal" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2 below. 

(r) "Force Majeure" means the occurrence of one or more of those events 

described in Section 7.15, permitting an extension of time for performance of obligations under 

this Agreement. 

(s) "Improvements" means any improvements to be constructed on the 

Property. 

(t) "Land Use Approvals" means the permits and approvals necessary for the 

development of any Improvements on the Property, including, but not limited to, overall design 

and architectural review, general plan amendment and rezoning to the extent applicable, and 

environmental review. 

(u) "Loan Documents" means this Agreement, the Note, and any other 

document or agreement evidencing the Authority Loan. 

(v) "Note" means the Promissory Note of even date herewith that evidences 

Borrower's obligation to repay the Authority Loan.   

20



 

01272.0010/754122.1  3 

 

(w) "Parties" means the Authority and Borrower. 

(x) "Predevelopment Activities" means the activities to be performed by 

Borrower during the Term, as further described in Article 3 below. 

(y) "Predevelopment Budget" means the budget, including sources and uses of 

funds to fund the Predevelopment Activities showing the percentage to be funded by the Authority 

Loan, as approved by the Authority, and attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. 

(z) "Predevelopment Costs" means the cost of performing the Predevelopment 

Activities as shown in the Predevelopment Budget. 

(aa) "Property" has the meaning set forth in Recital A. 

(bb) "Schedule of Performance" means the schedule for performance of the 

Predevelopment Activities that is attached as Exhibit A, as such may be modified pursuant to 

Section 3.1 below. 

(cc) "Term" means the term of this Agreement and the Authority Loan which 

commences as of the Effective Date, and expires, unless sooner terminated in accordance with this 

Agreement, on December 31, 2023. 

(dd) "Termination Notice" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.1(b). 

(ee) "Transfer" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.12 below. 

Section 1.2 Exhibits. 

The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement and incorporated into this 

Agreement by this reference: 

EXHIBIT A: Schedule of Performance 

EXHIBIT B: Predevelopment Budget 

 

ARTICLE 2  
LOAN PROVISIONS 

Section 2.1 Loan. 

Subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Sections 2.5, the Authority shall lend 

to Borrower the Authority Loan for the purposes set forth in Section 2.3 of this Agreement.   

Section 2.2 Interest.  

(a) Subject to the provisions of Section 2.2(b) below, the outstanding principal 

balance of the Authority Loan will not bear interest. 

21



 

01272.0010/754122.1  4 

 

(b) In the event of a Default, interest on the Authority Loan will begin to accrue, 

as of the date of Default and continue until such time as the Authority Loan funds are repaid in 

full or the Default is cured, at the Default Rate. 

Section 2.3 Use of Funds. 

(a) Borrower shall use the Authority Loan to fund certain Predevelopment 

Costs as set forth in the Predevelopment Budget.  Borrower shall not use the Authority Loan for 

any other purpose without the prior written consent of the Authority.   

(b) Borrower shall submit any revisions to Predevelopment Budget to the 

Authority for approval within ten (10) days of the date Borrower receives information indicating 

that actual Predevelopment Costs in any line item in the Predevelopment Budget vary or will vary 

by more than 10% from the costs for such line item shown on the Predevelopment Budget (as long 

as the total Predevelopment Budget amount does not increase), which approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. 

Section 2.4 Security.  The Authority Loan is unsecured. 

Section 2.5 Disbursement Requirements. 

The Authority is not obligated to make any disbursement of the Authority Loan for 

Predevelopment Costs, or take any other action under the Loan Documents unless all of the 

following conditions precedent are satisfied: 

(a) There exists no Default nor any act, failure, omission or condition that 

would constitute an event of Default under this Agreement; 

(b) Borrower has executed and delivered to the Authority the Note and this 

Agreement;  

(c) Borrower demonstrates sufficient progress to the Authority that the 

Borrower is accomplishing the Predevelopment Activities in accordance with the Schedule of 

Performance;  

(d) Borrower has updated the Predevelopment Budget as necessary to ensure 

that the Predevelopment Budget is a current and accurate reflection of the Predevelopment Costs; 

and 

(e) The Authority has received a written draw request from Borrower setting 

forth the proposed uses of funds consistent with the Predevelopment Budget, the amount of funds 

needed, and, where applicable, a copy of the bill or invoice covering a cost incurred or to be 

incurred. 

Section 2.6 Repayment of the Authority Loan. 

The Authority Loan shall be repaid as follows: 

22



 

01272.0010/754122.1  5 

 

(a) Due in Full.  Subject to Section 2.6(c) (regarding forgiveness), Borrower 

shall pay all outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Authority Loan, in full, on the earliest 

to occur of (i) a Default, and (ii) the expiration of the Term. 

(b) Right to Prepay.  Borrower may prepay the Authority Loan at any time 

without premium or penalty. 

(c) Forgiveness.   The Authority shall forgive the Authority Loan upon the 

Construction Closing or upon termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 6.1, provided that 

no Default has occurred and is continuing under this Agreement.  Upon forgiveness at Construction 

Closing, this Agreement will terminate. 

 

Section 2.7 Nonrecourse.  The Authority Loan is nonrecourse to Borrower. 

 

ARTICLE 3  
PREDEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 

Section 3.1 Predevelopment Activities. 

(a) This Article 3 sets forth various Predevelopment Activities that Borrower 

shall seek diligently and in good faith to perform and achieve during the Term.   Satisfaction of 

these conditions depends on performance by Borrower.  Only the Authority can waive satisfaction of 

the conditions in this Article 3.   

(b) The tasks described below shall be completed no later than the dates set 

forth in the Schedule of Performance attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A, subject to Force 

Majeure.  The Schedule of Performance may be modified by the Borrower and by the Authority 

Executive Director on behalf of the Authority without formal amendment of this Agreement.   

(c) Without affecting the validity of the deadline for any particular condition 

set forth in this Article 3, all conditions set forth in this Article 3 shall be satisfied by not later than 

the date set forth in the Schedule of Performance (the "Conditions Satisfaction Date").  

Notwithstanding the above, no later than sixty (60) days prior to the Conditions Satisfaction Date, 

the Authority and Borrower shall meet and confer in good faith for a period of thirty (30) days to 

discuss the status of the Development and the Predevelopment Activities.  If at the end of the thirty 

(30) day period the parties mutually determine additional time is necessary to complete the 

Predevelopment Activities and proceed to commencement of construction of the Development, 

the Authority agrees to amend the Schedule of Performance to allow for such additional time 

mutually agreed to by the parties.  If at the end of the thirty (30) day period the parties do not agree 

on an extension of the Conditions Satisfaction Date, the Authority may terminate this Agreement 

pursuant to Section 6.1 or Section 6.2 below as applicable, and exercise its remedies pursuant to 

this Agreement. 

Section 3.2 Financing Proposal. 

(a) Within the time set forth in the Schedule of Performance, Borrower shall 

submit to the Authority a Financing Proposal for the Development.  The "Financing Proposal" 

23



 

01272.0010/754122.1  6 

 

shall be Borrower's then current estimate of costs for financing the Development including all costs 

associated with construction and operation of the Development.  The Authority shall review the 

Financing Proposal and shall either approve or disapprove the Financing Proposal in writing within 

thirty (30) days of receipt.  If disapproved, the Authority shall give specific reasons in writing for 

disapproval and the required revisions to the previously submitted Financing Proposal.  If the 

Financing Proposal is disapproved, Borrower shall resubmit a revised Financing Proposal within 

thirty (30) days of notification of disapproval.   The Authority shall either approve or disapprove 

the submitted revised Financing Proposal within thirty (30) days of the date such revised Financing 

Proposal is received by the Authority. 

(b) If the Borrower fails to submit a Financing Proposal within the time 

required by the Schedule of Performance, or if the Authority disapproves of the revised Financing 

Proposal, the Authority may terminate the Agreement pursuant to Section 6.1 or Section 6.2 below 

as applicable, and exercise its remedies pursuant to this Agreement. Only upon Authority approval 

of a Financing Proposal will the condition of this Section 3.2 be deemed met. 

(c) Borrower shall submit any material revision to an approved Financing 

Proposal to the Authority for its review and approval, which approval will not be unreasonably 

withheld.  Any proposed revised Financing Proposal will be considered and approved or 

disapproved by the Authority in the same manner and according to the same timeframe set forth 

above for the initial Financing Proposal.  Until a revised Financing Proposal is approved by the 

Authority, the previously approved Financing Proposal shall govern the financing of the 

Development. 

Section 3.3 Conceptual Site Plan.  

(a) Borrower shall cause preparation by a licensed architect of a Conceptual 

Site Plan and proposed elevations for the Development. Within the time set forth in the Schedule 

of Performance, Borrower shall submit such Conceptual Site Plan to the Authority for review.   

The "Conceptual Site Plan" and elevations shall describe the basic physical characteristics of the 

Development including the residential uses and commercial uses, if any, that will serve as a basis 

for Borrower's application for the Land Use Approvals and for the preparation of the Design 

Development Documents. 

(b) The Authority shall review the Conceptual Site Plan and either approve or 

disapprove the Conceptual Site Plan within thirty (30) days after receipt.  Any disapproval shall 

state in writing the specific reasons for the disapproval and specify in reasonable detail all of the 

changes the Authority requests be made in order to obtain approval.  Borrower shall thereafter 

submit a revised Conceptual Site Plan within thirty (30) days of notification of disapproval 

incorporating the Authority’s comments.   The Authority shall either approve or disapprove the 

submitted revised Conceptual Site Plan within thirty (30) days of the date such revised Conceptual 

Site Plan is received by the Authority, and shall approve the revised Conceptual Site Plan if the 

requested changes have been made.   

(c) If the Borrower fails to submit a Conceptual Site Plan within the time 

required by the Schedule of Performance, or if the Authority disapproves of the revised Conceptual 

Site Plan, the Authority may terminate the Agreement pursuant to Section 6.1 or Section 6.2 below 

24



 

01272.0010/754122.1  7 

 

as applicable, and exercise its remedies pursuant to this Agreement. Only upon Authority approval 

of a Conceptual Site Plan will the condition of this Section 3.3 be deemed met. 

(d) Participation by Borrower in the Authority's "preliminary review 

procedure" will satisfy the requirements of this Section 3.3. Approval by the Authority of the 

documents provided by Borrower to the Authority as part of the preliminary review procedure will 

be considered approval of the Conceptual Site Plan for the purposes of this Section 3.3. 

Section 3.4 Design Development Documents. 

(a) Borrower shall cause preparation by a licensed architect of Design 

Development Documents (the "Design Development Documents") for the Development. Within 

the time set forth in the Schedule of Performance, Borrower shall submit such Design 

Development Documents to the Authority for review.  During the preparation of the Design 

Development Documents, Borrower shall communicate and consult informally, and shall hold 

regular progress meetings with Authority, as frequently as necessary to insure that the formal 

submittal of any plan or related document to the Authority can receive prompt consideration. The 

Design Development Documents shall be consistent with and in substantial conformity with the 

Conceptual Site Plan. The Design Development Documents shall consist of drawings, outline 

specifications and other documents to fix and describe the size, quality, and character of the 

Development as to architectural, and basic structural and mechanical systems.  Specifically, the 

Design Development Documents shall indicate estimated structural dimensions, and delineation 

of site features and elevations, materials and colors, landscaping and other features.  Key details 

shall be provided in preliminary form. 

(b) The Authority shall review the Design Development Documents and either 

approve or disapprove the Design Development Documents within thirty (30) days after receipt.  

Any disapproval shall state in writing the specific reasons for the disapproval and specify in 

reasonable detail all of the changes the Authority requests be made in order to obtain approval.  

Borrower shall thereafter submit revised Design Development Documents within thirty (30) days 

of notification of disapproval.   The Authority shall either approve or disapprove the submitted 

revised Design Development Documents within thirty (30) days of the date such revised Design 

Development Documents are received by the Authority, and shall approve the revised Design 

Development Documents if the requested changes have been made.   

(c) If the Borrower fails to submit Design Development Documents within the 

time required by the Schedule of Performance, or if the Authority disapproves of the revised 

Design Development Documents, the Authority may terminate the Agreement pursuant to Section 

6.1 or Section 6.2 below as applicable, and exercise its remedies pursuant to this Agreement. Only 

upon Authority approval of Design Development Documents will the condition of this Section 3.4 

be deemed met. 

Section 3.5 Land Use Approvals. 

(a) Within the time set forth in the Schedule of Performance, Borrower shall 

apply for all necessary Land Use Approvals (other than the building permit).  Upon delivery of 

evidence of application for such permits and approvals to the Authority, this condition shall be 

25



 

01272.0010/754122.1  8 

 

considered met.   If Borrower fails to deliver such evidence within the time set forth in the Schedule 

of Performance, the Authority may terminate the Agreement pursuant to Section 6.1 or Section 6.2 

below as applicable, and exercise its remedies pursuant to this Agreement. 

(b) Within the time set forth in the Schedule of Performance, Borrower shall 

exercise diligent good faith efforts to obtain all necessary Land Use Approvals (other than the 

building permit).  Upon delivery of evidence of receipt of such permits and approvals to the 

Authority, this condition shall be considered met.   If Borrower fails to deliver such evidence 

within the time set forth in the Schedule of Performance, the Authority may terminate the 

Agreement pursuant to Section 6.1 or Section 6.2 below as applicable, and exercise its remedies 

pursuant to this Agreement. 

Section 3.6 Financing Plan. 

(a) Within the time set forth in the Schedule of Performance Borrower shall 

submit for Authority approval a Financing Plan containing the following: 

(1) An updated development budget (the "Development Budget") 

showing a "sources and uses" breakdown of the costs of constructing the Development based on a 

Financing Proposal previously approved by the Authority.  The Development Budget may initially 

be based upon the Design Development Documents.  After preparation of the Construction Plans, 

Borrower shall update the Development Budget to reflect any material cost changes resulting from 

the preparation of the Construction Plans.   

(2) An operating proforma for the first thirty (30) years of operation of 

the Development including funding for the provision of supportive services.  If the Development 

does not have a rental subsidy committed, the Financing Plan shall demonstrate that the target 

population can pay the proposed rents.  

(3) Copies of all required funding commitments for construction and 

permanent financing for the Development, including a preliminary tax credit reservation and an 

executed commitment letter from an equity investor acceptable to the Authority. 

(4) Any other information that is reasonably necessary to the Authority 

in determining that Borrower has the financial capability to pay all costs of constructing and 

operating the Development. 

(b) As part of the Financing Plan submission, Borrower shall provide a 

preliminary service plan that identifies the types of services that may be provided to the elderly 

population depending on funding. 

(c) The Authority shall review the Financing Plan to determine if, in the 

Authority's reasonable judgment, Borrower has the financial capability (taking into account all 

committed funds), to pay all realistically established costs of constructing and operating the 

Development.  The Authority shall review the Financing Plan and shall either approve or 

disapprove the Financing Plan in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt.  If disapproved, the 

Authority shall give specific reasons in writing for disapproval and the required revisions to the 

previously submitted Financing Plan.  If the Financing Plan is disapproved, Borrower shall 

26



 

01272.0010/754122.1  9 

 

resubmit, a revised Financing Plan within thirty (30) days of notification of disapproval 

incorporating the Authority’s comments.   The Authority shall either approve or disapprove the 

submitted revised Financing Plan within thirty (30) days of the date such revised Financing Plan 

is received by the Authority. 

(d) If the Borrower fails to submit a Financing Plan within the time required by 

the Schedule of Performance, or if the Authority disapproves of the Financing Plan, the Authority 

may terminate the Agreement pursuant to Section 6.1 or Section 6.2 below as applicable, and 

exercise its remedies pursuant to this Agreement.  Only upon Authority approval of a Financing 

Plan shall the condition of this Section 3.6 be deemed met. 

(e) Borrower shall submit any material revision to an approved Financing Plan 

to the Authority for its review and approval.  Borrower shall use good faith efforts to obtain 

replacement funding for any funding shown in the Financing Plan and for which through no fault 

of Borrower the commitment of which has not been received, or has been rescinded or reduced.  

Any proposed revised Financing Plan shall be considered and approved or disapproved by the 

Authority in the same manner and according to the same timeframe set forth above for the initial 

Financing Plan.  Until a revised Financing Plan is approved by the Authority, the previously 

approved Financing Plan shall govern the financing of the Development. 

Section 3.7 Construction Plans.   

(a) Within the time set forth the Schedule of Performance, Borrower shall 

submit to the Authority for review, a copy of the Construction Plans for the Development.  As 

used in this Agreement, "Construction Plans" means all construction documentation upon which 

Borrower and Borrower's contractor shall rely in constructing all the Improvements on the Property 

(including the dwelling units, landscaping, parking, and common areas) and shall include, but not 

necessarily be limited to, final architectural drawings, landscaping plans and specifications, final 

elevations, building plans and specifications (also known as "working drawings"). 

(b) The Authority shall review the Construction Plans and either approve or 

disapprove the Construction Plans within thirty (30) days after receipt.  Any disapproval shall state 

in writing the specific reasons for the disapproval and specify in reasonable detail all of the changes 

the Authority requests be made in order to obtain approval.  Borrower shall thereafter submit 

revised Construction Plans within thirty (30) days of notification of disapproval incorporating the 

Authority’s comments.   The Authority shall either approve or disapprove the submitted revised 

Construction Plans within thirty (30) days of the date such revised Construction Plans are received 

by the Authority, and shall approve the revised Construction Plans if the requested changes have 

been made.   

(c) If the Borrower fails to submit Construction Plans within the time required 

by the Schedule of Performance, or if the Authority disapproves of the revised Construction Plans 

the Authority may terminate the Agreement pursuant to Section 6.1 or Section 6.2 below as 

applicable, and exercise its remedies pursuant to this Agreement.  Only upon Authority approval 

of Construction Plans shall the condition of this Section 3.7 be deemed met. 

27



 

01272.0010/754122.1  10 

 

ARTICLE 4  
ONGOING OBLIGATIONS 

Section 4.1 Periodic Reports. 

During the performance of the Predevelopment Activities set forth in Article 3, Borrower 

shall on or about the first day of each month of the Term, and from time to time as reasonably 

requested by the Authority, provide the Authority with written progress reports regarding the status 

of the performance of the Predevelopment Activities. 

Section 4.2 Inspections.   

(a) Borrower shall permit and facilitate, and shall require its contractors to 

permit and facilitate, observation and inspection at the Development by the Authority and by 

public authorities during reasonable business hours for the purposes of determining compliance 

with this Agreement.  Such inspections do not relieve Borrower, or its contractors, from any 

applicable requirement to obtain Authority inspections in connection with the Development and 

the construction of any Improvements. 

(b) The Authority has no duty to visit the Development, or to observe or inspect 

it in connection with this Agreement and the Authority Loan.  Any site visit or observation by the 

Authority is solely for the purpose of protecting the Authority's rights and interests under this 

Agreement and in making the Authority Loan.  No site visit or observation by the Authority shall 

impose any liability on the Authority or result in a waiver of any default of Borrower.  Neither 

Borrower nor any other party is entitled to rely on any site visit or observation by the Authority.  The 

Authority owes no duty of care to protect Borrower or any other party against, or to inform Borrower 

or any other party of, any adverse condition affecting the Development in connection with this 

Agreement and the Authority Loan. 

Section 4.3 Borrower Supervision of Predevelopment Activities. 

(a) Borrower is solely responsible for all aspects of Borrower's conduct in 

connection with the performance of the Predevelopment Activities, including (but not limited to) 

the quality and suitability of the plans and specifications, the supervision of work, and the 

qualifications, financial condition, and performance of all architects, engineers, contractors, 

subcontractors, suppliers, and consultants.  Any review or inspection undertaken by the Authority 

with reference to the Predevelopment Activities is solely for the purpose of determining whether 

Borrower is properly discharging its obligations to the Authority, and should not be relied upon 

by Borrower or by any third parties as a warranty or representation by the Authority as to the 

quality of such work. 

(b) Borrower shall not construct any Improvements on the Property without the 

prior written consent of the Authority.  Borrower shall pay or otherwise discharge promptly all 

claims and liens for labor done and materials and services furnished in connection with the 

Property or the construction of any Improvements. 

28



 

01272.0010/754122.1  11 

 

Section 4.4 Information.  

Borrower shall provide any information reasonably requested by the Authority in 

connection with the ownership of the Development and performance of the Predevelopment 

Activities. 

Section 4.5 Records. 

(a) Borrower shall maintain complete, accurate, and current records pertaining 

to the Development for a period of five (5) years after the creation of such records and shall permit 

any duly authorized representative of the Authority to inspect and copy such records.  Such records 

shall include all invoices, receipts, and other documents related to expenditures from the Authority 

Loan funds.  Records must be kept accurate and current. 

(b) The Authority shall notify Borrower of any records it deems insufficient.  

Borrower shall have twenty-one (21) days after the receipt of such a notice to correct any 

deficiency in the records specified by the Authority in such notice, or if a period longer than 

twenty-one (21) days is reasonably necessary to correct the deficiency, then Borrower shall begin 

to correct the deficiency within twenty-one (21) days and correct the deficiency as soon as 

reasonably possible. 

Section 4.6 Audits. 

Borrower shall make available to the Authority for examination, at reasonable intervals 

and during normal business hours, all books, accounts, reports, files, and other papers or property 

with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement, and shall permit the Authority to audit, 

examine, and make excerpts or transcripts from such records.  The Authority may make audits of 

any conditions relating to this Agreement at the Authority's expense, provided however, if it is 

determined as a result of an audit that there has been a deficiency in a loan repayment to the 

Authority then such deficiency will become immediately due and payable, with interest at the 

Default Rate from the date the deficient amount should have been paid, and Borrower shall pay all 

of the Authority's costs and expenses connected with the audit and review of Borrower's accounts 

and records that lead to discovery of the deficiency. 

Section 4.7 Compliance with Laws.   

(a) Borrower shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and 

regulations of federal, state, county or municipal governments or agencies now in force or that 

may be enacted hereafter, including (without limitation and where applicable) the prevailing wage 

provisions of Sections 1770 et seq., of the California Labor Code and implementing rules and 

regulations as set forth below, in performing the Predevelopment Activities. 

(b) State Prevailing Wages.  To the extent required by applicable law: 

(1) Borrower shall pay and shall cause any consultants or contractors to 

pay prevailing wages in the performance of the Predevelopment Activities as those wages are 

determined pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1720 et seq., to employ apprentices as required by 

Labor Code Sections 1777.5 et seq., and the implementing regulations of the Department of 

29



 

01272.0010/754122.1  12 

 

Industrial Relations (the "DIR").  

(2) Borrower shall and shall cause the consultants and contractors to 

comply with the other applicable provisions of Labor Code Sections 1720 et seq., 1777.5 et seq., 

and implementing regulations of the DIR.   

(3) Borrower shall and shall cause the consultants and contractors to 

keep and retain such records as are necessary to determine if such prevailing wages have been paid 

as required pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1720 et seq., and apprentices have been employed 

are required by Labor Code Sections 1777.5 et seq.   

(4) During the performance of the Predevelopment Activities Borrower 

shall or shall cause the contractor to post at the Property the applicable prevailing rates of per diem 

wages.  Copies of the currently applicable current per diem prevailing wages are available from 

DIR.   

(5) Borrower shall cause its contractors and subcontractors performing 

the Predevelopment Activities to be registered as set forth in Labor Code Section 1725.5.    

(6) Borrower shall cause its respective contractors and subcontractors, 

in all calls for bids, bidding materials and the construction contract documents for performing the 

Predevelopment Activities to specify that: 

(A)  No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid 

proposal nor be awarded a contract for the performance of the Predevelopment Activities unless 

registered with the DIR pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5. 

 

(B)  The performance of the Predevelopment Activities is 

subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the DIR. 

 

(7) Borrower shall provide the Authority all information required by 

Labor Code Section 1773.3 as set forth in the DIR's online form PWC-100 within 2 days of the 

award of any contract (https://www.dir.ca.gov/pwc100ext/). 

(8) Borrower shall cause its contractors to post job site notices, as 

prescribed by regulation by the DIR. 

(9) Borrower shall cause its contractors to furnish payroll records 

required by Labor Code Section 1776 directly to the Labor Commissioner, at least monthly in the 

electronic format prescribed by the Labor Commissioner. 

(c) Borrower shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend (with counsel 

reasonably acceptable to the Authority) the Authority against any claim for damages, 

compensation, fines, penalties or other amounts arising out of the failure or alleged failure of any 

person or entity (including Borrower, its contractor and subcontractors) to pay prevailing wages 

as determined pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1720 et seq., to employ apprentices pursuant to 

Labor Code Sections 1777.5 et seq., to meet the conditions of Section 1771.4, and implementing 

regulations of the DIR, or to comply with the other applicable provisions of Labor Code Sections 

30



 

01272.0010/754122.1  13 

 

1720 et seq., 1777.5 et seq., and 1771.4, and the implementing regulations of the DIR, in 

connection with the Predevelopment Activities or any other work undertaken or in connection with 

the Property.  The requirements in this Subsection shall survive the repayment of the Authority 

Loan. 

Section 4.8 Notices.  

Borrower shall notify the Authority promptly in writing of any and all of the following: 

(a) Any litigation known to Borrower affecting Borrower, or the Property or 

Borrower's ability to timely perform its obligations under this Agreement, and of any claims or 

disputes that involve a material risk of litigation; 

(b) Any written or oral communication Borrower receives from any 

governmental, judicial, or legal authority giving notice of any claim or assertion that the Property 

or Improvements fail in any respect to comply with any applicable governmental law; 

(c) Any material adverse change in the physical condition of the Property 

(including any damage suffered as a result of fire, earthquakes, or floods); 

(d) Any material adverse change in Borrower's financial condition, any material 

adverse change in Borrower's operations, or any change in the management of Borrower; 

(e) Any Default or event which, with the giving of notice or the passage of time 

or both, would constitute a Default; and 

(f) Any other circumstance, event, or occurrence that results in a material 

adverse change in Borrower's ability to timely perform any of its obligations under any of the Loan 

Documents. 

Section 4.9 Federal Requirements.   

(a) During the Term Borrower shall comply with the following requirements 

(the "Federal Requirements").  In the event of any conflict between this Agreement and the Federal 

Requirements, the Federal Requirements will govern. 

 

(b) The Federal Requirements include (but are not limited to) the following: 

 

(1) Civil Rights, Housing and Community Development, and Age 

Discrimination Acts.  The Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.) and implementing regulations 

at 24 CFR Part 100; Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended; Title VIII of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1968 as amended; Section 104(b) and Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and 

Community Development Act of 1974 as amended; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 USC 

6101, et seq.); Executive Order 11063 as amended by Executive Order 12259 and implementing 

regulations at 24 CFR Part 107; Executive Order 11246 as amended by Executive Orders 11375, 

12086, 11478, 12107; Executive Order 11625 as amended by Executive Order 12007; Executive 

Order 12432; Executive Order 12138 as amended by Executive Order 12608. 

31



 

01272.0010/754122.1  14 

 

(2) Discrimination against the Disabled.  The requirements of Section 

504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794), and federal regulations issued pursuant 

thereto, which prohibit discrimination against the disabled in any federally assisted program, the 

requirements of the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 4151-4157) and the applicable 

requirements of Title II and/or Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 

12131 et seq.), and federal regulations issued pursuant thereto. 

(3) Relocation.  The requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance 

and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. 4601, et seq.), and implementing 

regulations at 49 CFR Part 24; and California Government Code Section 7260 et seq. and 

implementing regulations at 25 California Code of Regulations Sections 6000 et seq.   

(4) Labor Standards.  The prevailing wage requirements of the Davis-

Bacon Act and implementing rules and regulations (40 U.S.C. 3141-3148); the Copeland "Anti-

Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 276(c)) which requires that workers be paid at least once a week without 

any deductions or rebates except permissible deductions; the Contract Work Hours and Safety 

Standards Act – CWHSSA (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which requires that workers receive "overtime" 

compensation at a rate of 1-1/2 times their regular hourly wage after they have worked forty (40) 

hours in one (1) week; and Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations, Subtitle A, Parts 1, 3 and 5 are 

the regulations and procedures issued by the Secretary of Labor for the administration and 

enforcement of the Davis-Bacon Act, as amended. 

(5) Training Opportunities.  The requirements of Section 3 of the 

Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u ("Section 3"). 

(A) Pursuant to Section 3, to the greatest extent feasible, and 

consistent with existing Federal, state, and local laws and regulations Borrower shall ensure: 

 

a. that employment and training opportunities arising in 

connection with the Development are provided to Section 3 workers within the metropolitan area 

(or nonmetropolitan county) in which the Development is located.  Where feasible, priority for 

opportunities and training described above should be given to: (i) Section 3 workers residing 

within the service area or the neighborhood of the project, and (ii) participants in YouthBuild 

programs; and 

b. that contracts for work awarded in connection with 

the Development are provided to business concerns that provide economic opportunities to Section 

3 workers residing within the metropolitan area (or nonmetropolitan county) in which the 

Development is located.  Where feasible, priority for opportunities and training described above 

should be given to: (i) Section 3 business concerns that provide economic opportunities to Section 

3 workers residing within the service area or the neighborhood of the Development, and (ii) 

participants in YouthBuild programs. 

 

(B) Borrower will be considered to have complied with the 

Section 3 requirements, in the absence of evidence to the contrary, if it certifies that it has followed 

the prioritization of effort set forth in subsection (1) above, and meets or exceeds the applicable 

Section 3 benchmark as described in 24 C.F.R. 75.23(b). 

32



 

01272.0010/754122.1  15 

 

(C) Borrower shall maintain records of its Section 3 activities 

and cause such records to be accurate and current and in a form that allows the County to comply 

with the reporting requirements of 24 C.F.R. 75.25. 

 

(D) Borrower shall require all contractors and subcontractors 

performing work on the Development to comply with the Section 3 requirements. 

 

(6) Debarred, Suspended or Ineligible Contractors.  The prohibition on 

the use of debarred, suspended, or ineligible contractors set forth in 24 CFR Part 24. 

(7) Lead-Based Paint.  The requirement of the Lead-Based Paint 

Poisoning Prevention Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 4821 et seq.), the Residential Lead-Based Paint 

Hazard Reduction Act (42 U.S.C. 4851 et seq.), and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 35. 

(8) Drug Free Workplace.  The requirements of the Drug Free 

Workplace Act of 1988 (P.L. 100-690) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 24. 

(9) Anti-Lobbying; Disclosure Requirements.  The disclosure 

requirements and prohibitions of 31 U.S.C. 1352 and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 87. 

Section 4.10 Non-Discrimination. 

Borrower shall not discriminate or segregate in the ownership of the Property and 

performance of the Predevelopment Activities on the basis of race, color, creed, ancestry, national 

origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, age, disability, medical condition, familial 

status, source of income or any other arbitrary basis.  Borrower shall otherwise comply with all 

applicable local, state, and federal laws concerning discrimination. 

Section 4.11 Insurance Requirements.  

Borrower shall maintain the following insurance coverage throughout the Term: 

(a) Workers' Compensation insurance to the extent required by law, including 

Employer's Liability coverage, with limits not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each 

accident. 

(b) Commercial General Liability insurance with limits not less than Two 

Million Dollars ($2,000,000) each occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury and 

Property Damage, including coverage for Contractual Liability, Personal Injury, Broadform 

Property Damage, and Products and Completed Operations. 

(c) Comprehensive Automobile Liability insurance with limits not less than 

One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence combined single limit for Bodily Injury and 

Property Damage, including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, as applicable; 

provided, however, that if Borrower does not own or lease vehicles for purposes of this Agreement, 

then no automobile insurance shall be required. 

33



 

01272.0010/754122.1  16 

 

(d) The required insurance shall be provided under an occurrence form, and 

Borrower shall maintain such coverage continuously throughout the Term.  Should any of the 

required insurance be provided under a form of coverage that includes an annual aggregate limit 

or provides that claims investigation or legal defense costs be included in such annual aggregate 

limit, such annual aggregate limit shall be three times the occurrence limits specified above. 

(e) Commercial General Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability 

insurance policies shall be endorsed to name as an additional insured the Authority, and its officers, 

agents, employees and members of the Authority Board of Commissioners. 

(f) All policies and bonds shall contain (i) the agreement of the insurer to give 

the Authority at least thirty (30) days' notice prior to cancellation (including, without limitation, 

for non-payment of premium) or any material change in said policies; (ii) an agreement that such 

policies are primary and non-contributing with any insurance that may be carried by the Authority; 

(iii) a provision that no act or omission of Borrower shall affect or limit the obligation of the 

insurance carrier to pay the amount of any loss sustained; and (iv) a waiver by the insurer of all 

rights of subrogation against the Authority and its authorized parties in connection with any loss 

or damage thereby insured against. 

(g) If in connection with the use of the Authority Loan funds, death, serious 

personal injury, or substantial property damage occurs, Borrower shall immediately notify the 

Authority.  Borrower shall promptly submit to the Authority a written report, in such form as may 

be required by the Authority, of all accidents which occur in connection with this Agreement.  This 

report shall include the following information: (1) name and address of the injured or deceased 

person(s); (2) name and address of Borrower's consultant or contractor, if any; (3) name and 

address of Borrower's liability insurance carrier; and (4) a detailed description of the accident. 

(h) Any design professionals working on the Property in direct contract with 

the Borrower shall maintain errors and omission coverage in a minimum amount of One Million 

Dollars ($1,000,000).  

Section 4.12 Transfer. 

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, "Transfer" means any sale, assignment, or 

transfer, whether voluntary or involuntary, of any rights and/or duties under the Loan Documents.   

(b) No Transfer shall be permitted without the prior written consent of the 

Authority, which the Authority may withhold in its sole discretion. The Authority Loan shall 

automatically accelerate and be due in full upon any unauthorized Transfer.  

 

ARTICLE 5  
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BORROWER   

Section 5.1 Representations and Warranties. 

As a material inducement to the Authority's entry into this Agreement, Borrower hereby 

represents and warrants to the Authority as follows and acknowledges, understands, and agrees 

34



 

01272.0010/754122.1  17 

 

that the representations and warranties set forth in this Article 5 are deemed to be continuing during 

all times when any portion of the Authority Loan remains outstanding: 

(a) Organization.  Borrower is duly organized, validly existing, and in good 

standing under the laws of the State of California and have the power and authority to own its 

property and carry on its business as now being conducted.   

(b) Authority of Borrower.  Borrower has full power and authority to execute 

and deliver this Agreement and to make and accept the borrowings contemplated hereunder, to 

execute and deliver the Loan Documents and all other documents or instruments executed and 

delivered, or to be executed and delivered, pursuant to this Agreement, and to perform and observe 

the terms and provisions of all of the above. 

(c) Authority of Persons Executing Documents.  This Agreement and the Loan 

Documents and all other documents or instruments executed and delivered, or to be executed and 

delivered, pursuant to this Agreement have been executed and delivered by persons who are duly 

authorized to execute and deliver the same for and on behalf of Borrower and all actions required 

under Borrower's organizational documents and applicable governing law for the authorization, 

execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Loan Documents and all other 

documents or instruments executed and delivered, or to be executed and delivered, pursuant to this 

Agreement, have been duly taken. 

(d) Valid Binding Agreements.  This Agreement and the Loan Documents and 

all other documents or instruments which have been executed and delivered pursuant to or in 

connection with this Agreement constitute or, if not yet executed or delivered, will when so 

executed and delivered constitute, legal, valid and binding obligations of enforceable against it in 

accordance with their respective terms. 

(e) No Breach of Law or Agreement.  Neither the execution nor delivery of this 

Agreement and the Loan Documents or of any other documents or instruments executed and 

delivered, or to be executed or delivered, pursuant to this Agreement, nor the performance of any 

provision, condition, covenant or other term hereof or thereof, will conflict with or result in a 

breach of any statute, rule or regulation, or any judgment, decree or order of any court, board, 

commission or agency whatsoever binding on Borrower or any provision of the organizational 

documents of Borrower, or will conflict with or constitute a breach of or a default under any 

agreement to which Borrower is a party, or will result in the creation or imposition of any lien 

upon any assets or property of Borrower, other than liens established pursuant hereto. 

(f) Pending Proceedings.  Borrower is not in default under any law or 

regulation or under any order of any court, board, commission or agency whatsoever, and there 

are no claims, actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of Borrower, threatened 

against or affecting Borrower or the Property, at law or in equity, before or by any court, board, 

commission or agency whatsoever which might, if determined adversely to Borrower, materially 

affect Borrower's ability to repay the Authority Loan or impair the security to be given to the 

Authority pursuant hereto. 

35



 

01272.0010/754122.1  18 

 

Section 5.2 Survival of Representations and Warranties.   

All representations and warranties of Borrower shall survive the making of the Authority 

Loan and have been or will be relied on by the Authority notwithstanding any investigation made 

by the Authority. 

 

 

ARTICLE 6  
TERMINATION, DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 6.1 No Fault Termination. 

(a) Any of the following shall constitute a basis for the Authority or Borrower 

to terminate this Agreement without the fault of Borrower: 

(1) Failure of Borrower despite diligent good faith efforts as determined 

by the Authority, to satisfy any of the requirements and conditions of Article 3. 

(2) Borrower and the Authority determine in their reasonable discretion 

that predevelopment or construction costs relating to the physical condition of the Property or to 

the proposed Improvements are so expensive or burdensome as to make the Development 

financially infeasible. 

(3) Borrower does not receive commitments of all projected financial 

assistance as shown in the Financing Plan or reasonable substitutions therefor, necessary to 

develop the Development, despite Borrower's good faith efforts to obtain such funding or 

replacement funding. 

(b) No Fault Termination Remedy. Upon the happening of any of the above-

described events, the Authority and Borrower shall meet and confer in good faith for a period not 

to exceed thirty (30) days to determine if a feasible and mutually acceptable alternate arrangement 

can be made to continue with the Development.  If no agreement is reached by the parties within 

such thirty (30)-day period, at the election of the Authority, the Authority may provide written 

notice to Borrower of its intent to terminate this Agreement and exercise its remedies as set forth 

in Subsection (2) or (3) below (the "Termination Notice").  Upon the effective date of the 

Termination Notice, this Agreement will terminate and neither party shall have any rights against 

or liability to the other except for the provisions that state they survive termination of this 

Agreement. 

Section 6.2 Events of Default. 

The following shall constitute a "Default" by Borrower under this Agreement:  failure of  

Borrower to duly perform, comply with, or observe any of the conditions, terms, or covenants of 

any of the Loan Documents, and such failure having continued uncured for thirty (30) days after 

receipt of written notice thereof from the Authority to Borrower or, if the breach cannot be cured 

within thirty (30) days, Borrower shall not be in breach so long as Borrower is diligently 

undertaking to cure such breach and such breach is cured within sixty (60) days.   

36



 

01272.0010/754122.1  19 

 

Section 6.3 Default Remedies. 

The occurrence of any Default hereunder and the expiration of all applicable notice and 

cure periods will, either at the option of the Authority or automatically where so specified, relieve 

the Authority of any obligation to make or continue the Authority Loan and shall give the Authority 

the right to proceed with any and all remedies set forth in this Agreement and the Loan Documents, 

including, but not limited to, the following: 

(a) Acceleration of Note.  The Authority shall have the right to cause all 

indebtedness of Borrower to the Authority under this Agreement and the Note, together with any 

accrued interest thereon, to become immediately due and payable.  Borrower waives all right to 

presentment, demand, protest or notice of protest or dishonor.  The Authority may proceed to 

enforce payment of the indebtedness and to exercise any or all rights afforded to the Authority as 

a creditor and secured party under the law including the Uniform Commercial Code.  Borrower 

shall be liable to pay the Authority on demand all reasonable expenses, costs and fees (including, 

without limitation, reasonable attorney's fees and expenses) paid or incurred by the Authority in 

connection with the collection of the Authority Loan and the preservation, maintenance, 

protection, sale, or other disposition of the security given for the Authority Loan. 

(b) Specific Performance.  The Authority shall have the right to mandamus or 

other suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity to require Borrower to perform its obligations 

and covenants under the Loan Documents or to enjoin acts or things which may be unlawful or in 

violation of the provisions of the Loan Documents. 

(c) Right to Cure at Borrower's Expense.  The Authority shall have the right 

(but not the obligation) to cure any monetary default by Borrower under a loan other than the 

Authority Loan.  Borrower agrees to reimburse the Authority for any funds advanced by the 

Authority to cure a monetary default by Borrower upon demand therefore, together with interest 

thereon from the date of expenditure until the date of reimbursement at the Default Rate. 

Section 6.4 Right of Contest. 

Borrower shall have the right to contest in good faith any claim, demand, levy, or 

assessment the assertion of which would constitute a Default hereunder.  Any such contest shall 

be prosecuted diligently and in a manner unprejudicial to the Authority or the rights of the 

Authority hereunder. 

Section 6.5 Remedies Cumulative. 

No right, power, or remedy given to the Authority by the terms of this Agreement or the 

Loan Documents is intended to be exclusive of any other right, power, or remedy; and each and 

every such right, power, or remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every other right, power, 

or remedy given to the Authority by the terms of any such instrument, or by any statute or 

otherwise against Borrower and any other person or entity.  Neither the failure nor any delay on 

the part of the Authority to exercise any such rights and remedies shall operate as a waiver thereof, 

nor shall any single or partial exercise by the Authority of any such right or remedy preclude any 

other or further exercise of such right or remedy, or any other right or remedy. 

37



 

01272.0010/754122.1  20 

 

ARTICLE 7  
GENERAL PROVISIONS   

Section 7.1 Relationship of Parties. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be interpreted or understood by any of the 

parties, or by any third persons, as creating the relationship of employer and employee, principal 

and agent, limited or general partnership, or joint venture between the Authority and Borrower or 

Borrower's agents, employees or contractors, and Borrower shall at all times be deemed an 

independent contractor and shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which it or its agents, or 

both, perform the services required of it by the terms of this Agreement.  Borrower has and retains 

the right to exercise full control of employment, direction, compensation, and discharge of all 

persons assisting in the performance of services under the Agreement.  In regards to the 

development of the Development, Borrower shall be solely responsible for all matters relating to 

payment of its employees, including compliance with Social Security, withholding and all other 

laws and regulations governing such matters, and shall include requirements in each contract that 

contractors shall be solely responsible for similar matters relating to their employees.  Borrower 

agrees to be solely responsible for its own acts and those of its agents and employees. 

Section 7.2 No Claims.   

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create or justify any claim against the Authority, 

by any person Borrower may have employed or with whom Borrower may have contracted relative 

to the purchase of materials, supplies or equipment, or the furnishing or the performance of any 

work or services with respect to the development of the Development, and Borrower shall include 

similar requirements in any contracts entered into for the development of the Development. 

Section 7.3 Amendments.   

No alteration or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 

writing by the Parties. 

Section 7.4 Entire Understanding of the Parties. 

This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the Parties with 

respect to the Authority Loan. 

Section 7.5 Indemnification.   

Except as directly caused by the Authority's proven gross negligence or willful misconduct, 

Borrower agrees to indemnify, protect, hold harmless and defend (by counsel reasonably 

satisfactory to the Authority) the Authority, and its board members, officers and employees, from 

all suits, actions, claims, causes of action, costs, demands, judgments and liens directly or 

indirectly arising out of or resulting from:  (i) the making of the Authority Loan; (ii) Borrower's 

performance or non-performance of its obligations under this Agreement; or (iii) any act or 

omission of Borrower, any of its agents, employees, licensees, tenants, contractors, subcontractors 

or material suppliers, or other person or entity with respect to the Authority Loan.  The provisions 

38



 

01272.0010/754122.1  21 

 

of this Section 7.5 shall survive the repayment and cancellation of the Note, and termination of 

this Agreement. 

Section 7.6 Non-Liability of Authority and Authority Officials, Employees and 

Agents.   

No member, official, employee or agent of the Authority shall be personally liable to 

Borrower, or any successor in interest, in the event of any Default or breach by the Authority, or 

for any amount which may become due to Borrower or its successor or on any obligation under 

the terms of this Agreement. No officer, director, employee or agent of Borrower shall be 

personally liable to the Authority, or any successor in interest, in the event of any Default or breach 

by Borrower, or for any amount which may become due to the Authority or its successor or on any 

obligation under the terms of this Agreement. 

Section 7.7 No Third Party Beneficiaries. 

There shall be no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement. 

Section 7.8 Action by the Authority. 

Except as may be otherwise specifically provided herein, whenever any approval, notice, 

direction, consent, request, extension of time, waiver of condition, termination, or other action by 

the Authority is required or permitted under this Agreement, such action may be given, made, or 

taken by the Authority Executive Director without further approval by the Authority Board of 

Commissioners, and any such action shall be in writing. 

Any consents or approvals required under this Agreement shall not be unreasonably 

withheld or made, except where it is specifically provided that a sole discretion standard applies.  

The Authority Executive Director is also hereby authorized to approve, on behalf of the Authority, 

requests by Borrower for reasonable extensions of time deadlines set forth in this Agreement.  The 

Authority shall not unreasonably delay in reviewing and approving or disapproving any proposal 

by Borrower made in connection with this Agreement. 

Section 7.9 Waivers. 

Any waiver by the Authority of any obligation or condition in this Agreement must be in 

writing.  No waiver will be implied from any delay or failure by the Authority to take action on 

any breach or default of Borrower or to pursue any remedy allowed under this Agreement or 

applicable law.  Any extension of time granted to Borrower to perform any obligation under this 

Agreement shall not operate as a waiver or release from any of its obligations under this 

Agreement.  Consent by the Authority to any act or omission by Borrower shall not be construed 

to be a consent to any other or subsequent act or omission or to waive the requirement for the 

Authority's written consent to future waivers. 

Section 7.10 Notices, Demands and Communications. 

Formal notices, demands, and communications between the Authority and Borrower shall 

be sufficiently given if and shall not be deemed given unless dispatched by registered or certified 

39



 

01272.0010/754122.1  22 

 

mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or delivered by express delivery service, return 

receipt requested, or delivered personally, to the principal office of the Authority and Borrower as 

follows: 

Authority: 

 

Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino 

715 East Brier Drive 

San Bernardino, California 92408 

Attention: Executive Director 

 

Borrower:  

 

Housing Partners I, Incorporated 

715 East Brier Drive 

San Bernardino, California 92408 

Attention: Executive Director 

Such written notices, demands and communications may be sent in the same manner to such other 

addresses as the affected party may from time to time designate by mail as provided in this Section.  

Receipt shall be deemed to have occurred on the date shown on a written receipt for delivery or 

refusal of delivery. 

Section 7.11 Applicable Law and Venue. 

This Agreement shall be governed by California law.  Any action brought claiming a 

breach of this Agreement or interpreting this Agreement shall be brought and venued in San 

Bernardino County, California. 

Section 7.12 Parties Bound.   

Except as otherwise limited herein, the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon 

and inure to the benefit of the parties and their heirs, executors, administrators, legal 

representatives, successors and assigns. This Agreement is intended to run with the land and shall 

bind Borrower and its successors and assigns in the Property and the Development for the entire 

Term, and the benefit hereof shall inure to the benefit of the Authority and its successors and 

assigns. 

Section 7.13 Attorneys' Fees.   

If any lawsuit is commenced to enforce any of the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing 

party will have the right to recover its reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of suit from the other 

party. 

Section 7.14 Severability. 

If any term of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 

void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions shall continue in full force and effect unless 

40



 

01272.0010/754122.1  23 

 

the rights and obligations of the parties have been materially altered or abridged by such 

invalidation, voiding or unenforceability. 

Section 7.15 Force Majeure. 

In addition to specific provisions of this Agreement, performance by either Party shall not 

be deemed to be in default where delays or defaults are due to to war, insurrection, strikes, lock-

outs or other labor disturbances, one or more acts of a public enemy, war, riot, sabotage, blockade, 

embargo, floods, earthquakes, fires, quarantine restrictions, freight embargoes, lack of 

transportation, court order, delays or failures of performance by any governmental authority or 

utility company (other than the acts or failure to act of the Authority under this Agreement and so 

long as the party seeking the extension has adequately complied with the applicable processing 

requirements of such governmental authority or utility company), delays resulting from changes 

in any applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances or codes, or a change in the interpretation 

thereof by any governing body with jurisdiction, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control 

or without the fault of the party claiming an extension of time to perform or an inability of 

performance.  An extension of time for any cause will be deemed granted if notice by the Party 

claiming such extension is sent to the other within ten (10) days from the commencement of the 

cause and the Party granting the extension agrees to the extension in writing.  In no event shall the 

Authority be required to agree to cumulative delays in excess of one hundred eighty (180) days. 

Section 7.16 Conflict of Interest. 

(a) Except for approved eligible administrative or personnel costs, no person 

described in Section 7.16(b) below who exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities 

with respect to the activities funded pursuant to this Agreement or who is in a position to participate 

in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain 

a personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract, 

subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or 

those with whom they have family or business ties, during, or at any time after, such person's 

tenure.  Borrower shall exercise due diligence to ensure that the prohibition in this Section 7.16(a) 

is followed. 

(b) The conflict of interest provisions of Section 7.16(a) above apply to any 

person who is an employee, agent, consultant, or officer of the Authority or any immediate family 

member of such person, or any elected or appointed official of the Authority, or any person related 

within the third (3rd) degree of such person. 

Section 7.17 Title of Parts and Sections. 

Any titles of the sections or subsections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of 

reference only and shall be disregarded in interpreting any part of the Agreement's provisions. 

Section 7.18 Multiple Originals; Counterpart.   

This Agreement may be executed in multiple originals, each of which is deemed to be an 

original, and may be signed in counterparts. 

41



 

01272.0010/754122.1  24 

 

 

 

[signatures on following page]

42



 

Loan Agreement 
Signature Page 

1373\18\3169118.1 

25 

WHEREFORE, this Agreement has been entered into by the undersigned as of the date 

first above written. 

 

 BORROWER 

 

HOUSING PARTNERS I, INCORPORATED,  

a California nonprofit public benefit corporation 

 

 

By:__________________________________ 

Name:________________________________ 

Its:___________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AUTHORITY 

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

SAN BERNARDINO, a public body, corporate and 

politic 

 

 

By:______________________________________ 

Maria Razo, Executive Director 

 

 

 

43



 

1373\18\3169118.1 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE 

 

 

This Schedule of Performance summarizes the schedule for various activities under the 

Predevelopment Loan Agreement (the "Agreement") to which this exhibit is attached.  The 

description of items in this Schedule of Performance is meant to be descriptive only, and shall not 

be deemed to modify in any way the provisions of the Agreement to which such items relate.  

Section references herein to the Agreement are intended merely as an aid in relating this Schedule 

of Performance to other provisions of the Agreement and shall not be deemed to have any 

substantive effect. 

Whenever this Schedule of Performance requires the submission of plans or other 

documents at a specific time, such plans or other documents, as submitted, shall be complete and 

adequate for review by the Authority or other applicable governmental entity within the time set 

forth herein.  Prior to the time set forth for each particular submission, Borrower shall consult with 

Authority staff informally as necessary concerning such submission in order to assure that such 

submission will be complete and in a proper form within the time for submission set forth herein. 

 

Action  Date 

   

1.  Submission – Financing Proposal.   

Borrower shall prepare and submit the 

Financing Proposal for Authority approval.  

[§3.2]  

By. 

   

2.  Approval – Financing Proposal.   The 

Authority shall approve or disapprove the 

Financing Plan.  [§3.2]  

 

Within 30 days after receipt of the 

Financing Proposal.  Opportunity is 

provided in §3.2 for resubmission and 

further review of a disapproved Financing 

Proposal. 

   

3.  Submission – Conceptual Site Plan.  

Borrower shall prepare and submit the 

Conceptual Site Plan for Authority 

approval.  [§3.3]  

By. 

   

4.  Approval – Conceptual Site Plan.   The 

Authority shall approve or disapprove the 

Conceptual Site Plan. [§3.3]    

 

Within 30 days after receipt of the 

Conceptual Site Plan.  Opportunity is 

provided in §3.3 for resubmission and 

further review of a disapproved Conceptual 

Site Plan. 

   

44



 

1373\18\3169118.1 A-2 

Action  Date 

5.  Application – Land Use Approvals.  

Borrower shall apply for the Land Use 

Approvals and shall provide evidence of the 

same to the Authority.  [§3.5(a)]     

By 

   

6.  Submission – Design Development 

Documents.  Borrower shall prepare and 

submit the Design Development 

Documents for Authority approval.  [§3.4] 
 

By 

   

7.  Approval – Design Development 

Documents.   The Authority shall approve 

or disapprove the Design Development 

Documents. [§3.4]    

 

Within 30 days after receipt of the Design 

Development Documents.  Opportunity is 

provided in §3.5 for resubmission and 

further review of disapproved Design 

Development Documents. 

    

8.  Receipt – Land Use Approvals.  

Borrower shall obtain the Land Use 

Approvals and shall provide evidence of the 

same to the Authority [§3.5(b)]     

By 

   

13.  Submission – Financing Plan.   

Borrower shall prepare and submit the 

Financing Plan for Authority approval.  

[§3.6] 

 

Within 10 days after receipt of the equity 

information. Opportunity is provided in 

§3.7 for submission and further review of 

new equity information after disapproval of 

the initial equity information. 

   

14.  Approval – Financing Plan.   The 

Authority shall approve or disapprove the 

Financing Plan.  [§3.6]   

By 

   

15.  Submission – Construction Plans.  

Borrower shall prepare and submit the 

Construction Plans for Authority approval.  

[§3.7]  

Within 30 days after receipt of the 

Financing Plan.  Opportunity is provided in 

§3.8 for resubmission and further review of 

a disapproved Financing Plan. 

   

16.  Approval – Construction Plans.   The 

Authority shall approve or disapprove the 

Construction Plans. [§3.7]    

 

Within 180 days after the Authority 

approves the Design Development 

Documents. 

   

45



 

1373\18\3169118.1 A-3 

Action  Date 

30.  Conditions Satisfaction Date.  

Borrower shall satisfy all conditions in 

Article 3. [§3.1] 

  December 31, 2023 

46



 

B-1 
 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Predevelopment Budget 
 

 

47



 

 

01272.0010/754322.1  
1 

PROMISSORY NOTE 

(Predevelopment Loan) 

 

 

$__________        San Bernardino, California 

          _________, 2021 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned HOUSING PARTNERS I, 

INCORPORATED, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation ("Borrower") hereby 

promises to pay to the order of the HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN 

BERNARDINO, a public body, corporate and politic ("Holder"), the principal amount of 

_________________ Dollars ($___________) plus interest thereon pursuant to Section 2 below.     

 

1. Borrower's Obligation.  This promissory note (the "Note") evidences Borrower's 

obligation to repay Holder the principal amount of ______________ Dollars ($_____________) 

with interest for the funds loaned to Borrower by Holder to finance predevelopment costs 

pursuant to the Predevelopment Loan Agreement between Borrower and Holder of even date 

herewith (the "Loan Agreement").  All capitalized terms used but not defined in this Note have 

the meanings set forth in the Loan Agreement. 

 

2. Interest.   

 

(a) Subject to the provisions of Subsection (b) below, the outstanding 

principal balance of this Note bears no interest. 

 

(b) If a Default occurs, interest will accrue on all amounts due under this Note 

at the Default Rate until such Default is cured by Borrower or waived by Holder. 

 

3. Term and Repayment Requirements.  Principal and interest under this Note is due 

and payable as set forth in Section 2.6 of the Loan Agreement.  Subject to Sections 2.6(c) of the 

Loan Agreement (regarding forgiveness), the unpaid principal balance hereunder, together with 

accrued interest thereon, is due and payable no later than the date that is the earlier of (i) an event 

of Default, and (ii) December 31, 2022.  

 

4. No Assumption.  This Note is not assumable by the successors and assigns of 

Borrower without the prior written consent of Holder, except as provided in the Loan 

Agreement. 

 

5. Security; Nonrecourse.  This Note is unsecured. The Loan is nonrecourse to the 

Borrower.  Borrower shall not have any direct or indirect personal liability for payment of the 

principal of, and interest on, the Loan.   

 

6. Terms of Payment. 

 

(a) Borrower shall make all payments due under this Note in currency of the 

United States of America to Holder at Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino, 715 

East Brier Drive, San Bernardino, CA 92408-2841, Attn:  Executive Director, or to such other 

48



 

 

01272.0010/754322.1  
2 

place as Holder may from time to time designate.  Except as otherwise set forth herein or in any 

other Loan Document, payments may be applied in such order and manner as Holder may 

determine in its sole and absolute discretion. 

 

(b) All payments on this Note are without expense to Holder.  Borrower shall 

pay all costs and expenses, including re-conveyance fees and reasonable attorney's fees of 

Holder, incurred in connection with the payment of this Note and the release of any security 

provided to secure payment of this Note. 

 

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Note, or any instrument 

securing the obligations of Borrower under this Note, if, for any reason whatsoever, the payment 

of any sums by Borrower pursuant to the terms of this Note would result in the payment of 

interest that exceeds the amount that Holder may legally charge under the laws of the State of 

California, then the amount by which payments exceed the lawful interest rate will automatically 

be deducted from the principal balance owing on this Note, so that in no event is Borrower 

obligated under the terms of this Note to pay any interest that would exceed the lawful rate. 

 

(d) The obligations of Borrower under this Note are absolute and Borrower 

waives any and all rights to offset, deduct or withhold any payments or charges due under this 

Note for any reason whatsoever.   

 

7. Default; Acceleration. 

 

(a) Upon the occurrence of a Default and the expiration of applicable cure 

periods, the entire unpaid principal balance, together with all interest thereon, and together with 

all other sums then payable under this Note will, at the option of Holder, become immediately 

due and payable without further demand.  In addition to the right to accelerate the payment of 

this Note upon the occurrence of a Default, Holder shall have all rights and remedies described 

in the other Loan Documents. 

 

(b) Holder's failure to exercise the remedy set forth in Subsection 7(a) above 

or any other remedy provided by law upon the occurrence of a Default does not constitute a 

waiver of the right to exercise any remedy at any subsequent time in respect to the same or any 

other Default.  The acceptance by Holder of any payment that is less than the total of all amounts 

due and payable at the time of such payment does not constitute a waiver of the right to exercise 

any of the foregoing remedies or options at that time or at any subsequent time, or nullify any 

prior exercise of any such remedy or option, without the express consent of Holder, except as 

and to the extent otherwise provided by law. 

 

8. Waivers. 

 

(a) Borrower hereby waives diligence, presentment, protest and demand, and 

notice of protest, notice of demand, notice of dishonor and notice of non-payment of this Note.  

Borrower expressly agrees that the due date for this Note or any payment hereunder may be 

extended from time to time, and that Holder may accept further security or release any security 

for this Note, all without in any way affecting the liability of Borrower. 

 

49



 

 

01272.0010/754322.1  
3 

(b) Any extension of time for payment of this Note or any installment hereof 

made by agreement of Holder with any person now or hereafter liable for payment of this Note 

must not operate to release, discharge, modify, change or affect the original liability of Borrower 

under this Note, either in whole or in part. 

 

9. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

 

(a) All notices to Holder or Borrower are to be given in the manner and at the 

addresses set forth in the Loan Agreement, or to such addresses as Holder and Borrower may 

therein designate. 

 

(b) Borrower promises to pay all costs and expenses, including reasonable 

attorney's fees, incurred by Holder in the enforcement of the provisions of this Note, regardless 

of whether suit is filed to seek enforcement. 

 

(c) This Note is governed by the laws of the State of California. 

 

(d) The times for the performance of any obligations hereunder are to be 

strictly construed, time being of the essence. 

 

(e) This Note is one of the Loan Documents.  This Note may not be modified 

except upon the written consent of the parties. 

 

(f) Every provision of this Note is intended to be severable.  In the event any 

term or provision of this Note is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, 

invalid or unenforceable for any reason whatsoever, such illegality, invalidity or unenforceability 

will not affect the balance of the terms and provisions hereof, which terms and provisions will 

remain binding and enforceable, and this Note will be construed as if such illegal, invalid or 

unenforceable provision had not been contained herein. 

 

 

 

[signatures on following page]

50



 

Signature page 
Promissory Note 

01272.0010/754322.1  

4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower is executing this Promissory Note as of the day and 

year first above written. 

       

 

HOUSING PARTNERS I, INCORPORATED, a 

California nonprofit public benefit corporation 

 

By: ________________________________ 

Name:_______________________________ 

Its:__________________________________ 

51



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Revisions to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Plan Governing the Housing Authority of 
the County of San Bernardino’s Public Housing Program. 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Adopt Resolution No. 130 approving revisions to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Plan 
governing the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s public housing program. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB communication is open, honest and consistent. 
HACSB clients, programs, and properties are embraced by all communities. 
HACSB clients live in safe and desirable homes and communities where they can develop 
and prosper. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of the proposed revisions to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Plan (ACOP) 
will have some financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s 
(HACSB) public housing operating budget due to potentially adding time to the eviction process 
for non-payment of rent. The amount is not expected to materially affect the budget and cannot 
be quantified at this time.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
HACSB has one public housing multi-family community left in its public housing portfolio. This is 
a 98-unit community in the City of Upland named Los Olivos. As such any updates to the Public 
Housing program’s ACOP only apply to this community and one single family home. HACSB’s 
ACOP outlines the adopted policies that govern the Public Housing program. The ACOP is 
required of all public housing authorities administering a Public Housing program and is reviewed 
and updated as needed to maintain compliance with Public and Indian Housing Notices (PIH), 
Federal Register Notices as issued by the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD), and HACSB’s Moving to Work (MTW) activities.  
 
The primary reason for updating the ACOP currently is to comply with the HUD PIH Notice 2021-
29 which requires all Public Housing Agencies (PHAs) to provide 30 days advanced notice of 
termination for non-payment of rent.  In HACSB’s approved 2012 MTW Plan, the Property 
Management Innovation Activity changed the HUD required 14-day notice to a 3-day notice, to 
be more in line with state requirements. This proposed revision will update the 3-day notice as 
previously approved by HUD to a 30-day notice of termination for non-payment of rent. This action 
will help support families who cannot pay rent by affording them more time to pay rent and avoid 
eviction. Attached are the proposed revisions to the ACOP with the redline changes. 
 

52



Revisions to the Admissions and Continued Occupancy Plan Governing the Housing Authority of 
the County of San Bernardino’s Public Housing Program. 
December 14, 2021 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

To ensure compliance with HUD regulations it is recommended the Board of Commissioners 
adopt the resolution to approve the proposed changes to the ACOP. 
  
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 2, 2021. 

53



HOUSING AUTHORITY RESOLUTION NO. 2021-130 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO APPROVING REVISIONS TO THE ADMISSIONS AND 

CONTINUED OCCUPANCY PLAN GOVERNING THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY 
OF SAN BERNARDINO’S PUBLIC HOUSING PROGRAM 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino (HACSB) is required to 

maintain an Admissions and Continued Occupancy Plan (ACOP) which outlines regulations necessary 
to administer the Public Housing program on behalf of the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD); and 

 
WHEREAS, HUD requires public housing agencies to amend their ACOP to incorporate 

changes and define policy relative to administration of the Public Housing program; and 
 
WHEREAS, HACSB desires to amend its policies and procedures as they relate to HUD 

regulatory waivers and recent Public and Indian Housing Notices. 
 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 

OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Board of Commissioners finds that all of the facts set forth in the Recitals are true 
and correct, and are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 2. The Board of Commissioners hereby approves the revisions to the ACOP governing 
the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s Public Housing program, attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino, by the following vote: 
 
 AYES: COMMISSIONER: 
 
 NOES: COMMISSIONER: 
 
 ABSENT: COMMISSIONER: 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO ) 
 
 I, __________, Secretary of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino, hereby certify the foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the record 
of the action taken by the Board of Commissioners, by vote of the members present, as the same 
appears in the Official Minutes of said Board at its meeting of Tuesday,      ,  20  . 
 
 
 

54



 _____________________________ 
 Secretary 
 
 
  

55



Chapter 7: Leasing and Inspections 

Page 7-5    

Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino 

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP 

Revised: February December 2021 

7.1.5.1 Late Fees and Nonpayment [24 CFR 966.4(b)(3)]    

Any payments made by mail or placed in a drop box are made at the resident’s risk and 

must be received by HACSB on or before the end of business on the due date. Payments 

received after the 5th calendar day will incur a $50.00 late charge. If the family fails to pay 

their rent by the fifth day of the month, and the HACSB has not agreed to accept payment 

at a later date, a 3 day 30-day Notice to Pay or Quit will be issued to the resident for failure 

to pay rent, demanding payment in full or the surrender of the premises (Per PIH  

Notice 2021-29, PHA’s must provide residents no less than 30 days advanced notification 

of lease termination due to non-payment of rent).27 Notices of late fees will be in 

accordance with requirements regarding notices of adverse action. Charges are due and 

payable 14 calendar days after billing.     

The resident will incur a $25.00 charge for the first dishonored check and $35.00 for any 

subsequent dishonored check. After receiving any dishonored check, HACSB reserves 

the right to require all further payments from you to be made by money order, certified 

check or cashier’s check.     

If the family requests an informal settlement conference within the required timeframe, the 

HACSB will not take action for nonpayment of the fee until the conclusion of the process. 

If the resident can document financial hardship, the late fee may be waived on a case-by-

case basis.    

The lease provides that late payment fees are not due and collectible until three days after 

the HACSB gives written Notice to Perform. The written notice is considered an adverse 

action and must meet the requirements governing a notice of adverse action.     

The notice of proposed adverse action must identify the specific grounds for the action 

and inform the family of their right for an informal settlement conference. The HACSB 

must not take the proposed action until the time for the resident to request an informal 

settlement conference has expired, or (if a conference was requested within the required 

timeframe,) the process has been completed.    

27 The FY 2011 Moving to Work Annual Plan included Activity 18: Property Management Innovation. 

Exhibit A

56



Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino    

Affordable Housing Programs ACOP    

Revised: February December 2021     

       
When the HACSB is not required to offer the resident an opportunity for a grievance 

hearing because HUD has made a due process determination and the lease termination 

is for criminal activity that threatens health, safety or right to peaceful enjoyment or for 

drug-related criminal activity, the notice of lease termination must state that the resident 

is not entitled to a grievance hearing on the termination. It must specify the judicial eviction 

procedure to be used by the HACSB for eviction of the resident, and state that HUD has 

determined that the eviction procedure provides the opportunity for a hearing in court that 

contains the basic elements of due process as defined in HUD regulations. The notice 

must also state whether the eviction is for a criminal activity that threatens the health, 

safety, or right to peaceful enjoyment of the premises of other residents or employees of 

the HACSB, or for a drug-related criminal activity on or off the premises.     

The HACSB will attempt to deliver notices of lease termination directly to the resident or 

an adult member of the household. If such attempt fails, the notice will be sent by firstclass 

mail the same day.     

     

12.7.4. Timing of Notice [24 CFR 966.4(l)(3)(i)]     

The HACSB must give written notice of lease termination of:     

     

3 -30 days advanced notice calendar days in the case of failure to pay rent1 (Per PIH  

• Notice 2021-29, PHA’s must provide residents no less than 30 days advanced  

notification of lease termination due to non-payment of rent). This notice remains in 
effect until amended, superseded, or rescinded by HUD.     

• 3 calendar days when the health or safety of other residents or Authority employees is 

threatened;     

• 3 calendar days for violation criminal or drug-related activity; and     

• Thirty (30) days for any other lease violations during the first year of tenancy and sixty 

days (60) after the first year of tenancy.      

     

  

 

1 The FY 2011 Moving to Work Annual Plan included Activity 18: Property Management Innovation which 

modified HUD requirements regarding the timing of notices.     

      
Chapter 12: Lease Terminations and Informal Settlement Conferences    Page 

12-23     

57



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Electrical Panel Upgrades Contract with S & Sons Electrical Contractors Corporation  
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

1. Award contract No. PC1232, effective January 1, 2022, to S & Sons Electrical Contractors 

Corporation for the electrical panel upgrades to the 98 units in the Los Olivos Public Housing 

community in the city of Upland, in an amount not to exceed $509,500.  

2. Authorize and direct the Executive Director to execute and deliver the contract to S & Sons 

Electrical Contractors Corporation, upon consultation with Legal Counsel, to approve any non-

substantive revisions necessary to complete the transaction.  

(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 

..Body 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB has secured the resources needed for accomplishing its mission. 
HACSB is a leading developer and provider of affordable housing in the County of San 
Bernardino. 
HACSB clients live in safe and desirable homes and communities where they can develop 
and prosper. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The total contract amount is not expected to exceed $509,500 and will be funded through the 

Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s (HACSB) portfolio operating reserves and/or 

Public Housing Capital Funds.   

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
HACSB is currently in the process of converting the Los Olivos 1941 public housing development 

under the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program. As part of the conversion process, 

a Capital Needs Assessment (CNA) was conducted for the property. Per the CNA, it was 

discovered that the current electrical panels are not within code due to the age of the equipment. 

Under normal circumstances this physical improvement would be conducted within 12 months 

after the RAD transaction closing; however, due to the safety concern and to meet code 

requirements, HACSB is recommending that this work be initiated prior to closing the RAD 

transaction, which is set to close in February, 2022.  

PROCUREMENT 
On September 28, 2021, HACSB issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) PC1232 for Electrical 
Panel Upgrades which resulted in the receipt of three proposals. Outreach efforts included email 
invitations to contractors and 114 vendor notifications through the agency’s electronic bidding 
software, PlanetBids.com. The proposals were evaluated per the requirements of the Invitation 
for Bid (IFB) in which S & Sons Electrical Contractors Corporation had the best price, considered 
responsive, and determined best qualified to provide this service to HACSB.  
 

58



PC1232 S & Sons Electrical Contractors Corporation for Los Olivos Electrical Panel Upgrades 
December 14, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Sealed bids were received by the deadline from the following organizations: 

Contractors Name Location Total Proposed Amount 

S & Sons Electrical Contractors 

Corporation 
Hesperia, California  

$509,500.00 

Inter-Pacific, Inc. Tustin, California  $524,962.81 

Pacific Lighting Mgmt. Inc. Santa Ana, California $633,491.00 

 

Based on the responses for these services, which were solicited to an adequate number of 

sources and in accordance with Title 2 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, staff recommends 

awarding a contract for electrical panel upgrades to S & Sons Electrical Contractors Corporation. 

 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 2, 2021. 

 

59



CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 
PC1232 Los Olivos, Electrical Panel Upgrades 

THIS CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made as of the 14th day of 

December, 2021 by and between S & Sons Electrical Contractors Corporation (“Contractor”), and the Housing 

Authority of the County of San Bernardino, a public entity (“HACSB”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, HACSB is a public entity in San Bernardino County, State of California, committed to provide 

affordable and safe public housing for low and moderate income families; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor has offered to provide certain services to HACSB, and HACSB wishes to retain 

Contractor for the provision of such services. 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals, which Recitals are incorporated herein by 

this reference, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, and for the mutual covenants contained herein, Contractor and HACSB hereby agree as follows:  

ARTICLE 1.  Description of Work.  Contractor will furnish all work, labor, tools, equipment, materials, 

supervision, scheduling, coordination, and contract administration (“Work”) necessary to construct and complete 

those certain improvements described on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (“Work”), 

which Work shall be performed in compliance with the plans and specifications described on Exhibit “A”, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein.  The Work shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner.  In connection 

with the performance of the Work, Contractor shall comply with all of the Contract Documents (as hereinafter 

defined). 

ARTICLE 2.  Time of Completion.  Contractor shall commence the Work on or after the date specified in 

the written Notice to Proceed issued by HACSB, and shall fully complete all Work within 150 calendar days after the 

commencement date. 

ARTICLE 3.  Price.  This is a firm Fixed Price Agreement as that phrase is defined in the General 

Conditions (as hereinafter defined).  The price shall not exceed $509,500.00. This amount is full consideration for this 

Agreement as written.  

ARTICLE 4.  Payment.  Unless otherwise specified, Payment shall be made in accordance with and in the 

manner specified in the General Conditions.   

ARTICLE 5.  Contract Documents. This Agreement incorporates by reference all of the following 

documents (the “Contract Documents”):

1. General Conditions (form HUD 5370), attached hereto as Exhibit “ ” and incorporated herein by
reference.

2. Additional General Provisions, attached hereto as Exhibit “ ” and incorporated herein by reference
(“Additional Provisions”).

3. Performance-Payment Bond (“Performance Bond”), attached hereto as Exhibit “ ” and incorporated
herein by reference.

4. Stipulation of Lien (“Stipulation of Lien”), attached hereto as Exhibit “ ” and incorporated herein by
reference.

5.

Applicable prevailing wages determined by the United States Department of Labor pursuant to Davis

Bacon Wages : General Decision Number: CA20200017 09/03/2021 MOD 12
6.

All agreements, representations, warranties, covenants, and certifications of Contractor made in
connection with the procurement of this Agreement.

.

Page 1 of 9560



7. All applicable Federal, State, and Local laws, ordinances and regulations related to this Agreement shall
be incorporated herein by reference.  This Agreement is funded by the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development, and is subject to all regulations and requirements for agreements funded by HUD.
Federal Regulations may be found at http://www.gpoaccess.gov.  State of California regulations may be
found at http://www.leginfo.ca.gov. For laws the County of San Bernardino, go to
tp://www.sblawlibrary.org.

ARTICLE 6.  Best Efforts. Contractor shall perform its duties on premises approved by HACSB, during 

HACSB'S regular work days and normal work hours and warrants that it shall perform its services in a manner 

consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing 

under similar circumstances. Contractor acknowledges that HACSB has the right to review the services performed by 

Contractor and may in its reasonable business discretion, reject such services in writing.  

ARTICLE 7.  No Conflicts.  HACSB acknowledges that Contractor has other business and personal interests, 

separate and apart from the services contemplated by this Agreement, and nothing in this Agreement is intended to 

preclude Contractor from devoting time and attention to such business and personal interests.  HACSB further 

acknowledges that Contractor has the right to accept other engagements as long as said engagements do not represent a

conflict of interest with respect to the Work or the obligations of Contractor to HACSB pursuant to this Agreement.  In 

connection with Contractor’s performance of the Work hereunder, Contractor represents that there exists no actual, 

potential or appearance of conflict arising out of Contractor’s business and financial interests. 

ARTICLE 8.  Limit of Engagement. This Agreement does not and shall not be construed to create any 

partnership or agency whatsoever beyond the purposes set forth in Article 1 hereof.  Contractor shall not be deemed to be 

a partner, joint venturer, agent or legal representative of HACSB for any purpose, nor shall Consultant have any authority 

or power to act for, or to undertake any obligation or responsibility, on behalf of HACSB or corporations affiliated with 

HACSB, other than as expressly herein provided. 

ARTICLE 9.  Responsibilities of HACSB. If information, data, or documentation necessary to facilitate 

Contractor’s performance of the Work is required to be provided by HACSB, HACSB shall provide such information 

upon request by Contractor.  Should Contractor determine that a delay in its performance has occurred, which is 

solely attributable to a failure of HACSB, Contractor will promptly notify HACSB in writing.  

ARTICLE 10.  Change Orders.  HACSB shall have the right, from time to time, to make changes to the 

Work by change order as set forth in the Contract Documents.  

ARTICLE 11.  Return of HACSB Property. All reports, plans, designs, specifications, field data, construction 

documents, and other documents and instruments, including electronic files, but excluding Contractor’s notes, relating to 

the Work shall be and remain the property of HACSB and shall be turned over to HACSB promptly upon the completion of 

the Work, or upon the earlier termination of this Agreement.  Contractor hereby waives and assigns to HACSB all 

intellectual property or common law rights Contractor may develop in the Work.  Contractor shall not use any trademarks 

owned by HACSB without HACSB’s prior written authorization. 

ARTICLE 12. Confidential Information. HACSB agrees to make available to Contractor information that may 

be needed to perform the Work.  Such information may include information HACSB considers to be confidential.  For 

purposes hereof, “Confidential Information” of HACSB means any nonpublic, proprietary information or technology 

used in HACSB’s business, and any materials evidencing the same (specifically, including, without limitation, 

technical data or know-how relating to development plans, business plans, services, customers, markets, inventions 

(whether patentable or not), processes, designs, drawings, research, developments, strategies, marketing and/or 

financial information).  Unless HACSB acknowledges that any such information provided under this Agreement is not 

Confidential Information, all information provided by HACSB to Contractor shall be considered to be Confidential 

Information.  Unless approved in advance in writing or compelled to make such disclosure by a government agency, 

Page 2 of 9561



by court order, or by law, Contractor shall not disclose, transfer, distribute or allow access to any of HACSB’s

Confidential Information to any third parties, except those individuals employed by Contractor and who are 

specifically authorized by Contractor to perform the Work contemplated in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 13.  Performance Bond.  Contractor certifies that prior to its commencement of Work it shall 

provide to HACSB a written, fully executed Performance Bond, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 

“ , and incorporated herein by reference. 

ARTICLE 14. Indemnity; Hold Harmless.  Contractor agrees to defend, save, indemnify and hold 

harmless HACSB and all its officers, employees, and agents, against any and all liabilities, claims, judgments, or 

demands, including demands arising from injuries or death of persons (Contractor's employees included) and 

damage to property, arising directly or indirectly out of the performance of the Work, the obligations herein 

undertaken or out of the operations conducted by Contractor, save and except claims or litigation to the extent arising 

through the active negligence or willful misconduct of HACSB.  Contractor shall reimburse HACSB for any 

expenditures, including reasonable attorneys' fees, HACSB may incur arising out of any such claim or litigation, and, 

if requested by HACSB, Contractor shall defend any such suits at the sole cost and expense of Contractor with 

counsel selected by HACSB.

ARTICLE 15.  Compliance with Contract Documents. Contractor shall comply with all of the Contract 

Documents in connection with the performance of the Work hereunder.  In the event of any conflict between this 

Agreement and the Contract Documents, the Contract Documents shall control. 

ARTICLE 16.  Warranty/Guarantee.

a. Contractor warrants and guarantees that any work and/or materials supplied or installed in 

Contractor’s performance of all contracts awarded and executed under this Agreement for HACSB 

will be done in accordance with the Plans and Specifications and that the Work, as installed, will 

fulfill the requirements of the Specifications.  Contractor agrees to repair or replace any or all of its 

Work, together with any adjacent Work which may be displaced by so doing, that may prove to be 

defective in its workmanship or material within a period of two (2) years from the date of completion 

of the Project, except for ordinary wear and tear, unusual abuse or neglect on the part of HACSB. 

b. Contractor’s warranty in no way supersedes any manufacturer’s warranty or guarantee for any 

equipment or material supplied, or process used in the installation.  The full effect of all 

manufacturers’ warranties voided by improper installation or process will be guaranteed by 

Contractor for the full life of the manufacturer’s warranty. 

c. In the event of Contractor’s failure to comply with the conditions of this Article within a reasonable 

period of time as determined by HACSB and after being notified in writing, Contractor hereby 

authorizes HACSB to proceed to have said defect repaired and made good at Contractor’s 

expense and will honor and pay the costs and charges therefore upon demand. 

ARTICLE 17.  Superintendence by Contractor. Contractor shall give his personal superintendence to the 

Work or have a competent superintendent, satisfactory to HACSB and/or the Architect, if any, on the Project at all 

times during progress with full authority to act for him. 

ARTICLE 18.  Accident Prevention. Contractor shall exercise proper precaution at all times for the 

protection of persons and property.  The safety provisions of applicable law, building and construction codes shall be 

observed, and Contractor shall take or cause to be taken such additional safety and health measures as HACSB may 

determine to be reasonably necessary.  Machinery, equipment and all hazards shall be guarded in accordance with 

Page 3 of 9562



the safety provisions of the State of California Construction Safety Orders (CCR Title 8, Chapter 4, Subchapter 4, as 

amended) and the “Manual of Accident Prevention in Construction”, published by the Associated General Contractors 

of America, to the extent that such provisions are not in contravention of applicable laws. 

ARTICLE 19.  Removal of Debris, Cleaning. Contractor shall, daily or as directed during the progress of 

the Work on the Project, remove and properly dispose of the resultant trash, dirt and debris, and keep the premises 

reasonably clear.

ARTICLE 20. Designation of Subcontractors.

a. In compliance with the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (California Public Contract 

Code section 4100 et seq.) and any amendments thereof, each bidder shall set forth:  (a) the 

name, the location of the place of business, and the California contractor license number of each 

subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to Contractor in or about the 

construction of the Project under this Agreement or a subcontractor licensed by the State of 

California who, under subcontract to Contractor, specially fabricates and installs a portion of the 

Project according to the Plans and Specifications in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent  

of Contractor’s total bid, and (b) the portion of the Work which will be done by each subcontractor.

b. If Contractor fails to specify a subcontractor or if Contractor specifies more than one subcontractor 

for the same portion of the Work performed for the Project in excess of one-half of one percent of 

Contractor’s total bid, he shall be deemed to have agreed that he is fully qualified to perform that 

portion himself, and that he shall perform that portion himself. 

c. Contractor shall not:  (a) substitute any subcontractor, (b) permit any subcontract to be voluntarily 

assigned or transferred or allow it to be performed by any one other than the original subcontractor 

listed in the original bid, or (c) sublet or subcontract any portion of the Work on the Project in 

excess of one-half of one percent of Contractor’s total bid as to which the original bid did not 

designate a subcontractor, except as authorized by HACSB. 

d. Subletting or subcontracting of any portion of the Work on the Project in excess of one-half of one 

percent of Contractor’s total bid as to which no subcontractor has been designated in the original 

bid shall only be permitted in cases of public record of HACSB wherein HACSB has set forth the 

facts constituting the emergency or necessity. 

ARTICLE 21.  Stipulation of Lien. Contractor certifies that all Work executed under this Agreement will be 

performed in accordance with the Agreement terms and there will be no claims of laborers or mechanics for unpaid 

wages arising out of the performance of said Agreement.  In consideration of the payment under the terms of the 

Agreement, Contractor hereby does release HACSB from any and all claims arising from any contract awarded by 

this process.  Contractor shall prepare and submit to HACSB, a written Stipulation of Lien, in substantially the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit “F” and incorporated herein by reference.  The Stipulation of Lien shall be recorded in the 

County Recorder’s Office of San Bernardino County, California. 

ARTICLE 22.  Assignment.  Neither the Agreement, nor any part thereof, nor moneys due or to become 

due there under may be assigned by Contractor without the prior written approval of HACSB. 

ARTICLE 23. Rights and Remedies of HACSB for Default.

Page 4 of 9563



In the event any goods furnished or services provided by Contractor in the performance of the Work should 

fail to conform to the requirements herein, or to the sample submitted by Contractor, HACSB may reject the same, 

and it shall become the duty of Contractor to reclaim and remove the item promptly or to correct the performance of 

services, without expense to HACSB, and immediately replace all such rejected items with others conforming to the 

Agreement.

a. In addition to any other rights and remedies HACSB may have, HACSB may require Contractor, at 

Contractor’s expense, to ship goods via air freight or expedited routing to avoid or minimize actual 

or potential delay if the delay is the fault of Contractor.

b. In the event of the termination of the Agreement, either in whole or in part, by reason of default or 

breach by Contractor, any loss or damage sustained by HACSB in procuring any items which 

Contractor agreed to supply shall be borne and paid for by Contractor.  

c. HACSB reserves the right to offset the reasonable cost of all damages caused to HACSB against 

any outstanding invoices or amounts owed to Contractor or to make a claim against Contractor 

therefore. 

ARTICLE 24.  Termination. In addition to the rights of Termination for Convenience of HACSB and 

Termination for Default set forth in the Contract Documents, HACSB may terminate this Agreement if Contractor 

should file a bankruptcy petition and/or be adjudged a bankrupt, or if Contractor should make a general assignment 

for the benefit of creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed on account of insolvency (as referenced in HUD Form 

5370-A Section 34 page 12).  HACSB may serve written notice upon Contractor of its intention to terminate the 

Agreement.  The notice shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate the Agreement, and, unless within 

ten (10) days after serving such notice, such violation shall cease and satisfactory arrangements for correction 

thereof be made, upon the expiration of the ten (10) days, the Agreement shall cease and terminate.  In the event of 

any such termination, HACSB shall serve written notice thereof upon any surety and Contractor, and any such surety 

shall have the right to take over and perform Contractor’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement; provided, however, 

that if such surety does not provide HACSB written notice of its intention to take over and perform the Work required 

under this Agreement within fifteen (15) days after receiving such written notice, or such surety does not commence 

performance thereof within thirty (30) days after providing such written notice to HACSB, HACSB shall have the right 

to perform all uncompleted portions of the Work and to prosecute the same to completion by contract or by any other 

method it deems advisable, for the account and at the expense of Contractor, and Contractor and its surety shall be 

liable to HACSB for any excess costs occasioned HACSB thereby and, in such event, HACSB may, without liability 

for doing so, take possession of and utilize in completing the Work, such materials, appliances, and other property 

belonging to Contractor as may be on the site of the Work and necessary for the performance of the Work. 

ARTICLE 25.  Notices.  All notices required pursuant to this Agreement shall be communicated in writing, 

and shall be delivered in person, by commercial courier providing proof of delivery, or by certified mail, return receipt 

requested.   

Page 5 of 9564



All notices sent pursuant to this Agreement shall be addressed as follows: 

If to HACSB:

Angie Lardapide, Procurement & Contracts 
Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino
715 E. Brier Drive
San Bernardino, CA  92408-2841
alardipide@hacsb.com

If to Contractor:

Alejandro Gonzalez, Vice President
S & Son’s Electrical Contracts Corporation
18442 Dallbly Avenue
Hesperia, California 92345
SandSonsecc@yahoo.com

Notices will be deemed effective upon receipt or rejection only. 

ARTICLE 26.  Complete Agreement. This written Agreement is the final, complete and exclusive statement 

and expression of the agreement between HACSB and Contractor and of all the terms of this Agreement and cannot be 

varied, contradicted, nor supplemented by evidence of any prior or contemporaneous oral or written agreements.   

ARTICLE 27.  Applicable Law/Venue. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance 

with the laws of the State of California, with proper venue for any litigation in San Bernardino County, California. 

ARTICLE 28.  Severability; Headings. If any portion of this Agreement is held invalid or inoperative, the 

other portions of this Agreement shall be deemed valid and operative and so far as is reasonable and possible, effect 

shall be given to the intent manifested by the portion held invalid or inoperative.  The section headings herein are for 

reference purposes only and are not intended in any way to describe, interpret, define or limit the extent or intent of this 

Agreement or of any part hereof. 

ARTICLE 29.  Interpretation. Should any provision of this Agreement require interpretation, it is agreed that 

the person or persons interpreting or construing the same shall not apply a presumption that the terms of this 

Agreement shall be more strictly construed against one party by reason of the rule of construction that a document is 

to be construed more strictly against the party who itself or through its agent or counsel prepared the same or caused 

the same to be prepared; it being agreed that the agents and counsel of all of the parties have participated equally in 

the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement.  The language in all parts of this Agreement shall be in all cases 

construed simply, fairly, equitably and reasonably, according to its plain meaning and not strictly for or against any of 

the parties. 

ARTICLE 30.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, and when so 

executed by each of the parties hereto shall constitute a single agreement binding upon all of the parties hereto. 

ARTICLE 31.  Licensed Contractor.  Contractor represents and warrants that it is a licensed contractor in 

good standing with the California Contractors State License Board.  

[END – SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

Page 6 of 9565



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, HACSB and Contractor have entered into this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 
December 14, 2021 (PC1232 Los Olivos, Electrical Panel Upgrades) 

Date: 

S & Son’s Electrical Contracts Corporation

By: (Affix seal if a corporation) 

Name: 

Its: 

CERTIFICATE OF CORPORATE AUTHORITY 

I, ________________________________certify that I am the___________________________ of the corporation 

named as Contractor herein; that _______________________________________ who signed this Agreement on

behalf of Contractor, was then__________________________________ of said corporation; that said Contract was 

duly signed for and in behalf of said corporation and its governing body and is within the scope of its corporate 

powers. 

By:

Name: 

Its: 

Date: 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO

By:

Name: Maria Razo 

Its:  Executive Director 

Date: 

Page 7 of 9566



Exhibit “A” 
Scope Of Work

Page 8 of 9567



P
a

g
e

 9
 o

f 
9

5

68



P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
9
5

69



P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
9
5

70



P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
9
5

71



P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
9
5

72



P
a

g
e

 1
4

 o
f 

9
5

73



P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 
9
5

74



P
a

g
e

 1
6

 o
f 

9
5

75



P
a

g
e
 1

7
 o

f 
9
5

76



PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACTS DEPARTMENT 

715 E. BRIER DRIVE, SAN BERNARDINO, CA  92408 

(909) 890-0644  FAX (909) 915-1831

https://hacsb.com/do-business-with-us/   

ADDENDUM #1 Question and Answer 

IFB PC1232 Los Olivos Electrical Panel Upgrade RAD  

1. Please clarify whether the bid has to be Electronic or mail? The main section calls for
Electronic bid but elsewhere in the documents, mail-in bids are mentioned

All bids are to be delivered online electronically through Planetbids.com

2. Has a Southern California Edison (SCE) contact been established for this project? Please
provide contact details.

S.C.E has been contacted. Details will be provided.

3. Section 3;  Must qualified employees work on the subject project or can they work on just
company projects other than this project?

Please visit H.U.D. for requirements of Section 3 Section 3 - Economic Opportunities |
HUD.gov / U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)

4. What does the scope of verification of wiring include?

For each circuit breaker, verify the wire sizes, conditions, and connected loads.

5. Problems/ violations reporting: Is there any scope beyond verifying and reporting
existing problems on various homes?

Just verify and report existing wire sizes, conditions and connected loads for each
circuit. 

6. Do we have to measure present loads and label circuits by each load?

Page 18 of 9577



Just verify and report existing wire sizes, conditions and connected loads for each
circuit.

7. Do we have to make new holes for conduit penetration or can the existing holes be used
to route new conduits?

It is the contractor’s best means and method on carrying out construction work.

8. Can we use existing ground connection or new ground connection needs to be
established? Are there one or two grounds that exist at these residences?  If only one
ground exists, do we need to put in new additional ground connection?

There may not be any existing ground rods at each residence. The contractor shall
provide an itemized cost for 2 ground rods per residence. If only one ground rod is
required per residence, a credit shall be given to HACSB for the second ground rod
installation.

9. Do existing conduits have to be replaced, particularly, if they are found to be in good
condition.

The contractor shall provide an itemized cost for replacement of conduits.  If a conduit is
found not required during construction, a credit shall be given to HA-SBC for a non-
replacement of conduit.

10. Is the Meter Load Center/ Panel rated NEMA 1 as mentioned on Sheet E3 of the scope of
work document? On Sheet E4, weatherproof enclosure is mentioned. We think NEMA 3
is the correct choice?

If NEMA 3R Meter Load Centers were provided and installed, the weatherproof
enclosures would not be required.  The installation of NEMA 3R load centers shall be
weatherproof compatible with the existing plaster wall construction.  The entire
replacement shall be weatherproof.

11. Are aluminum panels allowed? It seems that aluminum panels are acceptable to SCE!
Some large electrical manufacturers don't seem to have readily available copper meter
panel and have standardized around an aluminum meter-panel combination?

NEMA 3R load centers with Aluminum buses of the specified capacities are acceptable.

12. What type of roof exists on the residential units?

25 year shingle, Owens Corning

Page 19 of 9578



Exhibit “ ”

Page 20 of 9579



 
11 0 3  

Page 21 of 9580



Page 22 of 9581



Page 23 of 9582



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

of  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 24 of 9583



Page 25 of 9584



Page 26 of 9585



Page 27 of 9586



Page 28 of 9587



        15            
 

 
 

 
 

Page 29 of 9588



Page 30 of 9589



Page 31 of 9590



 
 

 
250.00 per day  

 

  
 
 

 
 

 

 
 1,000,000.00 

Page 32 of 9591



 
1,000,000.00 

  
 

 
  

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
  

 
  

 

/ 

Seller  
/Seller  

of race,,, 
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,  
disability, or national origin.  

/Seller  
       
    race, 
 color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,  
disability, or national origin   
  lude  u , (3)

  
 

  
  

Page 33 of 9592



  
r/Seller  

  
or   

/Seller 
  

 
  

  
  
  

/Seller 
  

   
/Seller   

   
  

    
/Seller  

  
  

 
  

/Seller in non- 
compliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract 
or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract  
may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part 
and the contractor/seller  may be declared ineligible for  
further Government contracts in accordance with procedures  
authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965,  
and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies  
invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September  
24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of  
Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 

The contractor/seller will include the provisions of  
paragraphs (a) through (h) in every subcontract or purchase  
order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the  
Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive 
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions  
will be binding upon each sub[contractor/seller]  or vendor. The 
[contractor/seller]  will take such action with respect to any  
subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the  
Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions in
cluding sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that  
in the event the [contractor/seller]  becomes involved in, or is  
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a  
result of such direction, the [contractor/seller]  may request the 
United States to enter into such litigation to protect the  
interests of the United States.  

  
  

  
 

  
 

 

 

/Seller agrees to
 a  

     setting           
forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination c  

/Seller   

Page 34 of 9593



Page 35 of 9594



Page 36 of 9595



Page 37 of 9596



Page 38 of 9597



Page 39 of 9598



Exhibit “ ”

Page 40 of 9599



ADDITIONAL GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. DEFINITIONS: The following terms shall be given the meaning shown, unless context requires otherwise or
a unique meaning is otherwise specified.

a. Business Entity” means any individual, business, partnership, joint venture, corporation, S-
corporation, limited liability corporation, limited liability partnership, sole proprietorship, joint stock
company, consortium, or other private legal entity recognized by statute.

b. “Contractor” means the Business Entity with whom the Housing Authority of the County of San
Bernardino enters into this Agreement. Contractor shall be synonymous with “supplier”, “vendor” or
other similar term.

c. “Firm Price” means the Agreement requires the delivery of products or services at a specific price,
fixed at the time of the Agreement and not subject to any adjustment on the basis of Contractor’s
cost experience in performing under the terms of the Agreement.

d. “HACSB” means the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino, its employees and
authorized representatives, including without limitation any department, agency, or other unit of
HACSB.

2. COMPLIANCE WITH STATUTES AND REGULATIONS: Contractor warrants and certifies that in the
performance of this Agreement, it will comply with all applicable statutes, rules, regulations and orders of the
United States, the State of California and HACSB and agrees to indemnify HACSB against any loss, cost,
damage or liability by reason of Contractor’s violation of this provision.

3. CONTRACTOR’S POWER AND AUTHORITY: Contractor warrants that it has full power and authority to
enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement, and will hold HACSB harmless from and against
any loss, cost, liability, and expense (including reasonable attorney fees) arising out of any breach of this
Agreement. Further, Contractor agrees that it will not enter into any arrangement with any third party which
might abridge any rights of HACSB under this Agreement.

4. TRANSPORTATION COSTS AND OTHER FEES OR EXPENSES: No charge for delivery, express, parcel
post, packing, cartage, insurance, license fees, permits, cost of bonds, or for any other purpose will be paid
by HACSB unless expressly included and itemized in the Agreement.

a. Contractor must strictly follow Agreement requirements regarding Free on Board (F.O.B.), freight
terms and routing instructions.  HACSB may permit use of an alternate carrier at no additional cost
to HACSB with advance written authorization of HACSB.

b. If “prepay and add” is selected, supporting freight bills are required when over $50, unless an exact
freight charge is approved by HACSB n and a waiver is granted in writing and in advance of
shipping.

c. On "F.O.B. Shipping Point" transactions, should any shipments under the Agreement be received
by HACSB in a damaged condition and any related freight loss and damage claims filed against the
carrier or carriers be wholly or partially declined by the carrier or carriers with the inference that
damage was the result of the act of the shipper such as inadequate packaging or loading or some
inherent defect in the equipment and/or material, contractor, on request of HACSB, shall at
Contractor’s own expense assist HACSB in establishing carrier liability by supplying evidence that
the equipment and/or material was properly constructed, manufactured, packaged, and secured to
withstand normal transportation conditions.

5. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

6. DELIVERY: Contractor shall strictly adhere to the delivery and completion schedules specified in the
Agreement. Time, if stated as a number of days, shall mean calendar days unless otherwise specified. The
quantities specified herein are the only quantities required. If Contractor delivers in excess of the quantities
specified herein, HACSB shall not be required to make any payment for the excess goods, and may return
them to Contractor, at Contractor’s expense, or utilize any other rights available to HACSB at law or in
equity.

7. SUBSTITUTIONS: Substitution of goods may not be tendered, without advance written consent of HACSB.
Contractor shall not use any specification in lieu of those contained in the Agreement, without written
consent of HACSB.

Page 41 of 95100



8. INSPECTION, ACCEPTANCE AND REJECTION: 

a. Contractor and its subcontractors will provide and maintain a quality assurance system acceptable 
to HACSB covering goods and services under this Agreement and will tender to HACSB only those 
goods that have been inspected and found to conform to the requirements of this Agreement.
Contractor will keep records evidencing inspections and their result, and will make these records 
available to HACSB during performance of the Work and for three years after final payment. 
Contractor shall permit HACSB to review procedures, practices, processes and related documents 
to determine the acceptability of Contractor’s quality assurance system or other business practices 
related to performance of the Work.

b. All goods may be subject to inspection and test by HACSB or its authorized representatives. 

c. Contractor and its subcontractors shall provide all reasonable facilities for the safety and 
convenience of inspectors at no additional cost to HACSB. Contractor shall furnish to inspectors all 
information and data as may be reasonably required to perform their inspection.  

d. All goods to be delivered hereunder may be subject to final inspection, test and acceptance by 
HACSB at destination, notwithstanding any payment or inspection at source.  

e. HACSB shall give written notice of rejection of goods delivered or services performed hereunder 
within a reasonable time after receipt of such goods or performance of such services. Such notice 
of rejection will state the respects in which the goods do not substantially conform to their 
specifications. If HACSB does not provide such notice of rejection within thirty (30) days, unless 
otherwise specified in the Statement of Work, of delivery, such goods and services will be deemed 
to have been accepted. Acceptance by HACSB will be final and irreversible, except as it relates to 
latent defects, fraud, and gross mistakes amounting to fraud. Acceptance shall not be construed to 
waive any warranty rights that HACSB might have at law or by express reservation in this 
Agreement with respect to any nonconformity.  

9. SAMPLES: 

a. Samples of items may be required by HACSB for inspection and specification testing and must be 
furnished free of expense to HACSB. The samples furnished must be identical in all respects to the 
products bid and/or specified in the Agreement.

b. Samples, if not destroyed by tests, may, upon request made at the time the sample is furnished, be 
returned at Contractor’s expense. 

10. WARRANTY: Unless otherwise specified, the warranties contained in this Agreement begin after
acceptance has occurred.

a. Contractor warrants that goods and services furnished hereunder will conform to the requirements 
of this Agreement (including all descriptions, specifications and drawings made a part hereof), and 
such goods will be merchantable, fit for their intended purposes, free from all defects in materials 
and workmanship and to the extent not manufactured pursuant to detailed designs furnished by 
HACSB, free from defects in design.  HACSB’s approval of designs or specifications furnished by 
Contractor shall not relieve Contractor of its obligations under this warranty.  

b. All warranties, including special warranties specified elsewhere herein, shall inure to HACSB, its 
successors, assigns, customer agencies and users of the goods or services.  

11. SAFETY AND ACCIDENT PREVENTION: In performing the Work under this Agreement on HACSB
premises, Contractor shall conform to any specific safety requirements contained in the Agreement or as
required by law or regulation. Contractor shall take any additional precautions as HACSB may reasonably
require for safety and accident prevention purposes. Any violation of such rules and requirements, unless
promptly corrected, shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement in accordance with the default
provisions hereof.

12. ACCIDENT PREVENTION: Precaution shall be exercised at all times for the protection of persons
(including employees) and property.  The safety provisions of applicable laws, building and construction
codes shall be observed.  Machinery, equipment, and other hazards shall be guarded or eliminated in
accordance with the safety provisions issued by the Industrial Accident Commission of the State of
California.

13. INSURANCE: Contractor shall not commence Work under this Agreement until all insurance required under
this paragraph has been obtained and such insurance has been approved by HACSB, nor shall Contractor
allow any subcontractor to commence work on a subcontract until all similar insurance required of the

Page 42 of 95101



subcontractor has been so obtained and approved.  Contractor shall furnish HACSB with satisfactory proof
of the carriage of insurance required, and there shall be a specific contractual liability endorsement 
extending Contractor's coverage to include the contractual liability assumed by Contractor pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Any policy of insurance required of Contractor under this Agreement shall also contain an 
endorsement providing that thirty (30) days' notice must be given in writing to HACSB of any pending 
change in the limits of liability or of any cancellation or modification of the policy.  All insurance required 
hereunder shall be issued by a California admitted insurance carrier. 

The insurance required to be carried by Contractor hereunder shall include:

a. Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance.  Contractor shall take out and 
maintain during the entire term of this Agreement, Workers' Compensation Insurance and 
Employer's Liability Insurance for all of employees employed at the site of the project and, in case 
any work is sublet, Contractor shall require the subcontractor similarly to provide Workers' 
Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of the latter's employees unless 
such employees are covered by the protection afforded by Contractor. 

In signing this Agreement, Contractor makes the following certification, required by Section 1861 of 
the Labor Code: 

"I am aware of the provision of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require 
every employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of 
this contract."

b. General Liability Insurance.  Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain personal injury 
liability and property damage insurance for the entire term of this Agreement in the amount of One 
Million and No/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence.  Such coverage shall include, but shall 
not be limited to, protection against claims arising from, and damage to property resulting from, 
activities contemplated under this Agreement.  Such insurance shall be with insurers and under 
forms of policies satisfactory in all respects to HACSB and shall provide that notice must be given 
to HACSB at least thirty (30) days prior to cancellation or material change.  The following 
endorsements shall be attached to the policy: 

Policy shall cover on an "occurrence" basis.  Policy must cover personal injuries as well as bodily 
injuries.  Exclusion of contractual liability must be eliminated from personal injury endorsement.  

Broad form property damage endorsement must be attached.  HACSB is to be named as an 
additional insured on any contracts of insurance under this paragraph b.  Coverage shall not extend 
to any indemnity coverage for the active negligence of the additional insured in any case where an 
agreement to indemnify the additional insured would be invalid under Subdivision (b) of Section 
2782 of the Civil Code.  The policies of insurance shall be considered primary insurance before any 
policies of insurance maintained by HACSB. Contractor shall be named as an additional insured 
with respect to such general liability insurance policy. 

c. Automobile Liability.  Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain automobile insurance 
for the period covered by the Contract in the amount of One Million and No/100 Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) combined single limit coverage. Contractor shall be named as an additional 
insured with respect to such automobile liability insurance policy. 

14. FORCE MAJEURE:  Contractor shall be excused for performing the Work hereunder in the event that
Contractor is unable to perform the Work for one of the following reasons:

a. Acts of God or of the public enemy, and  

b. Acts of the federal, state or local government in either its sovereign or contractual capacity. 

Such delay shall be for the period of time that Contractor is delayed from performing the Work as a direct
result of one of the foregoing reasons.  Contractor shall provide HACSB notice within three (3) days of any
such force majeure event.

15. CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY FOR INJURY TO PERSONS OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY:

a. Contractor shall be liable for damages arising out of injury to the person and/or damage to the 
property of HACSB, employees of HACSB, persons designated by HACSB for training, or any other 
person(s) other than agents or employees of Contractor, designated by HACSB for any purpose, 
prior to, during, or subsequent to delivery, installation, acceptance, and use of the goods either at 

Page 43 of 95102



Contractor’s site or at HACSB’s place of business, provided that the injury or damage was caused 
by the fault or negligence of Contractor.  

b. Contractor shall not be liable for damages arising out of or caused by an alteration or an 
attachment not made or installed by Contractor, or for damage to alterations or attachments that 
may result from the normal operation and maintenance of the goods provided by Contractor during 
the Agreement.

16. INVOICES: Unless otherwise specified, invoices shall be sent to the address set forth herein. Invoices shall
be submitted in triplicate and shall include the contract number; release order number (if applicable); item
number; unit price, extended item price and invoice total amount. The State of California ad other sales tax
and/or use tax shall be itemized separately and added to each invoice as applicable.

17. REQUIRED PAYMENT DATE: Payment will be made in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement
for work completed through the date of invoice. HACSB will pay properly submitted, undisputed invoices not
more than thirty (30) days after (i) the date of acceptance of goods or performance of services; or (ii) receipt
of an undisputed invoice, whichever is later.

18. TAXES: HACSB will only pay for any state or local sales or use taxes on the services rendered or goods
supplied to HACSB pursuant to this Agreement.

19. NEWLY MANUFACTURED GOODS: All goods furnished under this contract shall be newly manufactured
goods; used or reconditioned goods are prohibited, unless otherwise specified.

20. NEWS RELEASES: Unless otherwise exempted, news releases pertaining to this Agreement shall not be
made without prior written approval of HACSB.

21. PATENT, COPYRIGHT and TRADE SECRET INDEMNITY:

a. Contractor shall hold HACSB, its officers, agents and employees, harmless from liability of any 
nature or kind, including costs and expenses, for infringement or use of any copyrighted or 
uncopyrighted composition, secret process, patented or unpatented invention, article or appliance 
furnished or used in connection with the Agreement.

b. Contractor may be required to furnish a bond to HACSB against any and all loss, damage, costs, 
expenses, claims and liability for patent, copyright and trade secret infringement.  

c. Contractor, at its own expense, shall defend any action brought against HACSB to the extent that 
such action is based upon a claim that the goods or software supplied by Contractor or the 
operation of such goods pursuant to a current version of Contractor supplied operating software 
infringes a United States patent or copyright or violates a trade secret. Contractor shall pay those 
costs and damages finally awarded against HACSB in any such action. Such defense and payment 
shall be conditioned on the following:  

i. That Contractor shall be notified within a reasonable time in writing by HACSB of any 
notice of such claim; and,  

ii. That Contractor shall have the sole control of the defense of any action on such claim and 
all negotiations for its settlement or compromise; provided, however, that when principles 
of government or public law are involved, HACSB shall have the option to participate in 
such action at its own expense. 

d. Should the goods or software, or the operation thereof, become, or in Contractor's opinion are likely 
to become, the subject of a claim of infringement of a United States patent or copyright or a trade 
secret, HACSB shall permit Contractor at its option and expense either to procure for HACSB the 
right to continue using the goods or software, or to replace or modify the same so that they become 
non-infringing. If none of these options can reasonably be taken, or if the use of such goods or 
software by HACSB shall be prevented by injunction, Contractor agrees to take back such goods or 
software and make every reasonable effort to assist HACSB in procuring substitute goods or 
software. If, in the sole opinion of HACSB, the return of such infringing goods or software makes 
the retention of other goods or software acquired from Contractor under this Agreement impractical, 
HACSB shall then have the option of terminating such Agreement, or applicable portions thereof, 
without penalty or termination charge. Contractor agrees to take back such goods or software and 
refund any sums HACSB has paid Contractor. 

e. Contractor shall have no liability to HACSB under any provision of this clause with respect to any 
claim of patent, copyright or trade secret infringement which is based upon:  

Page 44 of 95103



i. The combination or utilization of goods furnished hereunder with equipment or devices not 
made or furnished by Contractor; or,  

ii. The operation of equipment furnished by Contractor under the control of any operating 
software other than, or in addition to, the current version of Contractor-supplied operating 
software; or  

iii. The modification by HACSB of the equipment furnished hereunder or of the software; or 

iv. The combination or utilization of software furnished hereunder with non-Contractor 
supplied software.  

f. Contractor certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that HACSB 
funds will not be used in the performance of this Agreement for the acquisition, operation or 
maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright laws.  

g. The foregoing states the entire liability of Contractor to HACSB with respect to infringement of 
patents, copyrights or trade secrets.  

22. STOP WORK:

a. HACSB may, at any time, by written Stop Work order (“Stop Work Order”) to Contractor, require 
Contractor to stop all, or any part, of the Work called for by this Agreement for a period up to ninety 
(90) days after the Stop Work Order is delivered to Contractor, and for any further period to which 
the parties may agree. The Stop Work Order shall be specifically identified as such and shall 
indicate it is issued under this clause. Upon receipt of the Stop Work Order, Contractor shall 
immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of costs 
allocable to the work covered by the Stop Work Order during the period of work stoppage. Within a 
period of ninety (90) days after a Stop Work Order is delivered to Contractor, or within any 
extension of that period to which the parties shall have agreed, HACSB shall either:  

i. Cancel the Stop Work Order; or 

ii. Terminate the Work covered by the Stop Work Order as provided for in the termination for 
default or the voluntary termination provision of this Agreement.

iii. If a Stop Work Order issued under this clause is canceled or the period of the Stop Work 
Order or any extension thereof expires, Contractor shall resume work. HACSB shall make 
an equitable adjustment in the delivery schedule, the price, or both, and the Agreement
shall be modified, in writing, accordingly, if:  

1. The Stop Work Order results in an increase in the time required for, or in 
Contractor’s cost properly allocable to the performance of any part of this 
Agreement; and  

2. Contractor asserts its right to an equitable adjustment within thirty (30) days after 
the end of the period of work stoppage; provided that if HACSB decides the facts 
justify the action, HACSB may receive and act upon a proposal submitted at any 
time before final payment under this Agreement.

b. If a Stop Work Order is not canceled and the Work covered by the Stop Work Order is terminated 
in accordance with the provision entitled Voluntary Termination, HACSB shall allow reasonable 
costs resulting from the Stop Work Order in arriving at the termination settlement.  

c. HACSB shall not be liable to Contractor for loss of profits because of a Stop Work Order issued 
under this clause.  

23. COVENANT AGAINST GRATUITIES: Contractor warrants that it complies with the Copeland “Anti-
Kickback” Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3), and
that no gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) were offered or given by Contractor, or
any agent or representative of Contractor, to any officer or employee of HACSB with a view toward securing
the Agreement or securing favorable treatment with respect to any determinations concerning the
performance of the Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, HACSB shall have the right to
terminate the Agreement, either in whole or in part, and any loss or damage sustained by HACSB in
procuring on the open market any items which Contractor agreed to supply shall be borne and paid for by
Contractor. The rights and remedies of HACSB provided in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or in equity.

Page 45 of 95104



24. COMPLIANCE WITH DAVIS-BACON ACT: For construction agreements in excess of $2,000, Contractor
certifies that it complies with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a-7) as supplemented by
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3).  Unless otherwise indicated in the Statement of Work,
Contractors of HACSB are required, pursuant to 24 CFR 85.36(h)(5), to pay Davis-Bacon wage rates for all
“construction contracts and related subcontracts in excess of $2000,” which means, for such jobs, the wage
rates paid must be equal to or exceed the listed applicable Davis-Bacon wage rate.  Compliance with this
clause also means that Contractor may be subject to completing certain reports and to audits by HACSB
and the Department of Housing and Urban Development.  Such reports and information relating to
compliance can be obtained at the Internet website: http://www.gpo.gov/davisbacon/.  Contractor shall
include the wage provisions of this clause in all subcontracts to perform work under this Agreement.

HACSB shall have the right to audit Contractor, at any time, in order to ensure compliance with the
requirements of this Section.  In connection therewith, Contractor agrees to maintain accurate books and
records in connection with the Work, and all payments made or received by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement, and to provide such information to HACSB, within five (5) business days of any request by
HACSB.  In addition, Contractor shall provide, upon two (2) business days request, information to HACSB of
each and every employee retained by Contractor in connection with the Work, and shall permit HACSB to
interview any such employees, contractors or subcontractors.  Contractor agrees that all maintenance
laborers and mechanics employed by it in connection with the performance of the Work shall be paid
unconditionally and not less often than semi-monthly, and without subsequent deduction (except as
otherwise provided by law or regulations), the full amount of wages due at time of payment computed at
rates not less then those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Housing and Urban
Development.  Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate on the wage
determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill.  Laborers or
mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for
each classification for the time actually worked therein; provided, that Contractor’s payroll records accurately
set forth the time spent in each classification in which the work is performed.  The wage determination,
including any additional classifications and wage rates approved by HUD shall be posted at all times by
Contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the Work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be
easily seen by the workers.

25. CALIFORNIA PREVAILING WAGE (IF AGREEMENT PRICE IS LESS THAN $2,000): In the event the
Agreement Price is less than $2,000, Contractor agrees to comply with all prevailing rate requirements of the
California Labor Code.  HACSB shall have the right to audit and inspect Contractor’s books and records,
and interview Contractor’s employees, contractors and subcontractors, all according to the same provisions
set forth in Section 26 above.

26. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY: For all construction agreements in excess of $10,000, Contractor
certifies its compliance with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled “Equal Employment
Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and as supplemented in
Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60).

27. NONDISCRIMINATION CLAUSE:

a. During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully 
discriminate, harass or allow harassment, against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of sex, sexual orientation, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, disability 
(including HIV and AIDS), medical condition (cancer), age, marital status, and denial of family care 
leave. Contractor and subcontractors shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of their
employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and harassment. 
Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and 
Housing Act (Government Code, Section 12990 et seq.) and the applicable regulations 
promulgated thereunder (California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 7285.0 et seq.). The 
applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing Government 
Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of 
Regulations are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set 
forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this 
clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement. 

b. Contractor shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all 
subcontracts to perform work under the Agreement.

28. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor swears under penalty of perjury
that no more than one final, unappealable finding of contempt of court by a federal court has been issued
against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of Contractor’s failure to

Page 46 of 95105



comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. This provision is required by, and shall be 
construed in accordance with, Public Contract Code Section 10296. 

29. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies under penalty of perjury under the laws
of the State of California that Contractor will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act
of 1990 (Government Code Section 8350 et seq.) and will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the
following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, 
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken 
against employees for violations, as required by Government Code Section 8355(a).  

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program as required by Government Code Section 8355(b) to 
inform employees about all of the following:  

i. the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;  

ii. the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;  

iii. any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and, 

iv. penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations. 

c. Provide, as required by Government Code Section 8355(c), that every employee who works on the 
proposed or resulting agreement:

i. will receive a copy of the company's drug-free policy statement; and,  

ii. will agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment 
on the agreement.

30. RECYCLING: Contractor shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, compliance with Public Contract
Code Section 12200, in products, materials, goods, or supplies offered or sold to HACSB regardless of
whether the product meets the requirements of Section 12209.

31. LEAD BASED PAINT PROHIBITION: For any contract for construction or rehabilitation, Contractor certifies
that it shall comply with 24 CFR Part 35 prohibiting the use of lead-based paint.

32. COMPLIANCE WITH CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT: For agreements in
excess of $2,000, and in excess of $2500 for other agreements which involve the employment of mechanics
or laborers, Contractor certifies that it complies with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and
Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR
Part 5).

33. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT: For any contract in excess of $100,000, Contractor acknowledges
in accordance with Public Contract Code Section 7110, that:

a. Contractor recognizes the importance of child and family support obligations and shall fully comply 
with all applicable State of California and Federal laws relating to child and family support 
enforcement, including, but not limited to, disclosure of information and compliance with earnings 
assignment orders, as provided in Chapter 8 (commencing with Section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 
9 of the Family Code; and  

b. Contractor, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings assignment orders of all 
employees and is providing the names of all new employees to the New Hire Registry maintained 
by the California Employment Development Department.  

34. ELECTRONIC WASTE RECYCLING ACT OF 2003: Contractor certifies that it complies with the
requirements of the Electronic Waste Recycling Act of 2003, Chapter 8.5, Part 3 of Division 30, commencing
with Section 42460 of the Public Resources Code, relating to hazardous and solid waste. Contractor shall
maintain documentation and provide reasonable access to its records and documents that evidence
compliance.

35. ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS: For agreements in excess of $100,000, Contractor certifies that it
complies with the requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857(h)), section
508 of the Clean Water Act (3 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency
regulations (40 C.F.R. part 15).

36. USE TAX COLLECTION: In accordance with PCC Section 10295.1, Contractor certifies that it complies with
the requirements of Section 7101 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. Contractor further certifies that it will

Page 47 of 95106



immediately advise HACSB of any change in its retailer’s seller’s permit or certification of registration or 
applicable affiliate’s seller’s permit or certificate of registration as described in subdivision (a) of PCC
Section 10295.1.  

37. DOMESTIC PARTNERS: For agreements over $100,000 executed or amended after January 1, 2007,
Contractor certifies that Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.

Page 48 of 95107



Exhibit “ ”

Page 49 of 95108



PERFORMANCE – PAYMENT BOND 

KNOW ALL ME BY THESE PRESENTS:  That we  (Contractor) 

, a (corporation) hereinafter called “Principal” and 

 (Surety) of , State of    , hereinafter 

called the “Surety”, are held and firmly bound unto  (Owner) 

of (City and State), hereinafter called “Owner” in the penal sum of 

 Dollars ($    ) in lawful money of the 

United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 

administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that Whereas, the Principal entered into a certain contract with the 

Owner, dated the    day of    , 20____, a copy of which is hereto attached and made a part 

hereof for the construction of:   

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Principal shall well, truly and faithfully perform its duties, all the undertakings, covenants, 

terms, conditions, and agreements of said contract during the original term thereof, and any extension thereof which 

nay be granted to the Owner, which or without notice to the Surety, and if he shall satisfy all claims and demands 

incurred under such contract, and shall fully indemnify and save harmless the Owner from all costs and damages 

which it may suffer by reason of failure to do so, and shall reimburse and repay the Owner all outlay and expense 

which the Owner may incur in making good any default, and shall promptly make payment to all persons, firms, 

subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the prosecution of the work provided 

fir in such contract, and any authorized extension or modification thereof, including all amounts due for materials, 

lubricants, oil, gasoline, coal and coke, repairs on machinery, equipment and tools, consumed or used in connection 

with the construction of such work, and all insurance premiums on said work, and for all labor, performed in such 

work whether by subcontractor or otherwise, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force and 

effect. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said Surety, for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, 

extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the 

specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive 

notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the 

specifications. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the Owner and Contractor shall abridge the right of any 

beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied. 

[END – SIGNATURES FOLLOW NEXT PAGE] 

Page 50 of 95109



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed in two (2) counterparts, each one of shall be deemed an 

original, this the     day of    , 20____.   

ATTEST: 

(Principal) Secretary

(Seal)

Witness as to Principal

(Address – Zip Code)

“PRINCIPAL”

BY:

NAME:

(Surety) Secretary

(Seal)

Witness as to Surety

(Address – Zip Code)

“SURETY”

BY:  

NAME:

ITS:  Attorney-in-Fact

(Address – Zip Code)

NOTE:  Date of Bond must not be prior to date of Contract.  If Contractor is a Partnership, all partners should execute 

bond.   

Page 51 of 95110



Page 52 of 95111



H658-000 -- 180800.1 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO

715 E. BRIER DRIVE

SAN BERNARDINO, CA 92408-2841

(909) 890-0644  FAX (909) 890-4618

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------

STIPULATION OF LIEN

Contract Number: PC1232 Los Olivos, Electrical Panel Upgrade

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

1. The undersigned certifies that all contract work executed under the aforesaid Contract Number PC1232 will
be performed in accordance with the contract terms thereof and there will be no claims of laborers or mechanics for
unpaid wages arising out of the performance of said contract.

2. That, in consideration of the payment of the amount of any contract awarded, the undersigned does hereby
release the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino from any and all claims arising from any contract
awarded by this process.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has signed and sealed this instrument this
______ day of __________________, 20_____.

By:

Title:

NAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR:

Sworn before me this __________ day of __________________, 20____.

(Notary Public)

My Commission Expires
(Date)

Page 53 of 95112



Exhibit “ ”
Federal Labor Standards Provisions 

(form HUD-4010)

Page 54 of 95113



Applicabil ity

The Project or  Program to which the construct ion work 

covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the 

United States of America and the fol lowing Federal  Labor 

Standards Provisions are included in this Contract 

pursuant to the provisions applicable to such Federal  

assistance.

A.  1.  (i )  Minimum Wages.  All laborers and mechanics 

employed or working upon the site of the work, wil l  be paid 

uncondit ionally and not less often than once a week, and 

without subsequent deduct ion or rebate on any account 

(except such payroll  deduct ions as are permit ted by 

regulat ions issued by the Secretary of Labor under the 

Copeland Act (29 CFR Part  3),  the fu l l  amount of wages 

and bona f ide fr inge benef its (or cash equivalents thereof)  

due at t ime of payment computed at rates not less than 

those contained in the wage determinat ion of the 

Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a 

part  hereof,  regardless of any contractual relat ionship 

which may be al leged to exist  between the contractor and 

such laborers and mechanics.  Contribut ions made or 

costs reasonably ant ic ipated for bona f ide fr inge benef its 

under Sect ion l(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf  of  

laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such 

laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 

5.5(a)(1)(iv);  also, regular contribut ions made or costs 

incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often 

than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which 

cover the part icular weekly period, are deemed to be 

construct ively made or incurred during such weekly period.

Such laborers and mechanics shall  be paid the appropriate 

wage rate and fr inge benef i ts on the wage determinat ion 

for the classif icat ion of work actually performed, without 

regard to ski l l ,  except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4).  

Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one 

classif icat ion may be compensated at the rate specif ied for 

each classif icat ion for the t ime actually worked therein: 

Provided, That the employer’s payrol l  records accurately 

set forth the t ime spent in each classif icat ion in which 

work is performed.  The wage determinat ion (including any 

addit ional c lassif icat ion and wage rates conformed under 

29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(i i ) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-

1321) shall be posted at al l  t imes by the contractor and its 

subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and 

accessible, place where it  can be easily seen by the 

workers.

(i i )  (a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not 

l isted in the wage determinat ion and which is to be 

employed under the contract shall  be classif ied in 

conformance with the wage determinat ion.  HUD shall 

approve an addit ional c lassif icat ion and wage rate and 

fr inge benef its therefor only when the fol lowing criter ia 

have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classif icat ion 

requested is not performed by a classif icat ion in the wage 

determinat ion; and

(2)  The classif ication is  ut i l ized in the area by the 

construct ion industry;  and

(3)  The proposed wage rate, including any bona f ide 

fr inge benefits,  bears a reasonable relat ionship to the 

wage rates contained in the wage determinat ion.

(b)  I f  the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be 

employed in the classif icat ion (i f  known), or their  

representat ives, and HUD or i ts designee agree on the 

classif icat ion and wage rate ( including the amount 

designated for fr inge benef its where appropriate),  a report  

of the act ion taken shall be sent by HUD or i ts designee to 

the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Divis ion,  

Employment Standards Administrat ion, U.S. Department of 

Labor, Washington, D.C.  20210.  The Administrator,  or an 

authorized representat ive, wi l l  approve, modify, or  

disapprove every addit ional  c lassif icat ion act ion within 30 

days of receipt and so advise HUD or i ts designee or wi l l  

not i fy HUD or i ts designee within the 30-day period that 

addit ional t ime is necessary. (Approved by the Off ice of 

Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-

0140.)

(c)  In the event the contractor,  the laborers or mechanics 

to be employed in the classif icat ion or their  

representat ives, and HUD or i ts designee do not agree on 

the proposed classif icat ion and wage rate (including the 

amount designated for f r inge benef its,  where appropriate),  

HUD or i ts designee shal l  refer the quest ions, including 

the views of al l  interested part ies and the recommendation 

of HUD or i ts designee, to the Administrator for  

determinat ion.  The Administrator,  or an authorized 

representative, wi l l  issue a determination within 30 days of  

receipt and so advise HUD or i ts designee or wil l  not i fy 

HUD or i ts designee within the 30-day period that 

addit ional t ime is necessary. (Approved by the Off ice of 

Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 

1215-0140.)

(d) The wage rate ( including fr inge benef i ts where 

appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs 

(1)(i i ) (b) or (c) of this paragraph, shal l  be paid to al l  

workers performing work in the classif icat ion under th is 

contract from the f irst  day on which work is performed in 

the classif icat ion. 

(i i i )   Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the 

contract for  a class of  laborers or mechanics includes a 

fr inge benef i t  which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the 

contractor shall  either pay the benef it  as stated in the 

wage determinat ion or shall  pay another bona f ide fr inge 

benef it  or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv)  I f  the contractor does not make payments to a trustee 

or other third person, the contractor may consider as part  

Page 55 of 95114



of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any 

costs reasonably ant ic ipated in providing bona f ide fr inge 

benef its under a plan or program, Provided, That the 

Secretary of Labor has found, upon the writ ten request of 

the contractor,  that the appl icable standards of the Davis-

Bacon Act have been met.   The Secretary of Labor may 

require the contractor to set aside in a separate account 

assets for the meeting of obligat ions under the plan or 

program. (Approved by the Off ice of Management and 

Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

2. Withholding.  HUD or i ts designee shal l  upon i ts own

act ion or upon writ ten request of an authorized 

representat ive of the Department of Labor withhold or 

cause to be withheld from the contractor under this 

contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime 

contractor,  or any other Federally-assisted contract 

subject to Davis-Bacon prevail ing wage requirements, 

which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the 

accrued payments or advances as may be considered 

necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including 

apprent ices, trainees and helpers, employed by the 

contractor or any subcontractor the ful l  amount of wages 

required by the contract In the event of fai lure to pay any 

laborer or mechanic, including any apprent ice, trainee or 

helper,  employed or working on the site of the work, al l  or 

part  of  the wages required by the contract,  HUD or i ts 

designee may, after wr it ten not ice to the contractor,  

sponsor,  applicant,  or owner, take such act ion as may be 

necessary to cause the suspension of any further 

payment,  advance, or guarantee of funds unt i l  such 

violat ions have ceased.  HUD or i ts designee may, after 

writ ten not ice to the contractor,  disburse such amounts 

withheld for and on account of the contractor or 

subcontractor to the respect ive employees to whom they 

are due.  The Comptrol ler General shall  make such 

disbursements in the case of direct Davis-Bacon Act 

contracts.

3. (i)  Payrolls and basic records.  Payrol ls and basic

records relat ing thereto shal l  be maintained by the 

contractor during the course of the work preserved for a 

period of three years thereafter for al l  laborers and 

mechanics working at the si te of the work.  Such records 

shall  contain the name, address, and social secur i ty 

number of each such worker,  his or her correct 

c lassif icat ion, hourly rates of wages paid ( including rates 

of contribut ions or costs ant ic ipated for bona f ide fr inge 

benef its or cash equivalents  thereof of the types described 

in Sect ion l (b)(2)(B) of the Davis-bacon Act),  dai ly and 

weekly number of hours worked, deduct ions made and 

actual wages paid.  Whenever the Secretary of Labor has 

found under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any 

laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs 

reasonably ant ic ipated in providing benef its under a plan 

or program described in Sect ion l(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-

Bacon Act,  the contractor shall  maintain records which 

show that the commitment to provide such benef its is 

enforceable, that the plan or program is f inancial ly 

responsible, and that the plan or program has been 

communicated in writ ing to the laborers or mechanics 

affected, and records which show the costs ant ic ipated or 

the actual cost incurred in providing such benef i ts. 

Contractors employing apprent ices or trainees under 

approved programs shall  maintain wr it ten evidence of the 

registrat ion of  apprent iceship programs and cert i f icat ion of  

trainee programs, the registrat ion of the apprent ices and 

trainees, and the rat ios and wage rates prescribed in the 

applicable programs. (Approved by the Off ice of 

Management and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 

1215-0140 and 1215-0017.)

(i i )  (a)  The contractor shal l  submit weekly for  each week 

in which any contract work is performed a copy of al l  

payrol ls to HUD or i ts designee if  the agency is a party to 

the contract,  but i f  the agency is not such a party,  the 

contractor wil l  submit the payrol ls to the applicant 

sponsor, or owner,  as the case may be,  for  transmission to 

HUD or i ts designee.  The payrol ls submitted shal l  set out 

accurately and completely al l  of  the information required 

to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i) except that ful l  

social security numbers and home addresses shall  not be 

included on weekly transmittals.   Instead the payrol ls shall  

only need to include an individually ident ifying number for  

each employee (e.g.,  the last four digits of the employee’s 

social security number).   The required weekly payrol l  

information may be submitted in any form desired. 

Optional  Form WH-347 is available for th is purpose from 

the Wage and Hour Divis ion Web site at 

http:/ /www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or i ts 

successor site.   The prime contractor is responsible for  

the submission of copies of payrol ls by al l  subcontractors. 

Contractors and subcontractors shall  maintain the ful l  

social security number and current address of each 

covered worker,  and shall provide them upon request to 

HUD or i ts designee if  the agency is a party to the 

contract,  but i f  the agency is not such a party,  the 

contractor wil l  submit the payrol ls to the applicant 

sponsor, or owner,  as the case may be,  for  transmission to 

HUD or i ts designee, the contractor,  or the Wage and Hour 

Divis ion of the Department of Labor for  purposes of an 

invest igation or audit of compliance with prevail ing wage 

requirements.  I t is not a violat ion of this subparagraph for 

a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide 

addresses and social security numbers to the prime 

contractor for i ts own records, without weekly submission 

to HUD or i ts designee.  (Approved by the Off ice of 

Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 

1215-0149.)  

(b)  Each payrol l  submitted shall  be accompanied by a 

“Statement of Compliance,”  s igned by the contractor or 

subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises 

the payment of the persons employed under the contract 

and shall  cert i fy the fol lowing:

(1) That the payroll  for the payroll  period contains the 

information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5 

(a)(3)(i i ),  the appropriate information is being maintained 

under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i),  and that such information is 

correct and complete;

Page 56 of 95115



(2)  That each laborer or mechanic ( including each helper,  

apprent ice, and trainee) employed on the contract during 

the payroll  period has been paid the ful l  weekly wages 

earned, without rebate, either di rect ly or indi rect ly,  and 

that no deduct ions have been made either di rect ly or 

indirect ly from the ful l  wages earned, other than 

permissible deduct ions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3;

(3)  That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less 

than the applicable wage rates and fr inge benef its or cash 

equivalents for the classif icat ion of work performed, as 

specif ied in the applicable wage determinat ion 

incorporated into the contract.

(c)  The weekly submission of a properly executed 

cert i f icat ion set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form 

WH-347 shall sat isfy the requirement for submission of the 

“Statement of Compliance” required by subparagraph 

A.3.(i i )(b).

(d)  The fals if icat ion of any of the above cert i f icat ions may 

subject the contractor or subcontractor to civi l  or c riminal  

prosecut ion under Sect ion 1001 of Tit le 18 and Sect ion 

231 of Tit le 31 of the United States Code.

(i i i )  The contractor or subcontractor shall  make the 

records required under subparagraph A.3.(i) available for 

inspect ion, copying, or transcript ion by authorized 

representat ives of HUD or i ts designee or the Department 

of Labor, and shall permit such representat ives to 

interview employees during working hours on the job.   I f 

the contractor or subcontractor fai ls to submit the required 

records or to make them available, HUD or i ts designee 

may, after writ ten not ice to the contractor,  sponsor,  

applicant or owner, take such act ion as may be necessary 

to cause the suspension of any further payment,  advance, 

or guarantee of funds.  Furthermore, fai lure to submit the 

required records upon request or to make such records 

available may be grounds for debarment act ion pursuant to 

29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i)  Apprentices.  Apprentices wil l  be permitted to work at 

less than the predetermined rate for the work they 

performed when they are employed pursuant to and 

individual ly registered in a bona f ide apprent iceship 

program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, 

Employment and Training Administrat ion, Off ice of  

Apprent iceship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or  

with a State Apprent iceship Agency recognized by the 

Off ice, or i f  a person is employed in his or her f i rst  90 

days of probat ionary employment as an apprent ice in such 

an apprent iceship program, who is not individually 

registered in the program, but who has been cert i f ied by 

the Off ice of Apprent iceship Training, Employer and Labor 

Services or a State Apprent iceship Agency (where 

appropriate) to be el igible for probat ionary employment as 

an apprent ice.  The al lowable rat io of apprent ices to 

journeymen on the job site in any craft  c lassif icat ion shall 

not be greater than the rat io permit ted to the contractor as 

to the ent ire work force under the registered program.  Any 

worker l isted on a payrol l  at  an apprent ice wage rate, who 

is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above,  

shall  be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 

wage determinat ion for the classif icat ion of work actual ly 

performed.  In addit ion, any apprent ice performing work on 

the job site in excess of the rat io permit ted under the 

registered program shall be paid not less than the 

applicable wage rate on the wage determinat ion for the 

work actually performed.  Where a contractor is performing 

construct ion on a project in a locali ty other than that  in 

which its program is registered, the rat ios and wage rates 

(expressed in percentages of the journeyman’s hourly 

rate) specif ied in the contractor’s or subcontractor’s 

registered program shall be observed.  Every apprent ice 

must be paid at not less than the rate specif ied in the 

registered program for the apprent ice’s level of progress, 

expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate 

specif ied in the applicable wage determinat ion. 

Apprent ices shall  be paid fr inge benef its in accordance 

with the provisions of the apprent iceship program.  I f the 

apprent iceship program does not specify fr inge benef i ts, 

apprent ices must be paid the ful l  amount of f r inge benef its 

l isted on the wage determinat ion for the applicable 

classif icat ion.  I f  the Administrator determines that a 

dif ferent pract ice prevails for the appl icable apprent ice 

classif icat ion, fr inges shall  be paid in accordance with that 

determinat ion.  In the event the Off ice of Apprent iceship 

Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State 

Apprent iceship Agency recognized by the Off ice, 

withdraws approval of an apprent iceship program, the 

contractor wil l  no longer be permitted to ut i l ize 

apprent ices at less than the applicable predetermined rate 

for the work performed unt i l  an acceptable program is 

approved.

(i i )  Trainees.  Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16,  

trainees wil l  not be permitted to work at less than the 

predetermined rate for  the work performed unless they are 

employed pursuant ‘ , to and individually registered in a 

program which has received prior approval,  evidenced by 

formal cert i f icat ion by the U.S. Department of Labor, 

Employment and Training Administrat ion.  The rat io of 

t rainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater 

than permit ted under the plan approved by the

Employment and Training Administrat ion.  Every trainee 

must be paid at not less than the rate specif ied in the 

approved program for the trainee’s level of progress, 

expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate 

specif ied in the appl icable wage determinat ion.  Trainees 

shall  be paid fr inge benef its in accordance with the 

provisions of the trainee program.  I f the trainee program 

does not mention fr inge benef its,  t rainees shall  be paid 

the ful l  amount of f r inge benef its l isted on the wage 

determinat ion unless the Administrator of the Wage and 

Hour Divis ion determines that there is an apprent iceship 

program associated with the corresponding journeyman 

wage rate on the wage determinat ion which provides for 

less than ful l  f r inge benef i ts for apprent ices.  Any 

employee l isted on the payrol l  at  a trainee rate who is not 

registered and part ic ipat ing in a training plan approved by 

Page 57 of 95116



the Employment and Training Administrat ion shall  be paid 

not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 

determinat ion for  the work actually performed.  In addit ion, 

any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of 

the rat io permit ted under the registered program shall be 

paid not less than the appl icable wage rate on the wage 

determinat ion for the work actually performed.  In the 

event the Employment and Training Administrat ion 

withdraws approval of a tra ining program, the contractor 

wi l l  no longer be permit ted to ut i l ize trainees at less than 

the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed 

unt i l  an acceptable program is approved.

(i i i )  Equal employment opportunity.  The ut i l izat ion of 

apprent ices, trainees and journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 

shall  be in conformity with the equal employment 

opportunity requirements of Execut ive Order 11246, as 

amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.  The

contractor shall  comply with the requirements of 29 CFR 

Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract

6. Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor wil l

insert  in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 

subparagraphs 1 through 11 in th is paragraph A and such 

other clauses as HUD or i ts designee may by appropr iate 

instruct ions require, and a copy of the applicable 

prevail ing wage decision, and also a clause requiring the 

subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower t ier  

subcontracts.  The prime contractor shall  be responsible 

for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower t ier  

subcontractor with al l  the contract c lauses in this 

paragraph.

7. Contract termination; debarment.  A breach of the

contract c lauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for 

terminat ion of the contract and for debarment  as a 

contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 

5.12.

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.

All rul ings and interpretat ions of the Davis-Bacon and 

Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are 

herein incorporated by reference in this contract

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes 

aris ing out of the labor standards provisions of this 

contract shall  not be subject to the general disputes 

clause of this contract.   Such disputes shall  be resolved in 

accordance with the procedures of the Department of 

Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes 

within the meaning of this c lause include disputes between 

the contractor (or any of i ts subcontractors) and HUD or 

i ts designee, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the 

employees or their representat ives.

10. (i)  Certification of Eligibil ity.  By entering into th is

contract the contractor cert i f ies that neither i t  (nor he or 

she) nor any person or f i rm who has an interest in the 

contractor’s f i rm is a person or f i rm ineligible to be 

awarded Government contracts by virtue of Sect ion 3(a) of 

the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be 

awarded HUD contracts or part ic ipate in HUD programs 

pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

(i i ) No part  of this contract shall  be subcontracted to any 

person or f i rm ineligible for award of a Government 

contract by virtue of  Sect ion 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act 

or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or 

part ic ipate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

(i i i )  The penalty for making false statements is prescribed 

in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.  Addit ional ly,  

U.S. Criminal Code, Sect ion 1 01 0, Tit le 18, U.S.C.,  

“Federal Housing Administrat ion transact ions”,  provides in 

part :  “Whoever, for the purpose of .  .  .  inf luencing in any 

way the act ion of such Administrat ion.. . . .  makes, utters or 

publ ishes any statement knowing the same to be false. . . . . 

shall  be f ined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned not 

more than two years, or both.”

11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by

Employees.   No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, 

salary, or other labor standards provisions of this Contract

are applicable shall  be discharged or in any other manner 

discriminated against by the Contractor or any 

subcontractor because such employee has f i led any 

complaint or inst i tuted or caused to be inst i tuted any 

proceeding or has test i f ied or is about to test i fy in any 

proceeding under or relat ing to the labor standards 

applicable under this Contract to his employer.

B.  Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.  The 

provisions of this paragraph B are applicable where the amount of the 

prime contract exceeds $100,000.  As used in this paragraph, the 

terms “laborers” and “mechanics” include watchmen and guards.

(1)  Overtime requirements.  No contractor or subcontractor 

contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or 

involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or 

permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which the 

individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in 

such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives 

compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic 

rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such 

workweek.

(2)  Violation; l iability for unpaid wages; l iquidated 

damages.  In the event of any violat ion of the clause set 

forth in subparagraph (1) of  this paragraph, the contractor 

and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall  be l iable 

for the unpaid wages.  In addit ion, such contractor and 

subcontractor shall  be l iable to the United States (in the 

case of work done under contract for the Distr ict  of  

Columbia or a terri tory,  to such District  or to such 

terri tory),  for  l iquidated damages.  Such l iquidated 

damages shall  be computed with respect to each individual 

laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, 

employed in violat ion of  the clause set forth in 

subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of $10 for each 

calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to 

work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment 

of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in sub 

paragraph (1) of this paragraph.

Page 58 of 95117



(3)  Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated 

damages.  HUD or i ts designee shal l  upon i ts own act ion 

or upon writ ten request of an authorized representat ive of 

the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, 

f rom any moneys payable on account of work performed by 

the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or  

any other Federal  contract with the same prime contract, 

or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the 

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act which is 

held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be 

determined to be necessary to sat isfy any l iabi l i t ies of 

such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and 

l iquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in 

subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.

(4)  Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor shall  

insert  in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in 

subparagraph (1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a 

clause requiring the subcontractors to include these 

clauses in any lower t ier subcontracts.  The prime 

contractor shall  be responsible for compliance by any 

subcontractor or lower t ier subcontractor with the clauses 

set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this 

paragraph.

C.  Health and Safety.  The provisions of this paragraph C are 

applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds $100,000.

(1)   No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in 

surroundings or under working condit ions which are 

unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health and 

safety as determined under construct ion safety and heal th 

standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by 

regulat ion.

(2) The Contractor shall  comply with al l  regulat ions 

issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Tit le 29 Part 

1926 and fa i lure to comply may result  in imposit ion of 

sanct ions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety 

Standards Act,  (Public Law 91-54, 83 Stat 96).   40 USC 

3701 et seq.  

(3)  The contractor shall  include the provisions of this 

paragraph in every subcontract so that such provisions wi l l  

be binding on each subcontractor.   The contractor shall  

take such act ion with respect to any subcontractor as the 

Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the 

Secretary of Labor shall di rect as a means of enforcing 

such provisions.

Page 59 of 95118



Exhibit “ ” 
Applicable prevailing wages determined by the 

United States Department of Labor pursuant to the 
Davis-Bacon Act.

Page 60 of 95119



�������������������	�
�����������������������������������

�������������������	�
������������������������

����������� �����

������
����!"����#�����������

���������$�������%�&����'����%�(���'�%�#�)������%������
*��������%�����&����(����%�������*�����������+����������������
������� ����,�

#-�$	-�!$�&��(��!#.�!$(��/#(0-�!��1
�������'� ����'��� ����"�
2������������������������������
�����'�3�������4�

�����.�����-5�
���)��(�����1-(4���678%����2���"���������9�'��
 �:��,�7� ��
��������"�����������������������
����
���
���;�
�����2��	�)��<*�
���
�� ��92�
2��2��
����
�����
�9������1������"����
�������9���������4������ ����0�����"�
�%����7,��$ ��2���
����
�����
)������"��2��-(%��2��
����
���
�������"�����9�=���������"�
����� �
���������������2���9�'��
����������������������:��,�7�����2���1���2�������
�����9�'��
���������������2���9�'��������������%�� �������2�'2��4� ��
����2������������� ����'����2��
����
�����
��������"����
����,��$ ��2���
����
�����
)������"��2��-(�������

����� �
�����
�����������
�����"� ����� ����
�� �9�=���
�2��
����
�������������������2���9�'��������������%��2��

����
����������"�9�=��������2���
����� �
���������������2��
9�'�������������������2��'2��2��
� ����
����
�������� ��2�
�������>#�7,71�41�41��4�1���2��-(���������9�'������%� �������
2�'2����2����2��
� �����9�'������4,��!2��-(���������9�'�������
9���������;�������������",��/�����������2����2���-(�����������
�2����)�<����������"���� �
����
����������������"��2��
 �������')���������2����������;�
�����2��	�)��<*�
���
��
����� %�������������������"���
����
������;�
����"����2��
	�)��<*�
��#��������
��%���
�����'��2������� ��2��������>#�
7,�1�41�4<16�4,������������� ���������
����
���
��?��������������9�=�������
������������2��-(�����)��������
���999,��,')�92��')
����
��,�

@�� �
����������������/����
�����	����
������������������������������������
�����������������������������8������
�����������������������������7������
������������������������������������
����������3������������������7������
����������7�������������������������
����������6������������������7������
������������������������������������
����������8���������������3���������
������������������������������������
��������������������������8��6������
��������������������������8���������
������������������������������������

���*-���7<��������7������

����������������������������������#��������������>���'���

��������A�=����$�����������
1$�
�������2�������
����� ����
�������������'����������%����

Page 61 of 95120



����������	������
��				
�����
��	�
�	��
�����	��	���				
�����	��	�����
����	��������������	�����												�����	
����	����	����
����
				
� ���������
	��	����������
�				
!��������	���	"���	���
�
��				
�
�	��
�������
�	�
	"����				
������	�����
��	�
�	�#����
				
"���������������������������������	�$�%�												&$��'	
((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((	
	 �)*+++�(++�	+�,+&,�+&%	

																																		-����										���
���	

 �.�����	-������				
"��/��,��0����#�	��������				
��
����	�1
��#���				
����������
	"����
�				
�������
�	�������				
�������
�	���##��
�	.����
�				
�
�	�������
�	��	���				
�
�#�����
	���������	����					
�����
����	�������	"������				
����	��
���
	��.�����	��	
��������	�+�2'												&��&�	
((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((	
3	)-4 +++�(++&	+�,+&,�+�+	

																																		-����										���
���	

)���/�����5	!��.��	������			
					6��	 
�����	4�#
�������������	�&��'												&%��$	
					7��
��	4�#
������������������	�&�'%												&$�%�	
					-��������	8	��
	)��
����
�		
					4�#
�������������������������	�&��$												&$�2'	
					9�
�#��	4�#
�����������������	�&�'%												&$�$&	

		3���	"���	�����	���	��������
�	"���	���:����	���������	�
	
		)�����	4��
�	��/�	;����	9�����	����	1�"�
	�"�
��(<�
�	
		=����	<������	�
�	&(&�	��������	�)�����"	��	���	<�����	
		�����	6�
��	"���	.�	�����	;������	��'�++�	�.���	���	
		���
����	��
	)��
����
�,-��������	4�#
��	��#���	"���	����	

((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((	
	)-4 +++�(++�	&&,+&,�+&%	

1!=*-1 6	

																																		-����										���
���	

)-14>6 ?*-5	! -)6*	�*��*-���������	�%��+												&$�&�	
((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((	
3	)-4 +++�(++%	+�,+&,�+�+	

� <	6@1�	7)1�=7	 <;	� <� 	) -) - 	47@<�1*�	

																																		-����										���
���	

)-14>6 ?*-5	! -)6*	�*��*-���������	�&�$'												&���&	

		3���	"���	�����	���	��������
�	"���	���:����	���������	�
	
		)�����	4��
�	��/�	;����	9�����	����	1�"�
	�"�
��(<�
�	
		=����	<������	�
�	&(&�	��������	�)�����"	��	���	<�����	
		�����	6�
��	"���	.�	�����	;������	��'�++�	�.���	���	
		���
����	��
	)��
����
�,-��������	4�#
��	��#���	"���	����	

Page 62 of 95121



�����������������������������������������������������������������
��������	������
��������

���������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������  �! �������������!����
"�����������������������������������	�� ���������������
#�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
��������	������
��������

�����$���%���&%���'����"����������

���������������������������������������������������������

"������(���������������������������!���)�������������	� 
�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
��������	��� ��
��������

��&�����*��%����+����*�%���+�*���,����'�*�����������'��%�-�
,��"$���

���������������������������������������������������������

"������(���������������������������!���)�������������	� 
�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
��������	���������������

���������������������������������������������������������

"����..%���������������������������  �

�������������!����
"����..%�/%�0�����""���������������!��
��������������!�) �
�����������������������������������������������������������������
����&�!���� ��)��������

���������������������������������������������������������

'�12�33���
�����4�5��/6�7�6��/668����9�8��
���������3����9�31��69��*���8��
�����/668����9�8��:���9�����
������;�38�����;:��6���8��
�������<3;8����!���6�����
������'�12�33������33������=���������)������������� �# �
��������6<7����<��::����������������	����������������	� )�
�����4�5���33�6�=���/6�7�
������'�12�33������33������=�������#�� #������������� �# �
��������6<7����<��::����������������	����������������	� )�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
����&�!����!��)��������

/6�7�6��2668�>��9������3��>�9�31�=69�����8��:���9�����;:��6���8�
��<3;8����!���6����?�

���������������������������������������������������������

���&��"�����
�������@����������33��������������� ���������������� �# �
��������<��@;�38������������������� )�

������������� � )�
��������9���-�>����=�<��:���������� �#�������������� �# �
��������;3���6�������33�������������!���������������� ����
������66>�36�8���6>��=���3������������
������������� �# �
������=���3������������������������ 	�
#������������� �# �
������;@������������������

Page 63 of 95122



��������������������	��
��������
���������������������
�������
���������������������������
�����������	��
�������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�������� ��� ���!��!"�� �

�������������������������������������������������#�
�����

$��	����#	��
�	���%����������������� ����������������&�&&�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�'('�����������"!"�!"�"��

()*��+,'('*�

�������������������������������������������������#�
�����

'('�-�%�%�+�.���������
���	������
�
��������/�0����	������/����
�	�������������������
�	�1�
��������2�����3������������������������������45&����
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�'('��������&��"!"�!"�"��

�)$$6+%��-%)+*��+7�*8*-'$*�9)�:�

()*��+,'('*��)6+-8�

�������������������������������������������������#�
�����

����	�
���
����*2�������
�����%���������������������������������"����������45������
�����-��0�
�
�������������������������������������45";��"�

��*�)�'�)#�9)�:<�%��������
��/�����
��/����1
���������
���������
������2������	�
�
=
����0��������
��
������!����������������
�����1�
��/���	��/�1
�
��������
�
���������������
��/�
����	���
����/����	�
�2������������
������	�����������0��
�������>
��<�-?����
���
��������	�1�
������/����@���	�����
���������	����	�
�/�
����������������0����
�����������/�
���
���>�1��������
��
��/��	��
����
�/��	��
��A/��	���������
���2�����/����
�����/��	������������������
�����������

������	�
���
���*2�������0���������
���������
1��
�������
���
�����!������������2�������0�������
���
��
������0�����1��
���
������2�����B�
���	�
�������A��	�
����������
���
��������
������
�����������	������������
�����2��0�
���	���
��B�
���A��	�
���������0���������2����������	��
����2������>0
�0�
��
���	������������	���
�������>����	�2B��A��	�
���
��
��������
����������>�2��2�����/�����	
���2�����/��
���
��1�������>��@/����������2�������������2�������

�����������������������������������������������������������������
�'('��������"�� !��!"�"��

*�+-��C��C�����)6+-8�

�������������������������������������������������#�
�����

'�����
�
������������������������������������������45�����

9)�:��-�?�+7'+C'�,��#C<�����;�����
�
��������0�	���
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�'('�����������"!"�!"�"��

Page 64 of 95123



�������������	
���
	�	��	
����


	����
�������
������




































�����









�������


��������������
	�����








�����  ��!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!"
#$!%&








#'()*!+)




	��,
��
����-
�����  �����.
�������.
���/���
��0
�����������



�1
�������
��� �2���
�3�
������������
��04��
�����1������



�1
/����.
����0.
/�����
��0
0����� 
1��
��������� .



�0�������� .
��������
��0
�������������
5��5����
1��
�3�



1�  �6���-
�7
����������
��0
���/��  ����.
8��9�����0
:



1��������0
�����.
��������
��0
�� �53���
������������.



�����6�/�
������������.
�� ��:��0��.
�� ��5 �;.
�����
��  



�������.
��0��
5���.
8��� ��
� ����
��0
1���
� ���
<���



 ���
5������53
8� �6=!




�������������
	������
�3��
��������
��
�����/�
��1��������



��04��
������ 
�������
�3��
���
���������
��
�3�
�8�/�



 ����0
�������>
��� �����
��
�;� �����
�1
������������
��0



��������
�1
���0������
0��������0
8�
�3���
1�������>



�;� �0���
�  
��3��
0���
�������
��
�� ��5 �
�������
63��3



��� �0�
������ 
1�������
��
5�6��
��55 �>
�;� �0���



�����  �����
�1
����6��
�������.
���0���
�������.
 ���



/� ����
6��9.
��0
������
����������
�������!




����
� ���
6��9
�3�  
8�
5��1����0
��
�3�
�������
����0�



� ���������
���� 
����
5��9���!


::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::


?�%**%:%%+
)+4+@4+%+%


��7�	��




































�����









�������


?��������!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!"
*A!&B








#'(+#!A&

::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::


?�%**%:%%B
)+4+@4+%+%


�������������	
���
	�	��	
����


��7�	��
���
	��
���������
������	




































�����









�������


��������������
	�����








�����  ��!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!"
#&!A%








#'()B!@*






���3������!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!"
##!%$











)B!@$




	��,
��
����-
�����  �����.
�������.
���/���
��0
�����������



�1
�������
��� �2���
�3�
������������
��04��
�����1������



�1
/����.
����0.
/�����
��0
0����� 
1��
��������� .



�0�������� .
��������
��0
�������������
5��5����
1��
�3�



1�  �6���-
�7
����������
��0
���/��  ����.
8��9�����0
:



1��������0
�����.
��������
��0
�� �53���
������������.



�����6�/�
������������.
�� ��:��0��.
�� ��5 �;.
�����
��  



�������.
��0��
5���.
8��� ��
� ����
��0
1���
� ����!




�������������
	������
�3��
��������
��
�����/�
��1��������



��04��
������ 
�������
�3��
���
���������
��
�3�
�8�/�



 ����0
�������>
��� �����
��
�;� �����
�1
������������
��0



��������
�1
���0������
0��������0
8�
�3���
1�������>


Page 65 of 95124



���������	
���������������������������������������������
���	��������	������	���	�������������������������	
�
���	�������	����������������������	��������������	��
������
���������	���	��
����	�
���	���������

�����������������������������������������������������������������
������  !���"��#$�!$"�"!�

%&'()��

����������������������������������&�������������*��	
���

����+&,�,'(����������������������-�".�//�������������.�/ �
�����������������������������������������������������������������
������ //���#�!"$"0$"�"��

1'(�2�&('&3,(%�

����������������������������������&�������������*��	
���

����+&,�,'(����������������������-�#��������������#45/�0��
�����������������������������������������������������������������
6������78.���#��0$#�$"�"!�

,9:�&,'��

����������������������������������&�������������*��	
���

����+&,�,'(���
�����!���#�1�������������������-�#/�"0�������������/�.0�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
������8#.���"��#$�!$"�!/�

1'(��;,1�%2,1:%�

����������������������������������&�������������*��	
���

����+&,�,'(����������������������-�"#�7��������������/�/"�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
������8#.���#�!"$�!$"�!.�

�%99;(,�'+,%(1�'(3�1<1+�91�=%&>�

1'(��;,1�%2,1:%��%;(+<�

����������������������������������&�������������*��	
���

�����	�����	��1�������
�����,	�������������������������-�#8�/"������������! �/8�
�����+���	����	������������������-�#��0.������������!!�88�

��1�%:��%*�=%&>?�,	�������	�����	
�����������	�����	�	�	���
����������������@�	
������	�������	��	�$�����	�����	���
���������������	��������	��	����
��������������������
���������	�������������	���	����	��	�����������������
���������	
?�+A���	����	
��	�����������	����B���
���	����
������
���	����������	�������	��������	���	����		����
��������������	�������	������������������������	����������
������������������
���B��
������������	�������������C����
����������
�����B����D��

�������	�����	�1�����������	����������������	�������	�
���	�$�����	�������������������	��	����������B����
�����������������	������	������������	��������	���	���	��
�����	
�������	�������������	���B���������	���	��

Page 66 of 95125



���������	
���������������������������������������������
���	��������	������	���	�������������������������	
�
���	�������	����������������������	��������������	��
������
���������	���	��
����	�
���	���������

�����������������������������������������������	��	�����
�����������	��������������
���

�����������������������������������������������������������������
���� !"#$�!!$�!%&$'&$!$(�

)�*+,-.�

����������������������������������-����������������	
���

 ./���01�2 �-���
�����.������������	�3$�������
����������������������������
�����	��������������	����������4�5%�6#������������$6�#"�
��� +-2 2.*���
�����.������������	�3$�������
����������������������������
�����	��������������	����������4�53�#!������������$6�5'�

��.���78-9�:8-��+;.*�3$�-8.<�:2��0��-8:�*�.-�0+�/.0��182*+=�
��.���4#�!!�������������������������/.0��182*+0=�������	�
��1���8�������	������������� ����������8���)�����8�	�����
��0�	��1������	��)�	�����

�����������������������������������������������������������������
���� !"#$�!!5�($&$6&$!$!�

 8::,*2 .+28*0�.*<�0>0+�:0�78-9�

)�*+,-.� 8,*+>�8*�>�

����������������������������������-����������������	
���

 ����	�����	��0�������
�����2	�������������������������4�3"�6$������������(5�%6�
�����+���	����	������������������4�3!�(!������������($�%6�

��0 81��8��78-9=�2	�������	�����	
�����������	�����	�	�	���
����������������?�	
������	�������	��	�&�����	�����	���
���������������	��������	��	����
��������������������
���������	�������������	���	����	��	�����������������
���������	
=�+)���	����	
��	�����������	��������
���	����
������
���	����������	�������	��������	���	����		����
��������������	�������	������������������������	����������
������������������
������
������������	�������������@����
����������
����������A��

�� ����	�����	�0�����������	����������������	�������	�
���	�&�����	�������������������	��	���������������
�����������������	������	������������	��������	���	���	��
�����	
�������	�������������	�������������	���	��
���������	
���������������������������������������������
���	��������	������	���	�������������������������	
�
���	�������	����������������������	��������������	��
������
���������	���	��
����	�
���	���������

�����������������������������������������������	��	�����
�����������	��������������
���

�����������������������������������������������������������������
Page 67 of 95126



���������������	
�	
���	�

���������������

���������������������������������������������������������

���������� !�� """"""""""""""""#�$�"	��������%&"��&'�'(�

��������)�
���"���*�� ����)���+,-./���0.����(1�����2�.3����1-���4.1�-/�
����������5�0���.��,�/�0��6���3.���+,-./����7��4�+.����4���&�
��/�����.3����5�0�8���6�92�3.��9�+.��4���.�&�/�����.3����5�0�"�
��("���*�!���*:�)���7�:�����*�/8���+.���-�*�/8���6�,��6��0��
��*�/8���(.��*�/8����������*�/8��4��;���5����*�/8����6�/�
���3�����4��;���5���8���6� 4����+���*�/"�

�����������������������������������������������������������������
�������	�������	
�	
���	�

�������8������<����8����<�8��������*�8���������*���8�����
������*��������

���������������������������������������������������������

���������� !�� """"""""""""""""#�&="%��������%&"��&'�'(�

��������)�
����*�� ����)���+,-./���0.����(1�����2�.3����1-���4.1�-/�
����������5�0���.��,�/�0��6���3.���+,-./����7��4�+.����4���&�
��/�����.3����5�0�8���6�92�3.��9�+.��4���.�&�/�����.3����5�0�"�
����*�!���*:�)���7�:�����*�/8���+.���-�*�/8���6�,��6��0��*�/8�
����(.��*�/8����������*�/8��4��;���5����*�/8����6�/��3����
���4��;���5���8���6� 4����+���*�/"

�����������������������������������������������������������������
���<���	����	��$
�	
��	��

���������������������������������������������������������

�������)���.7����>1�,+�������
? �����8���-�6��5����@����
!.������A���
�����<������	""""""""""""""""""""#��9"9&�������������&"�&�
�����<�������""""""""""""""""""""#��$"�%�������������&"�&�
�����<������%""""""""""""""""""""#��$"$��������������&"�&�
�����<�������""""""""""""""""""""#��$"�9�������������&"�&�
�����<������&""""""""""""""""""""#���"���������������&"�&�
�����<������9""""""""""""""""""""#���"	=�������������&"�&�
�����<������$""""""""""""""""""""#���"%	�������������&"�&�
�����<�������""""""""""""""""""""#���"���������������&"�&�
�����<������=""""""""""""""""""""#���"9&�������������&"�&�
�����<�����	�""""""""""""""""""""#��="9&�������������&"�&�
�����<�����		""""""""""""""""""""#�&�"9&�������������&"�&�
�����<�����	�""""""""""""""""""""#�&	"9&�������������&"�&�
�����<�����	%""""""""""""""""""""#�&�"9&�������������&"�&�
�������)���.7����>1�,+������
�����<������	""""""""""""""""""""#��&"%��������������&"�&�
�����<�������""""""""""""""""""""#��9"���������������&"�&�
�����<������%""""""""""""""""""""#��9"%$�������������&"�&�
�����<�������""""""""""""""""""""#��$"�9�������������&"�&�
�����<������&""""""""""""""""""""#���"=9�������������&"�&�
�����<������9""""""""""""""""""""#���"���������������&"�&�
�����<������$""""""""""""""""""""#��="	��������������&"�&�
�����<�������""""""""""""""""""""#���"	=�������������&"�&�

Page 68 of 95127



���������������������������������	�
����������������������
��������������������������������	�
���������������������
�������������������������������	�
��
������������������
��������������������������������	�
��
�������������������
��������������������������������	�
����������������������
�����������
��������������������	�
���������������������
��������������������������������	�
����������������������
��������������������������������	�
���������������������
��������������������������������	�
����������������������
��������������������������������	�
����������������������
��������������������������������	�
���������������������
���������������������������������	�
���������������������
��������������������������������	�
��
�������������������
���������������������������������	�
����������������������
���������������������������������	�
����������������������
������������
��������������������	�
���������������������
���������������������������������	�
����������������������

�������������
��	���������������� !!�"��� #$��%� !!���&����'�#�(�%)����� )���
��&��*��%�)���+�!!�&,%-��#!#) �.�/ �����0�#% �1 *��2 3 !�
�������3�4�5 %$�%"��-��6/4���#%)���-��!!�4�7��!.�2 3 !�/ ��4�
��6��)���&#%4�2�"���%%�8�� �#%��/ ��4�� �#%��0����1�-#�)#9��
��/ ������(�4��$& �$���6/4����� !(��� �#%��/ ���

��:��*������'�#��$�)����#)���� %$�&��*�#%� �� ; �$����( )��# !�
���%3#��%(�%)��	�������������� $$#)#�% !���0�("#% )#�%�(#8���
�� %$�9�(������������ )����%�-�%#)��&��*��� !!�"��9! ��#+#�$�
�� �� �9�%9��)��(�"#!��(#8������� )����

0��2�74���1�<��5�2���2<�=��7>�2���?�����2>�01�77�6�0�>��27���

�����������%-#%�����#!��@�6��*�!#+)����� )���A#%9!�$���!��$4�
��!�!!�������#(#! ��).���B�

���������>��9*�9� %���#!�����

������������C+� (�����&#%9��)��9*����� )��@������9 ��#���
������ )���A,�"�#)�B�

��������
��/�#$-�C).����%!� $��� %$�)��%) "!������ )��@�
��=�!#9��)�����#�)����� )���

������������=.$� �!#9�"��(�)��9*@�7)#%-���9� %��A���)#%C:��)��%�
������#(#! ��).��B@�>�--�����#�)����� )���A�$��(B�

�����������/�#$-��9� %������ )��@�0��)���9� %������ )��@�=�#�)�
������ )���A0�#9 -��"��(� %$��#(#! ��).��B@�1#+)�(�"#!��
������ )��@�1#+)��! "�( 9�#%������ )���A5 -)"��-� %$��#(#! ��
��).���B@�� )��# !���#�)� %$D���( %!#+)����� )��@���! ��
��- %)�.�9� %������ )��@�7�!+�0!#("#%-��9 ++�!$�A����#(#! ��
��).��B@�7��3�!4�" 9*���4�$� -!#%�4�9! (���!!����� )���A�3���
���D
�.$�� %$����)����9���.$���(�9B@�>�--�����#�)����� )���

�������������$��) !�9� %������ )��@�7��3�!4�" 9*���4�$� -!#%�4�
��9! (���!!����� )���A�3�����9���.$���(�9B@�>�&���9� %��
����� #�@�>�--�����#�)����� )���A��$��(B�

�����������0� %������ )���A���)�� %$�#%9!�$#%-����)�%�
��9 � 9#).B@�0� &!���)� %����)������� )��@�<���#9*�" �-��
������ )���A���)�� %$�#%9!�$#%-����)�%�9 � 9#).B@�=�#�)�
������ )��4��)#++�!�-�4���.�$���#9*�����#(#! ��).���A���)��
�� %$�#%9!�$#%-����)�%�9 � 9#).B@�7��3�!4�" 9*���4�$� -!#%�4�
��9! (���!!����� )���A�3�����9���.$��4�����0�B�

Page 69 of 95128



�����������	
�����
���
����
���������������������������������
�����������
���� 

��!�"�
����
���
����
���������������
�������������������������
����#��$������"�%�&���
���
��
��#�������
���
'����((����'���&��

��!��
�������
��&��
�����
��������������������������������������
����)*�
���
����
���
������
��
�����
���
��+�(�
��������%
��
���
����
���
���,�������(������������&���������

��������-���	
�����
���
����
�����������������������
������������-���������
���� 

��!�"�
����
���
����
����
���������������������������-���������
����#�������
���
'�
�����((����'���&��

��!��
�������
��&�����
���������������
����������������-���������
��'�.�"�����%
��
�����
���
�
�����
��������'���������������������-��������./�/	/���0�%
�
���
�����
���
�������%
�����
&�

��������--��	
�����
���
����
�-����������������������
����������������������
���� 

��!�"�
����
���
����
�-���
�������������������������������������
����#�������
���
'�
�����((����'���&��

��!��
�������
��&�����
�-�����������
�����������������������������
����.�"�����%
��
�����
���
�
�����
�-��������������������������������������
���

��������-���	
�����
���
����
������������������������������
��1���������
���� 

��!�"�
����
���
����
����������������
����������������1���������
����#�������
���
'����((����'�
����&��

��!��
�������
��&�����
���������'�����������
������������1���������
����.�"�����%
��
�����
���
����
�
����������'���������������������1���������
���

��������-1��	
�����
���
����
�1���������� 

��!�"�
��
����
���
����
�1����������#������
��������#�������
���
'�
�����((����'���&��

��!��
�������
��&�����
�1����������
��.�"�����%
��
�����
���
����
�1���������

��23��34�5�.360���3�70��+�	87++595	705�6+��

��������-��:�
������:
�!�����	���
���
���
���
�� ���$�
��2���$'�%��$������
�������
��&��;��������3�����
�
����
���
*�������3����
����
��9�
!��(����
���
�
��������������'�������
�������
��&������
���������
����
���
���
���
����
���
'�������
�����
���
�������
����
���
���������
���
��+����������+%���$����

�����������7��$���*
�""
���������
���
����
�����!���
���
���
��	���
����,
���
���
*�!����&���	���&�
���
���
��
��9�
�����9�
!��(����
���
�������������'�������
�������
�
���&�����
���������#&�
���������������
���
�����
��
��$
�
������$�����
�����
������������
�������&��%�����$�����<��
����������=��!��+�
�������������&�
����$�����
���
���
�
��������
��&�����+!������
��%$���&��������1>?�&�/�
��%��$���������$������0�
�����(�
�����0���
�
&�$������
����������
���
��0
��$�������$������
�

��������1��7��$���*
�""
�"������
���
��:�"�����
�������
�
���&���������
���3;��������
��
��
��!���9�
��9
������
���%��$��
���&�������$�������#������
�
����������
�������
��+�������
&�����%
����������������������$�����
���
�

��������?��7��$����������(�
�����:��!$����
���
������*��,��
�
��������
��&����:�
�������$�����
���
��:�,�����
���,
����
������$�����
�����
����	$�����
���������$�����
���
��
��	���
����������������������������$�����
���
��
��	���
���������
���
����������
��"���� 
����������$���
����
���
'����������
��&����0,�������
������������
�

Page 70 of 95129



�����������	
����������������������������������	
�����
�������������
������������������������
���������������������
����� !���"����������
�������#����
���������������� �$��%�	�
�������������	��������������������
����&� ���'���������
����$�#������������������(�%��� �� ����� �������� �����
���
��������(�%��� �� �������%��
��������(�%������#���)��$��
���������������
��������(�%����%��
����
��������*� !�+�����
��,�%-'��� �����*�������
�������� ��
� �������, ������
�������
�����
�������� �� �������'��� ������� ������
���������
����.�
����/���0� ��������� ����� !�
��
"*12(�34�����
�����"��������"������'�� !-&�����,�����/��

��"*12(�.4�5��� �������������������������5�
�����
�����
������������6�� ��
������
��������6�������
������7�� �����
��)������� ������
�������� ������������������	
����7�� �����
��
�������
��������8���	���������8� !���������
��������
��8���� !���������������	
����8���������� ������
������9�
��$� !�������������	
����7��%��������$� !���������������	
���
����+�����������������������������	
�����'���������9�3������
��.���������������������	
����������������
������:3��
������������8���������� ������
���������� �������%�����
��%�������	������
�� ���������� ������
������������%9�
��
�
����������9�;� !������� !�����������9�������������	
���
��<�����=���,%�� �����
��9�������������	
���&� ����������
���
��������&�������������������������$�#�$�����9�&� ���� ���
��$���9� ��$����������� �� ����������
�������&� ���� ���
������������
�������� �� ����9�7���	�;�������6��%�������
������������&� �����������	������$���%����������(�#������
��$���!����
����������� !�����������*����������������� �����
���
��������*�������
����������
���������������9���$$���������
����������#��������
�������������������9��
���������� �������
���3�	��/����� !���,����
��
����������
�
���������� �����
���
��������,!�
��������
�������� ��%��������%������	
�9��#���
���-:�	�/������
���������� ����������-��	��/���,��
������
��
�
���
��������
�%������#����	������ �����������#� ������
�� �� �������������'�� �����
�������$�����=��9����
���� ��
���
����������������9��
���������/
/���	%������������������	
��9�
���
���������� �������8�3��������������	
�����'������������
���
�����������������2����������
��������%����)��� �������
��������	������
��������0� ����$���������� ������
�������

"*12(�>4�+��������"�������

��"*12(�?4�5�
�������� �� ������
���������
�����������
�������
��������������5�
�����
�#������ ������
��������6��$���"������
��������������	
����5�
�������$$���������$�������
��������
��6� !�����
���������
���������� ��������-:�	�/�9�����������9�
��7����������������7�������
�� ��
�
����	������ �����
���
��������7��$������������������ ��
��������
���������������
��%��!���7��
� �����
�������������
��
��������7�� �����������
���
��������
�#������7��������
������
��������8�����8� �����
��8���������� ������
������9�6� !�������������	
����7��%����
���3��$� !���������������	
�����+�������3��9�������3���������
��������������	
�����'������>��9�?���������������������	
�����
�������������
������.����������������#��������������
��������
��"����� �� !����"��������
��������"���������� ������
��������
����#	����	���
����������#	�����
�������$��� ���
��������
��<�����=���$������������������������������	
���<������$����
����������������������	
���@��'��������$��$� ��
� �������
�����������	
���@�������
��������5���	9��� ���9�,����������
�����������	
�����&�$��!�7��

���������������1==���
���������
�����������	
����(/7/��������%��(������� � �� �����
�� ����
���� ������
��������� !��	�(����%����������������	
����
��(��
 ����������
��������*� !�8�����������������	
����*����	�

Page 71 of 95130



������������	
�������������	������
�������������
�����
���	�
�����������������
�����	
�������������������
��	
������	�����������
�����	����	��������	��
����� �
��	���
��	���	���	

	����
�������!"����#����
��	������������"$��#�
�����#��
��%����������
������	�
�����������������
�����	
���
������
���������������
��	������������!"����#��
��%���
���������
�������	��������	
�������&���	������	����� �����
��
����'����(������)$*$�	��������	������������
���+��&��
����������������	�����

����	���������	
����+��

����������
��+%����	��������	
�����	 ����	��� �����
���������)�),!����#�
�����
��	������������-�),!����#���+����������	
������	�
�
������	
����+��&	����	
����	�����	��������	
����.�	
���
�����������������������	
��������	
����.�	
�������	
���
���	���
�����	�����
�	��(�"���)$$�&�� ������#�#�	������������
�������	��������/����
	��������	����	��������
�	
����������
�����������.�	
�������	
���������	

	����
����.�	�������
������� �	���������	�����	�����������	���������	
����
��.���������	���������	
���������-�&
#����
��	�	�
���
���	��&	
����0���	
������
��������1	����� �
����	��1�����
��	

	����
�������-�&
����
��	�	�
��2�3�
�	���������������
�� 	
��4�
��

����
�������
������	�����	
��������
������	
���������	
���

5�637�82�9�	���(�
�����	���	��

��5�637�)$2�(���������	���������	
����:�%�
����	�����
�����
���;	� ����!$$�:���%�
���������	��
������	
����<$$$����"$$$�
��	�������������	��
�����.����	�8$$�	�������������	��
��
�����������������
���&�)$"0��	��������(�	��������������
�����	������	
���=(;<"$����������	��
�������1����	���
�������
��������	
�������������	��������
�����1�
���
���	
������	�������	
��������������������1��
������������
��
�	
�������	
����������	��������	��
��������
�>�	��8�
��	
#����������
������	�
�����������������
�����	
�����������
���������������"$����#��
��%���7����	
��������	������
����
��	��������	��
������7���
������� �	�������	���������	
����
���������
������	�
�����������������
�����	
�����������
���������������"$����#��
��%����������
������	�
���������
����������
�����	
�������
��������������������	
������	��
��	��������	�������!"����#�	������
��"$����#��
��%���.� ���
���	������	���	���.�	
�����	��������	
�����	 ����	��� �����
��
���������-�),!����#�������������������	
����	��������	��
��7���������������
��

��5�637�))2�9�	���(�
�����	���	�����������;�����	
��������������
��;��
�&���#�

��5�637�)!2���
����	��������	
������
��	
�������&��������	
����
��(���������	���������	
������%�
����	�����
������;	� �����
��	�����!$$�;����������	��
��������	
�����	�����-$$$����
�������	��
�������9������+�����(�
���	�����!$$���������	��
��
�������������������
���&�)?"0��	��������9����	����������	��
�� �
�������������1	�����	�	
�������	
��������
�	�?"$��#�
���	�����1��	��	��&����������	���������	
����1������&����
��
�	����������	
����1�
����	
��������	
�������
�����������
��7������������	���������	
�����������
������	�
����������
����������
�����	
�������
��������������������;	
������	��
��	��������	��
����������"$��#����#��
��%����������
�����
�����&����	�������	��������	
�����	����� �����	�����
����
�����&���	�������
 ���!�������������
���

��5�637�)<2��������
������	�
�����������������
�����	
���
������	
������������
� �
���������������
�������������������
�����
��	������������!"����#��
��%��

Page 72 of 95131



����������	�
�������������������
����������������������
������������������������������������������������������������
������������������ ����������	�!�"##�������������������$��
��%�����&�����������������������'(#���"�)��"$�

���������(	���**����������������������������������������+�
����������������������,�������������)������������������+�
��
��������+�-����+�.���)�%�����������������)����,������)�
�������������������������/(�)��"������������������������(#�
��)��"������0$����**����������������������������������������+�
����������������������,�������������)�������������
����������������������������/(�)��"������0$�

���������1	���**����������������������������������������+�
����������������������,�������������)������������������+�
�������(#�)��"������0$����**��������������������������������
����������+���������������������,�������������)�����
����������������+�-����+�
�������������������+������/(�
��)��"�����������(#�)��"������0$�

���������'	���**����������������������������������������+�
����������������������,�������������)�������������������+�
��-����+�
�������������������+������(#���"�)��"������0$��
��2�������������������������������������,����)���������������
�����������3����4�������������)��$�

���������5	���**����������������������������������������+�
�������������������������������+�*�)������������������
���)���������)����*�������+��&��������������������������
��������������+��������������������/(�)��"������0$�

���������4	�����&����������*������������������������)���$��
����**����������������������������������������+��������������
������������������+�*�)�������������������)���������)�
�����*�������+��&��������������������������������������+�
��
��������+�-����+�.���)�%�����������������)����,������)�
�������������������������/(�)��"�����������������������(#�
����"�)��"������0$����**��������������������������������
����������+������������������������������+�*�)�����������
����������)���������)����*�������+��&������������������
�����������������������+��������������������/(�)��"������0$�

��������/#	���**����������������������������������������+�
�������������������������������+�*�)������������������
���)���������)����*�������+��&��������������������������
��������������+������(#�)��"������0$����**���������
���������������������������������+���������������������
�����������+�*�)������+�������������)���������)�
�����*�������+��&���������������������������������������+�
��-����+�
�������������������+������/(�)��"�����������(#�
��)��"������0$�

��������/�	���**����������������������������������������+�
�������������������������������+�*�)������������������
���)���������)����*�������+��&��������������������������
���������������+�-����+�
���������������������)��+������
��(#���"�)��"������0$�

��������//	���**����������������������������������������+�
����������������������,������������������������)�����
���������������+��������������������/(�)��"������0$�

��������/6	���**����������������������������������������+�
����������������������,������������������������)�����
���������������+�
��������+�-����+�.���)�%���������

Page 73 of 95132



�����������	
���������	����������������������������	��������
���
���������������������	��������������������������
������������������
������
������ ��
����������������������
��
���
�����	�����!�����
��������� ��
���������������������
��	������������

��"�#$%��&'������������������������������
������
������ �
���
������������
�������������������
���
�����	�����
��!������������� ���������	��������������������������
������������������
������
������ ��
������������
���������
������������
���
�����	�����!�����
��������� �(����� �
��)����
����������������� ���������	���������
�������	����
����������

��"�#$%���'�)��������
��
��
�����������������������������������
������������������
������
������ ��
������������
���������
������������
���
�����	�����!�����
��������� �(����� �
��)����
�������������������	
� �������������	������������

�����������������������������������������������������������������
�*�#+�&,,���-��./�0/�����

�������������������������������������������������1�������

*�#+2#�3(����
�����1�����(���������������������4�,&��5�������������&�50�
�����#��������� �����6��������
���������7�����������������������4�&0���������������,,�&��

%�(8*$8�%9:'�

4-���������������
�������������6������������������'�

)����;����+�����<����7������ �)��������8���������+�����
��������+����� �
(�������91= �1����*�����8������	�7������ �1����*�����<��������
)������"�������� �7���)��������*����� �7���+�������*����� �
7����������1�������%����� ��>�%�������8������)��
� �$�7��8������
=������=������ �$�7��+�����9���1������	���7����	 �?����������91=�

4&���������������
�������������6������������������'�

9��	�@�6�����;��������*�����������8������	 �1������9���=��� �
+�����%����"��������7�������8������	 �:�����8������)��
��
;���������)������

4����������������
�������������6������������������'�

%����A������ �%����8��� �$�7��)�����"�����7���������<��������

�����������������������������������������������������������������
�;9=#�������,��./�0/��0>�

����������� �&�7�������

79+�;$*7�#=*7%#�9+@�79+<9�=9�=9�9�)#$+<*(7�

�������������������������������������������������1�������

;9=#�(����
�����"�#$%�0���������������������4�,���&����������������>�
�����"�#$%�����������������������4�,��.>����������������>�
�����"�#$%�,���������������������4�,-�,&����������������>�
�����"�#$%�&���������������������4�,.�5>����������������>�

Page 74 of 95133



���������������������������������	�
���������������������

��������������������������

���������������� �!���"�#��"� �!�$%�&�����%$'()*��$�+'�,��
��)+'��" �!�%$'�'$-!#�),' .�/$%%*��$�+'�,�0�1�,�'�+-' �!*�
��2�($� , $����3$'�'0�,#��+���� �!�$%�3' +.� %�&�'%$'(�"�34���
��1$'.�'�&�'%$'( �!���4�$,#�'�&#�)��$%�"�($� , $��1$'.0���"�
��,#��+���� �!�$%��-(3�'*�� '��1�,+#�'0�� (3�'0�3'-)#��$�"�'0�
��& ��'���"�"�3' )�#��"��'*����!�&�')$�*���)0�$ ����"5$'�
��1�,�'�& &�� �����3$'�'*���3$'�'0��)&#��,/'-33�'�(�,�' ���
���$�"�'*���3$'�'0�!���'���$'�+$�),'-+, $�*���3$'�'0�!���'���
��+����/-&*���3$'�'0����")+�& �!*���3$'�'0�6�,, �!*���3$'�'0�
��,�(&$'�'4�1�,�'���"�� '�� ��)*�7�,�' ���#$)��$&�'�,$'�
��81���)0�)��3)0�%�$$')���"�"�+.)9*���-!! �!0�% �� �!�$%�)#���
��3$�,�#$��)*�2'4�&�+. �!�$%�+$�+'�,����"�&�,+# �!*�&$),�#$���
��" !!�'�8(��-��9*�� �'$�"�(� �,����+�0�'�&� '�,'�+.�&�')$��
����"�'$�"�3�")*�,'��,+�'���"�'� �'$�"�+$�),'-+, $��,'�+.�
����3$'�')*�� !! �!���") !��� �!*��+���'*��� &�%$'(�'� )�'*�
����-''4�)����+'�1�8( :�'�$&�'�,$'0��&&� +�,$'�$&�'�,$'0�
��);-��!���&�')$�0�)#-,,���&�')$�0�,$&�&�')$�90�% �� �!�$%�
��+'�+.)�34���4�(�,#$"�$����4�)-'%�+�*���'���"�($',�'*��$$��
��+' 3�$'�,$$��#$-)����3$'�'*��'�%% +�+$�,'$��34���4�(�,#$"*�
��< �"$1�+�����'*�< '��(�)#�&-�� �!�/�����+$�+'�,��&$-' �!�
��$&�'�, $�)�

�������������)3�),$)��3�,�(��,*��)&#��,�)#$=���'*���(��,�"-(&�'�
��8$����4"��$'���'!�'�( :�'���"�#��"� �!�3-�.�+�(��,9*�
����))&$$��" !!�'���"� �),����'*��#-+.,��"�'*��#-,��#��"��'0�
��&$-' �!�+$�+'�,�0�,#��#��"� �!�$%�,#��+#-,��%'$(�'��"4( :�
��,'-+.)0�)-+#��)�1���)0�)��3)0�"�+.)0�%�$$')0�%$-�"�, $�0�
��%$$, �!)0�+-'30�!-,,�')���"�) "�1��.)*��$�+'�,��+-'�'0�
�� (&�'= $-)�(�(3'������"�%$'(�$ ��'*��-,, �!�,$'+#�$&�'�,$'�
��8"�($� , $�9*�� ���!'�"�'0�# !#1�4)���"�),'��,�&�= �!0�
��� '&$',0�'-�1�4)���"�) ( ��'�,4&��#��=4�+$�),'-+, $�*���)0�
��$ ����"5$'�1�,�'�& &�� ���1'�&&�'�/�&$,�,��"�'���"�%$'(�
��&�')$�*��- ����+#�)�'*�>��"�'3$�'"�&�')$��/��)&#��,�
�� �),����, $��$%������)&#��,�$=�'��4�%�3' +���"�(�,�' ��)�
��-)�"�%$'�'� �%$'+ �!��)&#��,*���3$'�'0�&�+. �!�'$"�),����
����"�&��)*�7�(3'����=�&$'�3�'' �'� �),����'*��$1�'�3'$$(�
��)1��&�'�8)(���9*�� &'�&�),$��&�=�'0�&��+ �!�),$���$'�1�,�
��)�+.�"�+$�+'�,�*��$,$�)+'�&�'���"�, ���'*����"3��),�'�8&$,�
��,��"�'9*���&, +�,��.�" !!�'���"� �),����'�8���"9*����.�
��)+���'���"�+�����'*��'���+� (3�'0�%����'0�+#� ��)�1�
��$&�'�,$'0�� ,,)3-'!#�+# &&�'���"�) ( ��'�,4&��3'-)#�
��)#'�""�'*���"�'!'$-�"���3$'�'0� �+�-" �!�+� ))$��3���$1�'�

��������
���-!!4($3 ���&�')$�*��$�+'�,��+-,, �!�,$'+#*��$�+'�,��
��& ���+-,,�'*�2' ���'0�6�+.#�((�'0��/�5��%,��"' ���),����$'�
���$�!�'*�2' /&�./ ,�(�+# ��*���)0�$ ����"5$'�1�,�'�& &�� ���
��1'�&&�'0�?/ ���& &����"�$=�'0�34���4�(�,#$"0� �) "����"�
��$-,*�> !#�)+���'�8 �+�-" �!�"' �� �!�$%�)�(�9*�>4"'$�)��"�'�
����"�) ( ��'�,4&�*��(&�+,�1'��+#�(-�, /&��,�*�@�,,���&�')$�0�
��&$,�&�')$����"�1$'.�')��&&�4 �!��)&#��,0���4/.$�"0�
��+'�$)$,�0�� (��+�-), +���"�) ( ��'�,4&��(�,�' ��)�
��8AA�&&�4 �!AA�(���)��&&�4 �!0�" && �!0�3'-)# �!�$'�#��"� �!�
��$%�)-+#�(�,�' ��)�%$'�& &��1'�&& �!���"�1�,�'&'$$% �!9*�
���&�'�,$'�$%�&��-(�, +0�!�)0����+,' +�,$$�)0�= 3'�, �!�
��(�+# ��0�&�=�(��,�3'��.�'0�� '�3��), �!0�+$(�/��$�!)0���"�
��) ( ��'�(�+#�� +���,$$�)��$,�)�&�'�,��4�+��)) % �"�#�'� �*�
��$&�'�, $��$%�'�($,��+$�,'$���"�'$3$, +�,$$�)� ��+$���+, $��
��1 ,#���3$'�'B)�1$'.*��� &���4�'B)�3�+.-&�&�')$�0�+$�, �!0�
��!'$-, �!0�(�. �!�$%�6$ �,)0�)��� �!0�+�-�. �!0�" �&�' �!�
����"� �+�-" �!�'-33�'�!�).�,�6$ �,)0�&$ �, �!���"���4���"�
������$,#�'�)�'= +�)*��$1�'�&$),�#$���" !!�'*���$+.�)� �!�'*�

Page 75 of 95134



����������	��
�
���������
���������	��	�����	�
��
���
���	��
�
����������������������������
���
������������������
�����������	���������

��������������	�
����	�
����
�����������������

����� !�"#�$���%�������&�����������%���%������$��������������
���������������
���������������������������������������
�������������&���'���������(��)��	�����	����	������'%������
������������	�
�
���(����
����������������)��	�������%�
����������	���
���%�������������%������	��
������������%�
��	��	������)�
������������������
���������
�����������	��
�����	
�����������
��������
���������*������	����
������
��+������������������������
���
�������������������+���������
��
��	����	�
���%
�����������,�%������-����
.��	��	�����
��-
�����������������/0����1������-����!
��������������
���
���������-
	���
���������
�������
��������
�������
�������
��������
��������	�
-
����
���
������
�	�����
��	�����
������
��������
����
�	���
�����������������������������������
����
��%��������
���������
	�������������
	�	����
����������
������������
������������������������-
	���������������
��	��-��
�����������������	�������������%�������%������
����%��������
��������
�����������������	��%������-�������
��%
����������������������������������
�������%�
	������
��������������
���
������
	������2��3�
����
����������
��
���
����������!������
	������������
����������������������
��'��..���������(��%����������
���!����������������������
	�
�������	��������)���
�
��1�

����� !�4#�����������%���������%�����������
�������������	
���
�����������
������������%���������&����
-������%����-���������
���������������������������������	������
����������	
����
��5�
����#�$�����%�����
������&	���
���3�	�������%�������
��	������
������%���������	������
������
�������������������
������������	���
	�����
����%
���������������������������
����
-����%������&
	�%��������-�������
������������	����
	�
�����	�
�����	�����

�����������������������������������������������������������������
�+$��0660�007�0/80986069�

�$2�+ :����:�!��$25��$2�$��$��$�$�)� 2�:;��

�������������������������������������������������<�
�����

��
	��������111111111111111111111=�>41?6������������601"4�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�+$��0>00�006�0/80986069�

+���$2�;+;��)� 2�@�

�������������������������������������������������<�
�����

��
	��������111111111111111111111=�>41?6������������601"4�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�+$��0>00�00"�0/8098609A�

���
����
����"�����
���

+���$2�;+;��)� 2�@�

�������������������������������������������������<�
�����

+$���;����
�������� !�9111111111111111111111=�>416"������������6010A�
�������� !�6111111111111111111111=�>41/A������������6010A�

Page 76 of 95135



���������������������������������	��
�������������������
���������������������������������	����������������������
���������������������������������	����������������������

��������������������������

�������������� !"!#� !$�% !$�"!#�&'�( !���'&)*+,��&!-)�.��
��+-)��$"!#�'&)�)&/#%�+.)"0�1&'',��&!-)�.�2�3 .�)�-/)"!#,�
��4�*&�"."&!�� 5&)�)2�.%��-�� !"!#�&'�5)"-0�"'�(�)'&)*�$�56� �
��3&)0�)�(�)'&)*"!#� !6�&.%�)�(% +��&'�$�*&�"."&!�3&)02� !$�
��.%��-�� !"!#�&'��/*5�),��")��3 .-%�)2��"*5�)2�5)/+%��& $�)2�
��("��)� !$�$�5)"+�% !$��),��� #�(�)+&!,�� +2�&"�� !$7&)�
��3 .�)�("(��"!��� 5&)�),�� 5&)�)2� +(% �.1)/55�)�* .�)" ��
���& $�),�� 5&)�)2�#�!�) ��&)�-&!+.)/-."&!,�� 5&)�)2�#�!�) ��
��-�� !1/(,�� 5&)�)2�� !$+- ("!#,�� 5&)�)2�8�.."!#,�� 5&)�)2�
��.�*(&) )6�3 .�)� !$� ")��"!�+,�9 .�)" ��%&+��&(�) .&)�
��:3 ��+2�+� 5+2�'�&&)+� !$�$�-0+;,���/##"!#2�'"��"!#�&'�+%���
��5&�.�%&��+,�4)6�( -0"!#�&'�-&!-)�.�� !$�( .-%"!#,�(&+.�%&���
��$"##�)�:* !/ �;,� "�)& $�* "!.�! !-�2�)�( ")�.) -0�(�)+&!�
�� !$�)& $�5�$+,�.)��.- )� !$�) "�)& $�-&!+.)/-."&!�.) -0�
��� 5&)�)+,��"##"!#� !$+"#! �"!#,��- ��),���"(�'&)*�) "+�),�
����/))6�+� ��-)�3�:*"<�)�&(�) .&)2� ((�"- .&)�&(�) .&)2�
��+=/��#���(�)+&!2�+%/..���(�)+&!2�.&(�(�)+&!;2�'"��"!#�&'�
��-) -0+�56� !6�*�.%&$�&!� !6�+/)' -�,�� )� !$�*&). ),��&&��
��-)"5�&)�.&&��%&/+��� 5&)�),��) ''"-�-&!.)&��56� !6�*�.%&$,�
��>"!$&3�-�� !�),�>")��*�+%�(/��"!#�1� ���-&!-)�.��(&/)"!#�
��&(�) ."&!+�

�������������+5�+.&+� 5 .�*�!.,��+(% �.�+%&?���),���*�!.�$/*(�)�
��:&!���6$��&)�� )#�)�*"<�)� !$�% !$�"!#�5/�0�-�*�!.;,�
����++(&&��$"##�)� !$�"!+. ���),��%/-0.�!$�),��%/.��% !$��)2�
��(&/)"!#�-&!-)�.�2�.%��% !$�"!#�&'�.%��-%/.��')&*�)� $6*"<�
��.)/-0+2�+/-%� +�3 ��+2�+� 5+2�$�-0+2�'�&&)+2�'&/!$ ."&!2�
��'&&."!#+2�-/)52�#/..�)+� !$�+"$�3 �0+,��&!-)�.��-/)�)2�
��"*(�)?"&/+�*�*5) !�� !$�'&)*�&"��),��/.."!#�.&)-%�&(�) .&)�
��:$�*&�"."&!;,��"!��#) $�)2�%"#%3 6+� !$�+.)��.�( ?"!#2�
�� ")(&).2�)/!3 6+� !$�+"*"� )�.6(��%� ?6�-&!+.)/-."&!,�� +2�
��&"�� !$7&)�3 .�)�("(��"!��3) ((�)�1�(&.�.�!$�)� !$�'&)*�
��(�)+&!,��/"!� �-% +�),�@� $�)5& )$�(�)+&!�1� +(% �.�
��"!+. �� ."&!�&'� ��� +(% �.�&?�)� 6�' 5)"-� !$�* .�)" �+�
��/+�$�'&)�)�"!'&)-"!#� +(% �.,�� 5&)�)2�( -0"!#�)&$�+.����
�� !$�( !+,�9�*5) !��? (&)�5 ))"�)�"!+. ���),��&3�)�5)&&*�
��+3��(�)�:+* ��;,��"() (�+.&!�( ?�)2�(� -"!#�+.&!��&)�3�.�
��+ -0�$�-&!-)�.�,��&.&�+-) (�)� !$�."���),�� !$5� +.�)�:(&.�
��.�!$�);,���(."-�. !0�$"##�)� !$�"!+. ���)�:�� $;,�� !0�
��+- ��)� !$�-�� !�),��)���-�"*5�)2�' ���)2�-% "!�+ 3�
��&(�) .&)2��"..+5/)#%�-%"((�)� !$�+"*"� )�.6(��5)/+%�
��+%)�$$�),��!$�)#)&/!$�� 5&)�)2�"!-�/$"!#�- "++&!�5���&3�)�

������������/##6*&5"���(�)+&!,��&!-)�.��-/.."!#�.&)-%,��&!-)�.��
��("���-/..�),�4)"���)2�8 -0% **�)2��1�7��'.��$)"���+.����&)�
���&!#�),�4)"1( 01".�* -%"!�,�� +2�&"�� !$7&)�3 .�)�("(��"!��
��3) ((�)2�
1"!��("(�� !$�&?�)2�56� !6�*�.%&$2�"!+"$�� !$�
��&/.,�@"#%�+- ��)�:"!-�/$"!#�$)"��"!#�&'�+ *�;,�@6$)&�+��$�)�
�� !$�+"*"� )�.6(�,��*( -.�3)�!-%�*/�."1(� .�,�A�..���(�)+&!2�
��(&.�(�)+&!� !$�3&)0�)+� ((�6"!#� +(% �.2�� 610&�$2�
��-)�&+&.�2��"*��- /+."-� !$�+"*"� )�.6(��* .�)" �+�
��:BB ((�6"!#BB�*� !+� ((�6"!#2�$"(("!#2�5)/+%"!#�&)�% !$�"!#�
��&'�+/-%�* .�)" �+�'&)�("(��3) (("!#� !$�3 .�)()&&'"!#;,�
���(�) .&)�&'�(!�/* ."-2�# +2����-.)"-�.&&�+2�?"5) ."!#�
��* -%"!�2�( ?�*�!.�5)� 0�)2� ")�5� +."!#2�-&*�1 �&!#+2� !$�
��+"*"� )�*�-% !"- ��.&&�+�!&.�+�( ) .��6�-� ++"'"�$�%�)�"!,�
��&(�) ."&!�&'�)�*&.��-&!.)&���$�)&5&."-�.&&�+�"!�-&!!�-."&!�
��3".%�� 5&)�)C+�3&)0,���"(�� 6�)C+�5 -0/(�(�)+&!2�-& ."!#2�
��#)&/."!#2�* 0"!#�&'�8&"!.+2�+� �"!#2�- /�0"!#2�$" (�)"!#�

Page 77 of 95136



��������������	�
����
�	�������������������	�������������
����������
��
����������
������������		�
�����������	�
��
������
����
����
��
�������������������
�����������	�
����
����
�������������
���
������	�������������
�������
��
����
���� ����
����������
��������
������	����������
������!�
��������

��"�#$��%&�'�����
��
��(��������
������	����'������
���
��
���������
�����
���
����������������
���������������
���
����
���(��)��������*��+���
������
�������
�)������
������
��
�������	*��	
����
��
�����
��+���
�������
����
����������	�������
��������
�����
��	������
�����
������
�����+
����
����
�
����		��	��������	������
�����
���
����	������!	��������		��	������
��,����
�������	�
��
��-���
�
��������!
����
����
�����
��������
����-��
������
�������������������������
�
.���
���#��
!�/������
����
�����
���
����
���
��01���2��������
����������
���
��
���	�
�������
�����������������	��������������������������
���
���������������
�������	��������������������������������������
�����
���������������	���������������
�����������
�����
�����
��������
�����������������
����!�������������������������
������
��������
����������������
��������������
�����
����������	�����������������
����������������
�����
��
�����	��������	�����
���
�����
��
��������������
�����
����������
�	�
�������������
���������
�����
�������������
��������
�����
���������
��������3�!����������������
�����	�
�����������
����
����������������������
�����������
�
��)��//�����
��*������
�������	���
�������!�������
������
�����������
���+�
������2�

��"�#$��4&������
������
��������
�����������	�������������	�
������������	�������������
������(�����������������
�������
��
�	�
��������������������
�����������	�����������	��
��5
����
&�'�������
��
������(������	����������
��������
�
����
��������������	�����
������������������������������������
����������������������
������������
�	�
�����������
�����
�������������
����(��������
����������
��	�����������
�����
���
�����	�������
�

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!�
�-'�#1611!117�168198:1:9�

������������������������������������������������;
��	��

'�������������-���
�
222222222<�602%=������������:92>>�

���+#�?�#;� #�@&��A�����������������/�������������������
����������������
���
�������
�������������������������	�
������
����������(��������)��������	������������������������
������
���(�������
���*����������������������
������
���������������������������	�����
����������(���
������)��������	����������������������������
���(���
������
���*����������
�������B���������
��������
���
�����������	�����
����������������
�
�����������

��
�����
����������������������������������2�

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!�
�-'�#1611!110�108198:1:1�

������������6����
�����������
�

������������������������������������������������;
��	��

-���
�
���
�����)9*�+��������;�����	��

Page 78 of 95137



���������������	�
���

����
���������������������������������������������������������
���������������� ���
�	�������������!���������������������
""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""�
���#�$!%!"$$��$�&$�&�$���

' �� ���������(�
�� ��

)*+,-'����-+,.�

����������������������������������'�� �����������/���� ��

��#�'*'���
�����0'�-1��������������������������!����������������$�$��
�����0'�-1��������������������������!����������������$�$��
�����0'�-1��������������������������2����������������$�$��
�����0'�-1����������������������������%��������������$�$��
�����0'�-1�!������������������������%����������������$�$��

��#�'*'����((3/3��,3�+(���

��0'�-1��4��� �����������������
5���� ��5
�6�7��
��� � �
�����  ����5
���
8�������	 "
557��
��� � ��9�� ���8����7�
��: 6
����
����;
� ����� ��� ������
5�;���	��5�� �5
�6 �;<���
��9
�	 ��� �5
�6������<�
�� ������ �
5� 6
����
��9
�	�����
���� ��� ������
5��86; �7�/�� �9���� �����6; ���;�8����
� ���
����� ����� ;�������� �7�/����� ��
�7�0����
�����&
��
��9�� ����� ��� ���;
� �7���;
� ����������"�8;; ��6�� �����
���
� �7���;
� ���� � ����
���
����8���
�7���;
� ���� � ����
���� ��"8�7���;
� �������������7���;
� ���= �����7���;
� ���
��� 6�
���<�9�� ������������ �7�>�� ������
� �
� ���
��
���9���������;���5�

������ �	��7�1�8�������5�������
5���  �
��;
����
� �7�:�<����	����
5��
��� � ������������7��
����
� �
����� ���6��8���7'����
��6���� ���� ��� ���������	�� ��
��
������
��; �7(��  �������������
���
����8���
������	�
����;
� ��7�'������������������7�(��� �7�(����5
�6����� �7�
��(�8��<�� ����� 9��6�? ��
� ���
�����������
��
� ���
���
���@8  �  �� ��
�����8��� �� ��
����
��� ��
����5�������
5�
������	��;<���<�6 ��
�
����<��8�5�� 7�,������6
����7�,

��
�����;�
���

���
8� ���;
� �7�,��55����
���
��;<���<�6 ��
7�
�����
9��� �� �7���� �6 ����8������"������
��� � ��
8�����
��
� ����
���

��0'�-1��4����; ��
���;�� 6 ��7�����������
A � �7�� 6 ���86� ��
���
����<��
������ ��6�? �������������;8�	�� 6 ���7�
��� ���

����� ������������ �7���8�	� � �7���8� ����� ���
���
8������
��� � ���� ���������
5��� ���8� �5�
6�� �<6�?�
����8�	����8������9���������;��� �	���5�

����5
8����
���
��5

��������8�;���8�� �������� 9��	�7��
��� � ��8� ���
���6� �A�
8��6 6;��� ����5
�6�
�� �7��8�������
����
� ���
��
��� 6
����
��7�/�� ���� �������9�<��������  ����A�����
������
�����8�9�<�������6������<� �� �A<��
����8���
�7�0����
��
�����&
��9�� ����� ��� �9���� ��"��
��� � �����5
�6�
��� ��
�7�08�� ������ �7�B � �;
���� ��
��"���������
������������
��
5�������������
A ���<�5�;�������6�� ������
��8� �5
��� ��5
�������������7���;
� ������	�����
���  ��
���������7�> 6;��� �A��
��;���� ��������� �7�1
9 ��;�

6�
���9  � ����6����7�'��������
� ��A �������������
� �
��9 ��
�����	 ��
��� � 7�'
�
������ ��������� �7�(��;���� ����
��
��� � ��7�( ��������	���� ������������ ���� ��7�,��	�
������ ������� �� �7�,�  ����6; ���5��� �����������9�
��
� ���
���1����;8��������� �������6������<� �;�8���
�����  �7�-� ���
8����;
� �������8���������
��; ��
9 ��

��0'�-1��4�#8��<6
;�� �� ��
�7��
��� � ��8�������
���7��
��� � �
Page 79 of 95138



������������	
��	����	����������	�������������	�����������	�
�������	
��	����������������
���������������	�����	����������
���	����	������������������ �	��!"���"��������������������
�����
�#���������	�$�����������	��������������%
�#"�	�������	�
������������	��"��
�&�������	����������������
�'��������	�����
��������	����������	��	������"���������������"�������
���	�������������������������������	��"�������	�����
��$((����"���((�����������"��������������!	��������	����������
��������������	�������	�������	���������������	�	������%
�
��)��	���	�������������������������	���������� �!	������
������������� ������!	����	����	�!��������������������������
��������	��������������������������	����"��������������	���
�
�����	���������	����������	������	�!�������������������������
�������*�!�	�	+����	�
��,�����"�	+��!��������	��������������
���	�������������������������������������������������	����
����������������	�!!�	������������������������������"�����
����������	���	 ����
�,���	����������������	
��-����������	
�
��-���	"����	����	��	�������������������	�������������
�����	����	
�.����������	!��	���������������������	
�/����	��
��0�	����1����	�����������	��"��
�/	�����������������
��������	��������

���-)2,�34�5�"���	��	��6���������	���������
��5�������	���	��
���������	������	���	�����������������	�����������������
����	����	�!�6���$�����"���%
�7���	������	�������	�$�������
������	���	���������%���	����	��	������	
�7���	��������
����	��������������������	��������	������	���������	�����
������	���
�7	�!!�	�����	�	�������������������������	�����
��!	��������������������������������	
�#����	����������	
�
��*�!�	�	����������	�!!�	�����	�!���	�!������	���
�*���	�!����
�����������������������!�	�	�+���	�
�) �	���8������	����
�� �!	���	����	���	��9:��!�������� �	
�,�����"�	���	��	�����
��������	 ��������������"������������������������������	���
���������������	���� �����������������������������������������
�����	�������������������"�����������	��������!���	�����	�����
��������	�����������������	����������������������������"�
������	���������	"��"��������!���	��� �����������	�����
����� �"���������"���!��������	����������������	�����	��
�����������������������	���	�����	��	������������� �	�����
����������	���	�������������	���������	�����	�������������
����!���	�����	���������!	������
�;������������������	�������
���������
�,	���!	�����������������������	
�.���!�����	�
��$��88�����	���%������	�!��������,�	���.����0����
�/	������
������������	���7�	��������

���-)2,�<4�0�����	������	��������	����������������������������
������!��������������������	������6����� ����������� �	��"����
��	���	�����������������������	�������������������������
�
���	����	4�5�������	��	�������6����������������	��������	�
����	��������������������	��������������������������"���������
���"�������������������	�������������	���	�����������	�����
������ ������	
�/�6���������	��� ��
�0�	�����"����������	�����
���	�������������	�

�����������������������������������������������������������������
�*50):<=<�::3�:9�:���:���

>?;/2-5�7)2;/@�

����������������������������������-��������������A	������

0	����/����	���������������������B�C<�=��������������:�3<�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�*50):�<��::��:9�:���:�D�

Page 80 of 95139



����������	
����������

��������������

���������������������������������������������������������

����������
��������������������������������� �!"�#�������������#$�$%�
�����������#��������������������� �!"�&%������������#$�$%�
�����������!��������������������� �!'�!�������������#$�$%�
��������������������������������� �!&�(%������������#$�$%�
�����������"��������������������� �!(�#�������������#$�$%�

�����������)�)���)�����

���������*��	�����������+���	�����,�-���	�,��.�/����0�����
���0��������,�����1�+�����2�3�,,/����0����
�4�����01����/�
��5�.�	������	�6����
��+��0	��������,�6��02��,�-��,��.���67���
��4��2���-��,��.������7���+���-+�����,���.�	������4��2
�����
���+��0	��������,�	1.6��/������4��0+��
�	�.6��
�6�1�+�	�����
�
��-�	���������6����+���	��/��	���-�����/����
���	����8���
��4�����-�-�	����	�6����/���6����
���-+�	�3�166���.������	�
��	�����/���6����
�������	����0�����10����/���6����
�������	�
��0	���31-/���6����
�	����0�-���/���6����
�9������/���6����
�
����.-����7�4�������������	����/�:������	�+�����-�������
��;4�		�
��	�6�
�,	�����������02�</��	1�����
�,�		�����,��+���
��6�	��+�	��/�5�7�-�02�����,�0��0���������-��0+���/�-����+�	��
���������;.��1�	</���	�����.��������0�
���-�������02�-������
�����������6���/�����0����������	�����0�����10��������02�
��	�6�����/�����������������	���/�0�	��/�	�-�,��.�������/�
��	1��7����	�0��4�;.�=����-������
��--	�0������-������
�
���>1������-�����
��+1��	��-�����
���-�-�����<
�,�		�����,�
��0��02��67���7�.��+��������7��1�,�0�/���������.�����/����	�
��0��6�������	�+�1���	�6����/����,,�0�0�����	�67���7�.��+��/�
��?����4�0	�����/�?����.��+�-1		����3��		�0��0�����-�1�����
���-���������

��������#*����6�������6���.���/���-+�	���+�@�	��/���.�����1.-���
��;�����7������	������.�=�������+���	����61	2�0�.���</�
������-��	�����������������		��/��+102������/��+1���+���	��
�
��-�1�����0��0����
��+��+���	�����,��+��0+1���,��.�����7.�=�
����102�
��10+����4�		�
��	�6�
���02�
�,	����
�,�1�������
�
��,�������
�01�6
��1��������������4�	2�/����0�����01���
�
���.-��@��1��.�.6���������,��.���	��/��1���������0+��-�������
��;��.�	�����</������������
�+��+4�7�������������-�@���
�
�����-���
��1�4�7��������.�	����7-��+��@7�0�����10����/����
�
����	����8���4�����-�-�	����4��--���3�-��������������,��.�
��-�����/��1�����0+����/�A�����6�����-������3���-+�	��
�������		�������,��		���-+�	���@��	�7�,�6��0�����.������	��
��1����,�������,��0������-+�	�/���6����
�-�02������������	�
������-���/�:�.6�����@�-���6������������		��/���4���6���.�
���4��-���;�.�		</���-��-������-�@��
�-	�0�������������4���
����02���0��0����/�������0��-���������		��/����6	������;-���
��������</��-��0����2�����������������		���;	���</����2�
���0�	�������0	�����/������0	�.6��
�,�		��
�0+������4�
���-������
������61��+�0+�--���������.�	����7-��6�1�+�
���+������/���������1���	�6����
���0	1�����0�������6�		�4���

��������!*��1��7.�6�	��-�����/����0�����01���������0+/����0�����
��-�	��01����/�5��		��
�9�02+�..��
�#3�8#�,������		�����	����
��	�����/�5��3-�23���.�0+���/����
���	����8���4�����-�-�	����
��4��--��
�'3����-�-�������@��
�67���7�.��+��
������������
���1�/�A��+��0�	���;��0	1��������		�����,���.�</�A7�����������
��������.�	����7-�/�).-�0��4���0+�.1	��3-	���/�B���	��-�����
�
��-���-����������4��2�����--	7������-+�	�
�	�732�	�
�

Page 81 of 95140



������������	
�������
�������
�
	�������������
�	��
��������	�
��������������	�
�����
��
��������
����������	
���
��������������
�	�������
��������
�����������������
�����
��������������������
���������	����
�����	����
����
���
������
�����������������������
���	���
����������	����������
���
�
	���������
��	����	��������������	���	���
�
�������
���
��������
�������������������		��������
�����	��
���������
���
���
���������� ���������!
��	���� ��������������������
����
������
�������
������"�
��������	
������	�
�����
����
���
������
��	�
����������������"�
�������
��
���������������
���		�����������
�����!������������	���
�������#�����	
������
��#����������
�
�������	�
�	������������������
��
���
������
�
����$���	������������������
��	
�����������%�������
��&������'�����������
�
	���������%�����
�������
����
������������		���

��(#�)!�*+�,�����������-����������������������,����	���������
��	�����������
������������	�����������������������	��
�������������-�����		���������.����������������������		���
���	����������
	
��������
����������������.������������
�������������
�����		������	�������������
����	���������
������������.�
��������������	���
���������
��������������
������
����������
����	���
�����������/����������	
������
����������������	���������
���
�����������������������������
��
���������
����
���	������� �������������
0�����������
���
�����������������12�	��3�����������!
��	������������
���
���		�����
����
������	��
�������
����		��
�������
��������
��������
����������
�
����
���
������
������
	�����	��
������
��������
����
��	�
������������		������������	��������
�	��
�����������
��������		
�������������		
������
����������
������������
����������������	������
���������������
��������
�����������������������	����������������������
������������	
��������
����������������������������������
���
���������������������������������
�	��������
�������
����	��������
�	�
������
�������4��"�
����
����������
��
���
�����������!������
�����������	��
����		����$����	������
�����00	������������������	���
���!�����$����&	�����%����
��
��	�����	������.���
�
��3�

��(#�)!�5+�&	���������������		���������	���
�����	�����	��
���
�������	���
�������		�������������-�	��
����������������������
��������	��������������������������	���
��������	��
����
��6�
		��+�,		���������
		����-�	�
���"�������������������
���������
����������������������	�
�	���
����������������		�
�����������������
��	���
		���
���������������������������
�����
����������%�-
��������������	��&��
�����������	������
��
�������
���	�������

�����������������������������������������������������������������
��,&�2758�22*�2192:9828:�

�#,4(;�.�)4%<�

����������������������������������#��������������=�
�����

&�
���%�����333333333333333333333>�?53@8������������823*5�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
��,&�21@?�22?�2192:982:A�

#��
����
�	��*�$���
���

$,4�&;#4,#6B4��.�)4%<�

����������������������������������#��������������=�
�����

Page 82 of 95141



����������
��������	
�����������������������������������������������
��������	
�����������������������������������������������
��������	
�����������������������������������������������
��������	
�����������������������������������������������
��������	
�����������������������������������������������

��������������������������

�����	
������� !"!#� !$�% !$�"!#�&'�( !���'&)*+,��&!-)�.��
��+-)��$"!#�'&)�)&/#%�+.)"0�1&'',��&!-)�.�2�3 .�)�-/)"!#,�
��4�*&�"."&!�� 5&)�)2�.%��-�� !"!#�&'�5)"-0�"'�(�)'&)*�$�56� �
��3&)0�)�(�)'&)*"!#� !6�&.%�)�(% +��&'�$�*&�"."&!�3&)02� !$�
��.%��-�� !"!#�&'��/*5�),��")��3 .-%�)2��"*5�)2�5)/+%��& $�)2�
��("��)� !$�$�5)"+�% !$��),��� #�(�)+&!,�� +2�&"�� !$7&)�
��3 .�)�("(��"!��� 5&)�),�� 5&)�)2� +(% �.1)/55�)�* .�)" ��
���& $�),�� 5&)�)2�#�!�) ��&)�-&!+.)/-."&!,�� 5&)�)2�#�!�) ��
��-�� !1/(,�� 5&)�)2�� !$+- ("!#,�� 5&)�)2�8�.."!#,�� 5&)�)2�
��.�*(&) )6�3 .�)� !$� ")��"!�+,�9 .�)" ��%&+��&(�) .&)�
��:3 ��+2�+� 5+2�'�&&)+� !$�$�-0+;,�
�/##"!#2�'"��"!#�&'�+%���
��5&�.�%&��+,�4)6�( -0"!#�&'�-&!-)�.�� !$�( .-%"!#,�(&+.�%&���
��$"##�)�:* !/ �;,� "�)& $�* "!.�! !-�2�)�( ")�.) -0�(�)+&!�
�� !$�)& $�5�$+,�.)��.- )� !$�) "�)& $�-&!+.)/-."&!�.) -0�
��� 5&)�)+,��"##"!#� !$+"#! �"!#,��- ��),���"(�'&)*�) "+�),�
����/))6�+� ��-)�3�:*"<�)�&(�) .&)2� ((�"- .&)�&(�) .&)2�
��+=/��#���(�)+&!2�+%/..���(�)+&!2�.&(�(�)+&!;2�'"��"!#�&'�
��-) -0+�56� !6�*�.%&$�&!� !6�+/)' -�,�� )� !$�*&). ),��&&��
��-)"5�&)�.&&��%&/+��� 5&)�),��) ''"-�-&!.)&��56� !6�*�.%&$,�
��>"!$&3�-�� !�),�>")��*�+%�(/��"!#�1� ���-&!-)�.��(&/)"!#�
��&(�) ."&!+�

�����	
������+5�+.&+� 5 .�*�!.,��+(% �.�+%&?���),���*�!.�$/*(�)�
��:&!���6$��&)�� )#�)�*"<�)� !$�% !$�"!#�5/�0�-�*�!.;,�
����++(&&��$"##�)� !$�"!+. ���),��%/-0.�!$�),��%/.��% !$��)2�
��(&/)"!#�-&!-)�.�2�.%��% !$�"!#�&'�.%��-%/.��')&*�)� $6*"<�
��.)/-0+2�+/-%� +�3 ��+2�+� 5+2�$�-0+2�'�&&)+2�'&/!$ ."&!2�
��'&&."!#+2�-/)52�#/..�)+� !$�+"$�3 �0+,��&!-)�.��-/)�)2�
��"*(�)?"&/+�*�*5) !�� !$�'&)*�&"��),��/.."!#�.&)-%�&(�) .&)�
��:$�*&�"."&!;,��"!��#) $�)2�%"#%3 6+� !$�+.)��.�( ?"!#2�
�� ")(&).2�)/!3 6+� !$�+"*"� )�.6(��%� ?6�-&!+.)/-."&!,�� +2�
��&"�� !$7&)�3 .�)�("(��"!��3) ((�)�1�(&.�.�!$�)� !$�'&)*�
��(�)+&!,��/"!� �-% +�),�@� $�)5& )$�(�)+&!�1� +(% �.�
��"!+. �� ."&!�&'� ��� +(% �.�&?�)� 6�' 5)"-� !$�* .�)" �+�
��/+�$�'&)�)�"!'&)-"!#� +(% �.,�� 5&)�)2�( -0"!#�)&$�+.����
�� !$�( !+,�9�*5) !��? (&)�5 ))"�)�"!+. ���),�
&3�)�5)&&*�
��+3��(�)�:+* ��;,��"() (�+.&!�( ?�)2�(� -"!#�+.&!��&)�3�.�
��+ -0�$�-&!-)�.�,��&.&�+-) (�)� !$�."���),�� !$5� +.�)�:(&.�
��.�!$�);,���(."-�. !0�$"##�)� !$�"!+. ���)�:�� $;,�� !0�
��+- ��)� !$�-�� !�),��)���-�"*5�)2�' ���)2�-% "!�+ 3�
��&(�) .&)2�
"..+5/)#%�-%"((�)� !$�+"*"� )�.6(��5)/+%�
��+%)�$$�),�	!$�)#)&/!$�� 5&)�)2�"!-�/$"!#�- "++&!�5���&3�)�

�����	
�����/##6*&5"���(�)+&!,��&!-)�.��-/.."!#�.&)-%,��&!-)�.��
��("���-/..�),�4)"���)2�8 -0% **�)2��1�7��'.��$)"���+.����&)�
���&!#�),�4)"1( 01".�* -%"!�,�� +2�&"�� !$7&)�3 .�)�("(��"!��
��3) ((�)2��1"!��("(�� !$�&?�)2�56� !6�*�.%&$2�"!+"$�� !$�
��&/.,�@"#%�+- ��)�:"!-�/$"!#�$)"��"!#�&'�+ *�;,�@6$)&�+��$�)�
�� !$�+"*"� )�.6(�,��*( -.�3)�!-%�*/�."1(� .�,�A�..���(�)+&!2�
��(&.�(�)+&!� !$�3&)0�)+� ((�6"!#� +(% �.2�� 610&�$2�
��-)�&+&.�2��"*��- /+."-� !$�+"*"� )�.6(��* .�)" �+�
��:BB ((�6"!#BB�*� !+� ((�6"!#2�$"(("!#2�5)/+%"!#�&)�% !$�"!#�
��&'�+/-%�* .�)" �+�'&)�("(��3) (("!#� !$�3 .�)()&&'"!#;,�
���(�) .&)�&'�(!�/* ."-2�# +2����-.)"-�.&&�+2�?"5) ."!#�
��* -%"!�2�( ?�*�!.�5)� 0�)2� ")�5� +."!#2�-&*�1 �&!#+2� !$�
��+"*"� )�*�-% !"- ��.&&�+�!&.�+�( ) .��6�-� ++"'"�$�%�)�"!,�

Page 83 of 95142



����������	��
����������	��������������������	���		�����	�
�����������������������������������������������	�������	���
��������	�������	���
����	��������	��������	����������	��
���	���	����	�������������������	�������	��	���	���	���	��
���������������������������������������������������	�����
��������������
���������������������	������������	��
�������
�����������������������	��������	���������� �������
��!������"�������	��������������� ��	���	�������	���
����	�#��������

��$�%&��'(�)	����������*����������������������)�������������
�����������	�����	���������������������	���	���������
�������������*���+�������,��-�	������������������+�����
��
������������	��,�����	���������	�����-�	����������
�������	�������	���������
��������������	��������	���
����	�������-��������������������	���������	���	�����	���
�������	�����	�#�����������	����������.�����������	�����
�����������������#�����������������������������	�������������
���	���		�����	���������������������%���#��/����	������
���������������������01���2��	��������������������
����	��
��������������	��������	���	���	�������	��
������
����
���������	���
��������	��������	�����������	�����������	��
�
����������	���	����	���	���	����
������
�����������������
��������������������������	�	#���������	������	���	��
��������������	����������
��������������������
�������
����	����	���
��	��������	����������	������������������
������������������������������������������������������	��
������������������������	�������
���������
��������������
��������������������
�����������3�#���	��������	���������	��
���
����������
������������	�����	���������	��������
��+	�//�������	,�������������	������������#!����� ��

���
���	����������-����
���2�

��$�%&��4(�!����������������������
�����	������������	��
���	�������	���
�����������	���*���������
����������������
�������������
�������������
������������	���	������	���
��5����(�)��������������*����	����������������������
�������������	�������	�����������������	�����	���	���	����
���������
������	�������������������������������
�����
�
���������������� �*�����������������!���	���������������	���
��������	���������

################################################################�
��)!%1067#118�1091:9;1;:�

�)3�!<�3)�5=3%�-%&3 >�

�������������������������������������������������?��	����

!����� �	���222222222222222222222@�7426;������������;12'4�
################################################################�
��)!%::6'#11:�1091:9;1;:�

�������������������������������������������������?��	����

��������(�+.%�=A%3 )�����
5=�<- =%3)��5�=��=3$,���
�����+:,�5���	��-�����������222@�7626B������������:02:1�
�����+;,�C������%�������9.����2@�7B218������������:02:1�
�����+7,�.���/�	���5�������	���
�����5���%�������22222222222222@�'12B:������������:02:1�
�����+',�<�����	��� �����	���
������������222222222222222222222@�';2B:������������:02:1�
��������(�+� �=�=3$9��&��>����
�<)�,���

Page 84 of 95143



���������������������������������	�
����������������������
���������������������������������	�
��
�������������������
��������������������������������	�
�
�������������������
�����������
���������������������	�
����������������������

��������������������������������������

������������������ !����"� #$%�&"!�'�#��(�") #$%� #�)*+ #$�
����&" ��"#+�, )) #$��,���"�-(�./�"#/�'��0�+��#�"#/�(*�,"���
�� #�&"�- #$�)��(%�$"'����*��(�"#+�&)"/$��*#+(1��"�(��&(1�
���&��"� �#��,�"))���)"��+�'"�0 #��/�"#+��2* &'�#�1��2* &'�#��
����&" �����0# � "#�

�������������",, ��(*�,"���".�"( !��.)"(���1�&�����#+�����
����'�!")��,�"))���",, ��) #�(�"#+�'"�- #$(�./�"#/�'��0�+�
��3("#+.)"(� #$%�4"���.)"(� #$%�$� #+ #$%�����5�"#+�
��&��&"�"� �#��,�(*�,"���,�����"� #$(�����",, ����#���)�
��&��(�#����#���)) #$�"#+�+ ���� #$���",, ���0��*$0�.��0�
����#!�#� �#")�"#+�'�! #$�)"#���)�(*��(1��&��"� �#��,�"))�
����)"��+�'"�0 #��/�"#+��2* &'�#��

������������",, ��+�) #�"� #$�+�! ���"&&) �"������"/�*��"#+�
��"&&) �"� �#��,�&"!�'�#��'"�-��(%�+�) #�"� #$�( $#(%��*'.)��
��"#+���",, ��."�(%�"+0�( !�(%�$* +��'"�-��(%���0�����",, ��
��+�) #�"� #$�+�! ��(� #�)*+ #$���",, ����#���)���0 (�
���"��$��/� #�)*+�(�"))���",, ����)"��+�(*�,"���&��&"�"� �#�
��3("#+.)"(� #$%�4"���.)"(� #$%�$� #+ #$5�"(�&"����,��0��
��"&&) �"� �#�&����((����",, ��&������ !��+�) #�"� #$�(/(��'�
�� #(�"))������'�!�(%���)��"��(%� #(�"))(%�&��'"#�#�)/�
��",, 6�+���"+( +��"#+�&"�- #$�+�) #�"� �#�."�� �"+�(%�
��,�#� #$%��".)��"#�0��%�$*"�+��" )%���,���#���( $#(%�
��'�#*'�#��'"�-��(1��&��"� �#��,�"))���)"��+�'"�0 #��/�"#+�
���2* &'�#�1�&�4���.���'�(4��&���

��������
����� &����)"/�*��"#+�"&&) �"� �#��,���",, ��(�� &�(�
��"#+�'"�- #$(1�0����0��'��&)"(� �1��"&����",, ��(�� &�(�"#+�
��'"�- #$(%� #�)*+ #$���",, ����#���)1��&��"� �#��,�"))�
����)"��+�'"�0 #��/�"#+��2* &'�#��

�����������������������������������������������������������������
�������7
�����89��9���:�

��( +�#� ")%�
����� �(�

�;���������<���=����<�����������

�����������������������������������"��(������������ #$�(�

����������
���������������������������������	����
����������������:�
���������������������������������	���8:����������������:�
��������������������������������	�>�
����������������:�
�����������
���������������������	�8�7:����������������:�
���������������������������������	�7��
����������������:�

��������������������������

������������)�"# #$�"#+�0"#+) #$��,�&"#�)�,��'(1���#������
��(����+ #$�,�����*$0�(�� -���,,1���#�����%�4"�����*� #$1�
��<�'�) � �#�)".����%��0���)�"# #$��,�.� �-� ,�&��,��'�+�./�"�
��4��-���&��,��' #$�"#/���0���&0"(���,�+�'�) � �#�4��-%�"#+�
���0���)�"# #$��,�)*'.��1�� ���4"��0��%�) '.��%�.�*(0�)�"+��%�
��& )���"#+�+�.� (�0"#+)��1��)"$�&��(�#1��"(%�� )�"#+9���
��4"����& &�) #��)".����1��".����%�"(&0")���*..���'"��� ")�
��)�"+��1��".����%�$�#��")������#(��*�� �#1��".����%�$�#��")�

Page 85 of 95144



���������	
����������������	���
����������������
���������
�����	������������������������
��������������	������
��������������������������������
��������������������������
����������
� ���	���������������������	�������
�	�������
�����������������
!����������������������	����������	�����
��������������
"��������������������������������������
���������
�!�������������������
�"�����
�"��	�����������
�
��"�������������������#���	��������		�������	�������
���$�������	��������������	�������	�	�����������������
�����������������������������������
�%������������
�%��
�����������������������
�%�������������������������
�
��&������������
�&���������	���������������������	������
��	��������

��'!()��*+��,����������������
�,�	�������-����
�.���������	���
�����/���0������������#����������������������������
�
��.���	����������������������
�.����������
�.��������������
��	���������������������������������������������������#�
�������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������������������
�.��������������
����	��-�������������������������
�.������������	������
������������
�1��������������������������������	�-�����
�����	��������������������������	�����-������������
�'����
��������2��������	�	���������		�����	�����������������
��	����
�'������������
�3����������	���������	�����
����������������������	�����-���������������������������
�����������������������	����
���������	����������������
������	���
����������-�	�������������������
����������
������	����������
�!�	��	�����	�-����	������������������
����������������
�!������	�������������
�"������������	��
���������
�"�	������������������������������������
�%����
��������������������
�%�������������������������������
��	���������������������		�����������������	��������
����������
�)�������������������������������������������

��'!()��4+�5����������	����
�.�������������������
�.�������
��	����������
� ��������������������*�/2*���0���������������
�������
� ���	�������������
�'����������2��������	�	������
�����		����6���0�	�	������-�����������������������������
����
�3��������������������������������������
�3�����������
����������������	�
�7�	�����������������	����
�8������	������
��	��	�����������������		��������	���������������
�������������������������������������	������������
���99�		�����99��������		���������		�������������������������
����������������������	�	�����		�������������	������
�
��(	��������	�����������������������������-���������
�����������	�-��������������������������������������������
������������������������������	�������������������������
�
��	����������������������������������������������
�������������:�����
����	������:�������	�	��������������
�������������������������������������������������	������
�������������������������������������	�������������������
��������������-����
������	�������������
��!����������
�
��!����������������������	�������������������		����
�����������
�"������������������������������������
�%��	����
��5�����&��������������������	�
�%������������������
�������	�	������

��'!()��;+�,����������#	����������������
��,�	������������
�������	���������������	��������	�	������������	�����
���	��������#����������	���
�.��������������������������
������������������������������������
�.�����������
��	������������������������������������������������
���������
�.��������������������������������������������
�������������������������������������
�3���������������
�

Page 86 of 95145



������������	
�������������	�����������
��	������	��������
��������������������������	�������������	������������
�����������
������������	��������������
��� ���
��!�����"�
������	������	��������� ��"�������	���������!�
�
��!����
�����
�����!���������"�
�
��������������������
�������!�
���
����������������"��� ���������!���	��!�����������������
���������
�
��������������������������������������� �
�������	������ � 
���!����������������	���!������
������� ��"��!��� �	��	�����������������������������
��	���"���	�����"�	���������������
���������	����������
����������"����������������!���������!�������������
������������������	�!����������#��$����
�
������	��

��"�
���!�	��������!�������������������	�������%������	���
��&�������
��	��'����������	��"������%���(��	��)��!!���
����������	�����*���!�����

��+,�-��./�(��	���
�����������������!�������"�����	��
�����"�
���������	��"��!�����
�����������0
��	���	��!��������� 
���
����"�����		��!��������	���!���	����������"�����
�����"��
��1������/�2���
����������	���0������"�$������������������
�������������������"��������������
�������������� ���������
�� 
�	��!�����������������	���������"���������!�����!�
��������
������)�0�����	�����������(����"�	 	�������������
��������"��������

�����������������������������������������������������������������
��2(�3345���.���6�367�73�

89�:,82��2#1�,8;:,%81:�*�-#)8:%�

����������������������������������,��	����������<���"�	�

(�����)��������������������������=�>.�47������������7��5.�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
��2(�3535���7��46�.67�7��

����������������������������������,��	����������<���"�	�

�������	/�&3���>�%����	'���
��������	���*�����-
������������=�>5��>������������73��3�
��������	���)�������������������=�>?�.4������������73��3�
�������	/�&5�%����	'���
��������	���*������
������������=�>5��>������������73��3�
��������	���)�������������������=�>?�.4������������73��3�

@���������	���"�	�"��	��!!���/�=3����
�������������������

@������9����� �(�	�	����=>��������������
�������/�
��*��������#�����2�
������	�(�	���<���8������+���"��2<(��
��9������*��
	�2���%�����7A�����	��8�
������(�����#�����2���
��%������9������*��
	���"�	��	�%�

� �(�	���9������*��
	�
���������9�����	���9�������@��!����)������"�*������#�����
��2���<����� �%���� ��#����8	�����#�����2���%������
��;��������"�2<(��

�����������������������������������������������������������������
��28#��>?���.���6�367�3A�

����������������������������������,��	����������<���"�	�

�28#):,�&��������"���������
�������'���
�����8�
���������	�2�"���	���
���������"���,����	����B�%����
�����(����������

Page 87 of 95146



��������������	
�����������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������������
��������������
�� �
�!��
������"
#�$��	���������������������%������������������%��
�����&�
�'�	$�()	$��*�&�
����
�����+��)����!�,�
�����
��������������	
���������������������%�������������������
��������������������������������������%������������������
��������������
�� �
�!��
������"
#�$��	���������������������%������������������%��
----------------------------------------------------------------�
�.�"/����-������0��0�����

"1.2�"�'*�'(&��/32'2&*�(��/32*��",2�&"42*�&�/�+2�/��4"/(*�&�/�
'5"&�(+"&.(*�&�/6��+��+�����/4�,2/65���7(5/6"2&�

��������������������������������������$����������8�	
9�$�

4�:;�''�8"/"&<2�06�.2������������������������������������
----------------------------------------------------------------�
�.�"/����-��%���0��0�����

"1.2�"�'�

��������������������������������������$����������8�	
9�$�

3'�="2����������������������������%����������������������
----------------------------------------------------------------�
�.�"/����-������0��0�����

'(&��/32'2&*�(��/32*��",2�&"42*�&�/�+2�/��4"/(*�&�/6��+��+����
�/4�,2/65���

��������������������������������������$����������8�	
9�$�

3'�="2����������������������������%��%�������������������

��8((6/(62>���##	�	�
�����������������?��������	
���@�
#�*�
��?�� �������	�#����#��?������
#������##	�	�
������������
�������?���������
��������$	#���?�����)�	�#	
9�?�� ���$�	
9�
��$��9������
��$�$��
#�#�@�
��	A�
@�*�?�� �����9���
#�����

----------------------------------------------------------------�
�.�"/����-������0��0�����

"1.2�"�'�

��������������������������������������$����������8�	
9�$�

&(86�8'((��'�:2������������������������������������������
----------------------------------------------------------------�
�.�"/����-������0��0�����

&�/�'5"&�(+"&.(�

��������������������������������������$����������8�	
9�$�

3'�="2����������������������������%����������������������
----------------------------------------------------------------�
�.�"/��%�-������0��0�����

'(&��/32'2&*�(��/32*��",2�&"42*�&�/�+2�/��4"/(*�&�/�'5"&�
(+"&.(*�&�/6��+��+�����/4�,2/65���

Page 88 of 95147



���������������������������������������������������	
����

�������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������

 !��� ��"�#��$"�����$%����"���$%�"�� &��� '�"���$�(��$��' $"�
��$��) ��( ��"���$���(��(�����$'�&�$�)���

���������������������������������������������������	
����

������������
�������������*�	����������������������������������������+�
���������*�	��������������������������������������������+�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������

���������������������������������������������������	
����

,�!�$��!��$�,$,������ $ �-���������������������������+��
�����������������������������������������������������������������
���)!���.������+���������

���������������������������������������������������	
����

��)!(���� ��� �������
��������	/�
�	�0����������������������.����������������.��
�����������������������������������������������������������������
���)!����������+���������

����$%������$'���$%��

���������������������������������������������������	
����

���� %���� $�!�,-�$ ,���
�������1�	�����	*
��	����������������������������������.��
�����������������������������������������������������������������
���)!����������+���������

���������������������������������������������������	
����

��)!(�����
�������
/�2�3�� ��	���	*
��	������������������������������
�������4���5���*�6�'��	
�7*�8�������+��+������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������������
������.������+���������

����$%����"���$%�"�� &��� '�"���$�(��$��' $"����$��) ��
( ��"���$���(��(�����$'�&�$�)���

���������������������������������������������������	
����

�**1������������������������������������������������������

��$��9��	�2:�3��6	;69�7*�8�*
�4:	2:��630*<���������=3*��/�
��*�3	�2:�1;6���*����>;	��/��*�:�
/0��3	�2:"�3	�2:�?����*��
�3	�2:�	63���
���/�3�*/;2��"�*���
<�6����	�0�2*
��	
	
��2*�0�
�����3	�2:"��:���
�	����**1	
��2��4��:�00���2�	@��������3���
�:*;��AA3	�2:�3��6	;6AA�3�<��

Page 89 of 95148



�����������������������������������������������������������������
���������	���
����������

���������

���������������������������������������������������������

��������������������������������� �
���	�����������������
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�!�"��##$���	���������

�����%����������"�&'()*���!��'+���!�"�&'()�,-����������./0-��
�1��.��2������3���4�"���/������/��-4���-��1���5�����������
����/���"�0��2�6��1����	�3�/�������1��.��2�/�3�����������
����/��7*����'+��"�&'()�,-����������./0-��"���/������/��-*�!���
"/�3�������/��-*�"��2����!��������*���-���3���-�������������
"�0��2�6��1����	�3�/�������1��.��2�/�3���������������/��7*�
��8��!�9��"�&'()*��'9�!�'�:��'��9�'��"�&'()�,-����������./0-��
�1������1����5�������"��2����"1���4�����1��.�������������./����
��-��������7�

������%��!�'��&�!��:�!��4�!�'(��:��:����"�&'(��!4�8�'(&���
,-����������./0-�������;0���3�4�������0�04��1��.��2����!�����
��0/�4���-��1���5�������8���0���"�0��2�6��1����	�3�/�������1��
.��2�/�3���������������/��7�"�&'(��!�

���������������������������������������������������������

!���'<������((�����
�������������������������������� �
$�=
�������������#��
�
��������������������������������� �
=�$	�������������#�	�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�!�"����$�������������

��!��'+���!�"�&'()�,�1��.��2������3���4�"���/������/��-4���-�
�1���5���������������/���"�0��2�6��1����	�3�/�������1��.��2�
/�3���������������/��7*����'+��"�&'()�,!���"/�3�������/��-4��1��
.��2����!��������4���-��1���5��������������"�0��2�6��1����	�
3�/�������1��.��2�/�3���������������/��7*�!�'�:��'��9�'��"�&'()�
,�1������1����5��������1��.��2����"1���4���-��1��.���������
����./������-��������7*�8�'(&����"�&'()�,�����;0���3�4������
�0�04��1��.��2����!�������0/�4���-��1���5�������8���0���"�0��2�
6��1����	�3�/�������1��.��2�/�3���������������/��7�

���������������������������������������������������������

!���'<������((������������������� ��=���������������$�	�
�����������������������������������������������������������������
�!;����	�������������

�����%����!��'+���!�"�&'()�,!�0�1������������1��/����-��6��
>��6�������3�����-�:��������4��?./0-�����1�������!�0�1����
�35����/�;��16�2����������1����������/�����@��4��?./0-�����1��
.��������������:��.14�"/���3���4���-���3���4��?./0-����"���/����
��/��-7�

������%���!��'+���!�,��3���-��74����'+�4���8��!�9��A�!�'�
:��'��9�'��"�&'(��!�

B��C����������/��1����3���/���-�1���������-�����.��-������������
����/����3�/2�-6�//����4�30/��5/����3�/2�-6�//����4����.C�1�3���
��-��5���3����>0�/-�������-�@�-0�//2�.��-������-�>2���5������
��-���-�5��-����0���������2���3��

Page 90 of 95149



���������������������������������������������������	
����

��������������������
����������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������������
                                                                �
�������! ������"��"�����

#�$��#���

���������������������������������������������������	
����

�%��������&�'��()#(#�)*����������������������������������
�������������������������������������!�������������������

�������������()#(#�)� ��(�$�+�
������,	��	
�����	-�
�	�&�./	&-	
��0�.1�%��	
�&���
-�
��2/&�	 3�2	&40�5%������6%�/
	��	��%����-��
-"1��611&�-�.4���
����7�������4���2��.��)�5��	
�&��3�2	&4����	-�
�	�&�./	&-	
���
��	
6&/-	
�����6�����6��)�5�2/&�	 3�2	&4����	-�
�	�&�
��./	&-	
��0�
1���,6��-	
��3	8����1�	���13�&	8	
���7�6��	
�
��%�	�%�0�7�18	-�-���6%�/
	��	��%����-�1��611&�-�.4���
����7�������4���2��1��&���
-�21��&�������,6&/-�-���-���#9��
��(�����(#�������+��
4��%����2���&0�%���	
���
-��	��
��61
-	�	1
	
��51�:�7��31�2�-�1
���7�1;�6��5%�����%���1��&�
��61
���/6�	1
�61��0��,6&/-	
��&�
-0�	��/
-�����0���0��������
����)�)��#�$��<���)������+��
4�51�:�
�6�����4��1�3	
	�%�
��	
���	1���7�6����1�61
31�2��1��%��166/7�
���13�6122��6	�&�
��./	&-	
��0��3����6127&��	1
�13��%��./	&-	
���%�&&�

                                                                �
�������� �����="��"�����

��)��>#���?#�$�0���)���?��?�����)@�<�)�>���

���������������������������������������������������	
����

�����������������������������������!�=�������������������

����#@�A�+�)�5�A���B��@�40�����	
��/�%����	
��@�40�$���	-�
�B��
��@�40�911-���	-�40���21�	�&�@�40�#
-�7-�
-�
6��@�40���.1��
��@�40�<�����
��@�40�%�
:	��	8	
��@�4�C���	-�4��3���0�
��(%�	��2���@�4�

                                                                �
��������� ������"��"�����

���������������������������������������������������	
����

��/6:�-�	8���+���
�����9��>$������������������������������������������������
�����9��>$������������������������������������������������
�����9��>$����������������������������=�������������������
�����9��>$�����������������������������!������������������
�����9��>$������������������������������������������������
�����9��>$��!���������������������������������������������
�����9��>$������������������������������������������������
�����9��>$��=�������������������������!�������������������
�����9��>$����������������������������=�������������������
�����9��>$������������������������������������������������
�����9��>$����������������������������!�������������������
�����9��>$������������������������������������������������

Page 91 of 95150



������������	
�
������������������������������
�
������
��������� !�	�"#$%��!%&�'� ���()%"*!&�'+#$����,%&��-.�"-!��/&�
�����'%$*"(���0���/�1#�#*2&�/("*�
".#$&�3%("4%��/&�	�"#$%�
��'("�!��(4#!*#1!��!%��*��%)(�5��%" (&�	(6$*�#$���"7�"%�
���"�#$#$4�'%$*%"&�"#-4%�("*&��(#$*��"46%��(&��(#$*�
��'($1%�*#($&�8�$-%$)%"4��/9�

���'����
8����'����
/
'��
����

3�����:���"61,�-"#0%"�

��3���������"#0%"�(7�0%+#1�%�("�1( )#$�*#($�(7�0%+#1�%!�����
���;�%!<��"�77#1�1($*"(���#�(*�1�"�%;1�6-#$4� (0#$4�+%�02�
��%=6#� %$*��%" #*��(�-<��"61,� (6$*%-�)"(( �

��3���������"#0%"�(7�0%+#1�%�("�1( )#$�*#($�(7�0%+#1�%!�����
���;�%!<�((*��%"!($<�'% %$*� �!($�-#!*"#)6*#($�*"61,<�/6%��
��*"61,�-"#0%"<���*%"�*"61,������;�%<��6 ��*"61,&��%!!�*+�$�
��:>�2-!��.�*%"��%0%�<��"(!#($�1($*"(��-"#0%"�

��3�����?���"#0%"�(7�*"�$!#*� #;�*"61,&�6$-%"���2-!�<��6 �1"%*%�
��*"61,&��%!!�*+�$�>�:@��2-!��.�*%"��%0%��

��3�����A����*%"�*"61,&���("� ("%��;�%!<��"61,�4"%�!%"��$-�*#"%�
���%"!($�B���A���--#*#($���7("�*#"%��%"!($C<��#�%�#$%��$-�
��6*#�#*2�.(",#$4�*"61,�-"#0%"&�#$1�6-#$4�.#$1+�*"61,��$-�
�����!*#1�76!#($&��# #*%-�*(��#�%�#$%��$-�6*#�#*2�.(",<�
����6""2�*"61,�-"#0%"�

��3�����>���"�$!#*� #;�*"61,&���2-!��("� ("%<��6 �1"%*%�*"61,&�
��>�:@��2-!��.�*%"��%0%���$-�(0%"<�8%+#1�%�("�1( )#$�*#($�(7�
��0%+#1�%!���?�("� ("%��;�%!<��#��!�"%�-%"�*"61,<��6 ��*"61,&�
��:>�2-!��*(��A�2-!��.�*%"��%0%��

��3�����D����/"� %&��.%-#!+�1"�$%�("�!# #��"<�/(",�#7*�-"#0%"<�
���(!!�1�""#%"�-"#0%"�

��3�����E���6 ��*"61,&��A�2-!��*(�?��2-!��.�*%"��%0%�<��"61,�
��"%��#"��%"!($<���*%"��6�����!#$4�%�%$4#$%<��%�-%"�

��3���������"61,�"%��#"��%"!($@.%�-%"<��(.�)%-�-"#0%"&����;�%!�
��("�(0%"�

��3�����:����6 ��*"61,���A��2-!��("� ("%�.�*%"��%0%�<���*%"�
���6�����!#$4�%�%$4#$%�.#*+��**�1+ %$*�

��3�����::����*%"��6�����*.#$�%$4#$%<���*%"��6�����*.#$�%$4#$%�
��.#*+��**�1+ %$*!<��#$1+�*"61,�-"#0%"����:��A��--#*#($���
��.+%$�(�%"�*#$4�.#$1+�("�!# #��"�!�%1#����**�1+ %$*!�

3�����:���(( ��"61,�:D���$-��)(0%

�����������������������������������������������������������������

�����������%1%#0%�"�*%��"%!1"#)%-�7("�1"�7*��%"7(" #$4�
(�%"�*#($�*(�.+#1+�.%�-#$4�#!�#$1#-%$*����

FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFF�
��
�(*%���;%16*#0%��"-%"�B��C�:�D�>&��!*�)�#!+#$4���#-��#1,��%�0%�
7("�/%-%"���'($*"�1*("!�����#%!�*(�����1($*"�1*!�!6)G%1*�*(�*+%�
��0#!��1($��1*�7("�.+#1+�*+%�1($*"�1*�#!��.�"-%-�B�$-��$2�
!(�#1#*�*#($�.�!�#!!6%-C�($�("��7*%"�H�$6�"2�:&���:D���
7�*+#!�
1($*"�1*�#!�1(0%"%-�)2�*+%���&�*+%�1($*"�1*("� 6!*��"(0#-%�

Page 92 of 95151



����������	
��������������
���
����������������������������
�����	�������������������������
���
��������������������
����������������������
��������������
���
����������������
��
�	��
��������
��������������������� ���������������
�����
�!�
�������
�������"�������
��������
����������#����������	���
��
�
������
������������������$�	���
��
����
���������������������
������ ���������������
�����
�!��������
�������"����������������
������
�!����������������
��������
����������#����������	���
��
�
������
������������������$�	���
�����
��
������������
��
�
����������%���������������������
�!���&��
�
�����
�������
���
����������������'�
������������	�������������
���������������(�

�����
���������			�����!��)	��)!�������������

*��
����������
�
���
���������������	��������
��������	
��
��
����������������������
�
���
�����
������������������������
�	����������������
����
���������������������������������������
#+,-./�����#�$�#$�#

$$��

                                                                �
��

0����������������	�!��������
���
����
�������������
�
���
���
����	�!����������������������������������������
�
�!���������
�
��������#�$�������������
���
��������������������������	�!��
������
���
����0��������
�
���
���������
�����
����������
����
���������11
����
�
���11������
��
�����	���������������
������
�����
������
��������#����������
�����!��
�������������������$��
��������������#	�
!����������!������$��������
��������!�������
#	�
!�������
��������!������$��

*�
���/����2����
�
����

&������������������
�
���
���������
��
���
����
�
������������

����������
������!
��
�!�	
�������������������������113*11����
11*&4511��������������������
��������
�
���
������������	����
�����
�
�!���������������
�
���
���
���������������%�����6�
78*9�,: �����;)�)+�<��78*9�
�����������
��
���
����
�
������
������
���	�
��������
����
�������������������
��
�����
�
���
����	�
���
����
���%������	��������7����������,:�

��
������������������
��������������
���
��������
���������
	���������
�������
�����7��������8������,:��0�����%����������
����
�������%�������
�����
��������������������
���������
�!�
����	�!��������
���
�����;)�)+�<�
������������
���������������
���������������!��
�����������	�
���
����
���%������
��=������
+�<��

*�
��������
�
�!�	�!����������������������������������������
����!���
�������������
������!�
�
�!��!��������#->&$�!�����
�!�
��
�������
�
���
�������������

3������/����2����
�
����

-����
�
���
�����
���������������113*11�
����
�
���
��
����������
�����������������
����������
�������
�
���
���
�����������������
��������
����������
�����
�������������
�!���	�
!����������!��
�������������������������������������
����������������������
�����
�
���
�����&����
��	�
!����������!�������
������������
���������������
��������������
������
��������������
�������
��� ��
�����������%�����6�3*8&+�+ ��;��)�)+�<��3*�
��
������
��������������������������������������	�
!����������!��
��������
�����������������������������
����������8&�
��
������
����3��������8��
�
�����+�+�
������������������������	�
���
�����������
�
���
�������������������������0�����%������������;�

�������%�������
�����
��������������������
��������
�!�����

Page 93 of 95152



����������	
���
�������������
��
�������������������	����
���
������������������
�
���
�������������������������
����
�
���

����������������������������������������	�
��
������������
����
�����������
������������

��
��� �������!����"����
�
����

#����
�
���
��$�%��
���������������� &'�
����
�
���
��
�����
���������
�����	�(��
�������������
��������������
�����
�
���
���)��������*����+������������������������������
�����
�
���
����������
��������,- ./0,1�� &'2342�����
�5��6������� &'�
��
��������������������
������
��������
���
�������������34�
��
����������������7�����8����	9��*������
��
�����8�	���*�
�����
����������	9��������
��������
������������
�����	
���
����5��6������
��
�������������������	����
��������
�������������
�
���
�������������������������
����
�
���

 �� &'�������
���9���������������������*���������
��:����������
���������*����������������
�����������������������������
�����
�����#; ���������������
�������������	���
������������
��
9�����

��

2222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222�

�������������������< ',�=,7,!."> 7"3>� //, 0��/!3#,���

�%�4���������9�������
�
�
������
�
���
������	�����?�7�
������
9�1�

@������8
��
�����9�
���������������	
���
���
@������������������
���������������	
���
���
@����<��������4����=
�
�
��������������
��������������
�
������
���������������	
���
���	������
@����������	�����$���
�
����������
�
���
�����������%����
���

3�����������������	������*�
�
�
����������*�
�����
�����A������
������		��
�������������*��������9���
�������<��������4����
!��
�����3��
����������������
����
����������������������������
9�������������!��
�����3��
����������������
9
�
�����������
=��
�2;������������������	�"������������������	���
��
�
�
���
��������
���������
��������*�����������������������
9���
���%�
�����%��������9�����������

<
�����������������������	���������������
��������������	���
�������������
9�������*�
�
�
������������������9���
�������
;���������#��������
���<����=����	
���
�����<�
�����1�

������������;���������#��������
���<����=����	
���
����
������������<��������4����=
�
�
��
���������������=�����	�������0�9���
����������������#����
���
��� �����*�><�
������������<���
�����*�=#�������

�%�"��������������������A����
���
���%�
�����*���������

����������������$���������������9���������
��%�������A�����
���
�������������
�����
������	�����<��������4���� �	
�
��������
$�����6�#B!�/�����5������6�#B!�/����C%�<�
�����1�

������������<��������4���� �	
�
��������
���������������=�����	�������0�9���
����������������#����
���
��� �����*�><�
������������<���
�����*�=#�������

Page 94 of 95153



����������	���
���������
������������������	�	����	�
��	���
��	����	������	�����
��	�
���������������
���	�
��������
������	���	�����
���	��������	�
������������	������	�������
�	����	��	�	���������	
���
���������������	�	
�	����������

���� ��	���������
��
��	���!������	��	
������
	����
���������
��	����	������	������������������	���	
�	���!������	��	����
"������#
������
�������	���$����!�������#
�������$��	��	
%�

������������!������	��	����"������#
����
������������&�'��(����	���	�
��)�
��
������������*++�,
��	�	�	�
��!�������-�$��
������������$������	
���(,�*+*.+�

/���!���������
�����	���!������	��	����"������#
���������������

0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000�

����������1-(�23�41-1"!)�(1, ' 2-5

��������

Page 95 of 95154



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Southern California Edison to Purchase a Grant of Easement and Right of Way..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

1. Approve a grant of easement and right of way to Southern California Edison, to use and 
maintain above ground electrical power system on real property owned by the Housing 
Authority of the County of San Bernardino, at 508 The Terrace in the City of Redlands. 

2. Authorize and direct the Executive Director, upon consultation with Legal Counsel, to accept 
and sign ancillary documents or exhibits necessary to finalize and record the grants of 
easement with the County of San Bernardino Recorder. 

(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB is a leading developer and provider of affordable housing in the County of San 
Bernardino. 
HACSB clients live in safe and desirable homes and communities where they can develop 
and prosper. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of this item will result in a net positive financial impact to the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino (HACSB) as the cost of recording these easement documents will be 
paid for by Southern California Edison (SCE), along with a payment of $10,100 from SCE to 
HACSB for the purchase of this easement.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
HACSB currently owns and manages approximately 1,300 units of multi-family housing 
throughout San Bernardino County of which various utility companies provide services to these 
properties. Utility company, SCE, would like to upgrade the power pole and lines already on this 
property.  The improvement will require a larger transmission easement of approximately 900 
square feet in an area behind our buildings adjacent to the alleyway.  As a result, approval of this 
item is necessary for SCE to improve the power pole and lines in this area of the community. The 
grant of easement and right of way is for a portion of HACSB’s real property at 508 The Terrace 
in the City of Redlands.  This action will not result any actual physical site work or disruption to 
the housing residents at this location.   
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 2, 2021. 

155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



 
  

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 

508 THE TERRACE, 
REDLANDS, CALIFORNIA  
 
 

10/2021 
 

167



  
 

 

 

 

1 508 THE TERRACE HAMPTON COURT 

1.1  GOOGLE MAP IMAGE 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 

168



  
 

 

Photos of the easement area: 

 

 
 
 

169



  
 

 

 
END OF MEMO 

170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Contract Amendment with Kimball, Tirey & St. John LLP for Eviction and Non-Eviction Services 

..End 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

1. Approve Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. PC973, effective January 1, 2022, with Kimball, 
Tirey, & St. John LLP for Eviction and Non-Eviction Services increasing the current contract 
by $50,000 for a total amount not to exceed $316,000 and extending the term through 
December 31, 2023. 

2. Authorize and direct the Executive Director to execute and deliver the contract amendment to 
Kimball, Tirey & St. John LLP and, upon consultation with Legal Counsel, to approve any non-
substantive revisions necessary to complete the transaction. 

(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB is a leading developer and provider of affordable housing in the County of San 
Bernardino. 
HACSB is adequately staffed with well trained and fully developed employees. 
HACSB communication is open, honest and consistent. 
HACSB employees have a high level of morale. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of this amendment will increase the current contract amount by $50,000 for a total 
contract amount not to exceed $316,000, which is included within the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino’s (HACSB) approved property operations budget and will be included 
for the subsequent fiscal year included in this contract. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
HACSB requires assistance from qualified consultants and firms to provide eviction services for 
our affordable housing program. Eviction Services may consist of assisting and advising HACSB 
on property management/lease enforcement issues, including, but not limited to: rent collection, 
lease terminations and evictions, fair housing compliance, interacting with and counseling 
tenants, representing the housing authority in grievance hearings, mediation sessions and in court 
proceedings, following through with vacation of units and disposing of personal property, 
collections resulting from terminations and/or evictions, and fraud recovery. 
 
PROCUREMENT 
HACSB previously issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) PC973 on October 26, 2017, which 
resulted in the receipt of three proposals.  Outreach efforts included invitations to seven vendors, 
advertising in local newspapers, and posting on the agency’s website. Proposals were evaluated 
per the requirements of the RFP in which Kimball, Tirey & St. John LLP (KTS) was selected to 
provide services to HACSB as the most qualified and responsive vendor.  
 

180



Contract Amendment with Kimball, Tirey & St. John LLP for Eviction and Non-Eviction Services 
December 14, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Under the authorization of Legal Counsel, a contract was awarded, effective January 1, 2018, to 
KTS for Eviction and Non-Eviction Services in an amount not to exceed $100,000 for a three-year 
base term beginning January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2021, with one additional two-year 
term through December 31, 2023. 
 
Effective August 8, 2019, Amendment No. 1 was approved to increase the total not to exceed 
amount by $100,000 for a total contract amount of $200,000.  
 
Effective November 10, 2020, Amendment No. 2 was approved to increase the total not to exceed 
amount by $66,000 for a total contract amount of $266,000. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 1, 2021. 

 

181



01272.0001/730589.1

AMENDMENT #3 TO CONTRACT FOR EVICTION AND NON-EVICTION SERVICES 
(PC973) 

BETWEEN 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE 
COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO  

And 

KIMBALL, TIREY & ST. JOHN LLP 

This Amendment No. 3 (“Third Amendment”), dated January 1, 2022 (“Effective 
Date”), to Agreement for Eviction and Non-Eviction Services (PC973), is entered into by 
and between the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino, a California public 
body, (“Authority”) and Kimball, Tirey & St. John LLP, a California Limited Liability 
Partnership (“Attorneys”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Authority and Attorneys entered into that certain Legal Services 
Agreement for Eviction and Non-Eviction Services, dated January 1, 2018 relating to 
Eviction and Non-Eviction Services (“Agreement”) with a total price of $100,000; 

WHEREAS, the Authority and Contractor entered into Amendment No. 1 to the 
Agreement, dated August 8, 2019, to increase the agreement by $100,000 for a total not to 
exceed amount of $200,000. 

WHEREAS, the Authority and Contractor entered into Amendment No. 2 to the 
Agreement, dated August 8, 2019, to increase the total agreement by $66,000 for a total 
not to exceed amount of $266,000. 

WHEREAS, the Authority and Attorneys now wish to enter into this Amendment No. 
3 to the Agreement to increase the contract by $50,000 for a total not to exceed amount of 
of $316,000 through December 31, 2023. 

OPERATIVE PROVISIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, the foregoing Recitals being true and correct, and in 
consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations contained in this Third Amendment 
by the parties and other consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby expressly 
acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

182



01272.0001/730589.1 
Page 2 of 4 

Section 1.    Article 7 of the Agreement, entitled “Price” is hereby amended to 
increase the compensation payable to Attorneys for the provision of the Work to be the 
total not-to-exceed sum as shown in the Total Agreement Cost set forth on Exhibit “A-1.  
Except as so amended, the other provisions of Article 4 shall remain unmodified and in full 
force and effect. 

Section 3.  Continuing Effect of Agreement. Except as amended by this Third 
Amendment, all provisions of the Agreement, as amended, shall remain unchanged and in 
full force and effect. From and after the date of this Third Amendment, whenever the term 
“Agreement” appears in the Agreement, it shall mean the Agreement, as amended by the 
Amendment this Third Amendment to the Agreement. 

Section 4. Affirmation of Agreement; Warranty Re Absence of Defaults. Authority 
and Consultant each ratify and reaffirm each and every one of the respective rights and 
obligations arising under the Agreement, as amended. Each party represents and warrants 
to the other that there have been no written or oral modifications to the Agreement other 
than by way of this Third Amendment provided herein. Each party represents and warrants 
to the other that the Agreement, as amended by this Third Amendment, is currently an 
effective, valid, and binding obligation. 

Consultant represents and warrants to Authority that, as of the date of this Third 
Amendment, Authority is not in default of any material term of the Agreement and that 
there have been no events that, with the passing of time or the giving of notice, or both, 
would constitute a material default under the Agreement. 

Authority represents and warrants to Attorneys that, as of the date of this Third 
Amendment, Consultant is not in default of any material term of the Agreement and that 
there have been no events that, with the passing of time or the giving of notice, or both, 
would constitute a material default under the Agreement. 

Section 5. Adequate Consideration. The parties hereto irrevocably stipulate and 
agree that they have each received adequate and independent consideration for the 
performance of the obligations they have undertaken pursuant to this Third Amendment. 

Section 6. Authorization. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the 
parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of said party, (iii) by so 
executing this Agreement, such party is formally bound to the provisions of this 
Agreement, and (iv) the entering into this Agreement does not violate any provision of any 
other Agreement to which said party is bound. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

183



01272.0001/730589.1 
Page 3 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino and Kimball, 
Tirey & St. John LLP. 

KIMBALL, TIREY & ST. JOHN LLP. 

By:___________________________________ 

Name:_________________________________ 

Title:__________________________________ 

Date:__________________________________ 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 

SAN BERNARDINO 

By:____________________________________ 

Name: Maria Razo 

Title: __Executive Director__________________ 

Date:___________________________________ 

184



01272.0001/730589.1  
  Page 4 of 4 
 

Exhibit A-1 

 

 

Schedule Dates:  

Effective Date:   January 1, 2022 

Completion Date:   December 31, 2023 

 

Total Agreement Cost: Not to exceed $316,000.00 

 

Original Agreement Amount Not to Exceed $100,000.00 

Net Change Orders Previously Approved $0.00 

Net Change Order Previously Approved – Amendment #1 $100,000.00 

Net Change Order Previously Approved – Amendment #2 $66,000.00 

Net Change Order - Amendment #3 $50,000.00 

Agreement Value as Amended Not to Exceed $316,000.00 

 
 

185



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Regular Meeting Minutes for Meeting Held on October 12, 2021 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Approve the meeting minutes for the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino Regular Meeting held on October 12, 2021. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB communication is open, honest, and consistent. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of this item will not result in a financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of 
San Bernardino (HACSB) as there are no financial impacts associated with this item.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The HACSB Board of Commissioners (Board) Regular Meeting took place on October 12, 2021 
and attached are the comprehensive minutes for review and approval by the Board.   
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable.  
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 06, 2021. 

 

186



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 

October 12, 2021 

 

The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino met in a 

regular meeting via teleconference and videoconference (Zoom at call-in number (669) 900-

6833, Meeting ID 837 1542 8249, Password 064864) at 3:00 p.m. on October 12, 2021. 

 

 

The meeting was called to order, and upon roll call, the following were present:  

  

 Chair Johnson 

 Vice Chair Cooper   

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

  

Commissioner Tarango arrived after roll call, at 3:02 p.m.    

 

Commissioner Muñoz was recorded as absent.  

                          

Also in attendance were: Maria Razo, Executive Director; Gus Joslin, Deputy Executive 

Director; Rishad Mitha, Director of Operations; Nicole Beydler, Director of Policy and Public 

Relations; Jennifer Dawson, Director of Human Resources; Kristin Maithonis, Assistant Director 

of Housing Services; Perlie Liu, Asset Management Analyst; Evan Miles, Project Manager; 

Angie Lardapide, Procurement and Contracts Supervisor; Renee Kangas, Management Analyst; 

Tony Bonilla, Management Analyst and Claudia Hurtado, Executive Assistant.   

 

Also present, Fred Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority, and Dr. Brian Distelberg, 

Knowledge and Education for Your Success (KEYS) Board Chair.  

 

The Chairman called for additions or deletions to the October 12, 2021, agenda. Executive 

Director Razo informed the Board of two revisions to the Consent Calendar: 

1. Agenda item number 14, page 70 of the board packet, revising the date in two 

paragraphs, from September 19, 2021, to September 14, 2021.  

2. Agenda item number 14, the addition of the following language to the last paragraph on 

page 74: “Commissioner MacDuff amended her motion to incorporate Commissioner 

Tarango’s recommendation”. 

 

The Chairman provided an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of 

Commissioners. There were no public comments.  

 

The Executive Director’s Report was requested. 

 

Executive Director Razo gave the Executive Director’s Report.  

 

Discussion calendar item number 5 to receive the board building presentation for October 12, 

2021, an overview on the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino programs 

presentation was requested.  

 

Director of Policy and Public Relations, Nicole Beydler, provided the presentation for 

Discussion calendar item number 5. 

187



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for October 12, 2021   

Page 2 

 

 

  

Chairman Johnson inquired about the number of applicants on the waitlist and the percentage 

represented of San Bernardino County’s population. Nicole Beydler responded that the number 

on our waitlist is based on actual applications and there may be duplication as applicants can 

apply to be on multiple waitlists. About 30% of applications on our waitlist are duplicate 

applicants. Nicole Beydler went on to briefly add that household size is not verified for our 

Tenant-Based vouchers until the family is selected for admission. However, Project-Based 

Voucher household size is made clear at the time of application because they are based on unit 

and family size.  

 

Chairman Johnson requested information on the importance of switching Public Housing over to 

the Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program. Director of Operations, Rishad Mitha, 

explained the Public Housing subsidy had undergone proration over the past 10+ years where the 

program would be funded at around 80% each year. Over time, this created a backlog of needs 

and affected the amount of capital needs that could be completed, which is the primary reason 

for the conversion through the RAD program. Rishad Mitha further explained that the Housing 

Choice Voucher (HCV) subsidy that is provided to landlords is rarely cut. The Housing 

Authority will have converted 99% of the public housing units by January of 2022. Conversion 

to RAD has helped HACSB maintain and stabilize those properties long-term. HACSB plans to 

keep one unit of Public Housing in order to keep the annual contributions contract open for 

continued access to funding within the Public Housing program. 

 

Commissioner MacDuff requested a copy of the presentation slides (Who We Are). Nicole 

Beydler stated she would e-mail the presentation to the board members.  

 

Discussion calendar item number 6 to receive update from staff on Emergency Housing 

Vouchers implementation, was requested. 

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item. 

 

Chairman Johnson congratulated the Housing Authority for successfully launching the 

Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) program and already obtaining 25% of required referrals.  

  

Discussion calendar item number 7 with Staff recommendation to 1) Adopt  Resolution No. 122 

extending authorization of the Executive Director and designees to waive internal policies and 

modify operations as necessary in response to the COVID-19 global pandemic through June 30, 

2022, 2) Direct the Executive Director to create and deliver to the Board of Commissioners a 

summary report of all instances where this waiver is utilized, including specifying policies 

waived, the reason for the wavier and the estimated financial impact.  The report shall be 

included in each Board of Commissioners regular meeting agenda for the duration of the State of 

California emergency declaration, was requested. 

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item.  

 

Commissioner Miller moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 7, as recommended 

by Staff, and Commissioner Tarango duly seconded the motion. Upon roll call, the Ayes and 

Nays were as follows: 

188



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for October 12, 2021   

Page 3 

 

 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

 Vice Chair Cooper 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

  

Discussion calendar item number 8 with the Staff recommendation to Adopt Resolution No. 124 

approving revisions to the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s Employee 

Personnel Handbook, was requested.  

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item.  

 

Commissioner Miller moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 8, as recommended 

by Staff, and Commissioner Tarango duly seconded the motion. Upon roll call, the Ayes and 

Nays were as follows:  

  

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

 Vice Chair Cooper 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

 

Commissioner Tarango asked if Housing Authority staff were surveyed and whether they favor 

the policy revision.  Executive Director Razo explained the decision to go this route is in lieu of 

mandatory vaccinations.  Prior to implementation of the policy, the percentage of staff 

vaccinated was 29%. Once implemented, the percentage has increased to 59% of staff now 

vaccinated.  

 

Commissioner MacDuff provided a comment. Chairman Johnson asked to clarify whether 

Commissioner MacDuff’s comment was for Item No. 8 or Item No. 9. Commissioner MacDuff 

withdrew her comment and requested it to be applied to the record for Item No. 9.  

 

Discussion calendar item number 9 with Staff recommendation to 1) Authorize an expenditure of 

the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 

Economic Security Act funds for a staff COVID-19 vaccination incentive in an amount not to 

exceed $62,400 through November 19, 2021, 2) Authorize COVID-19 Vaccination Incentive for 

Employees utilizing Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act funds, retroactive to 

September 20, 2021, was requested.  

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item.  

 

189



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for October 12, 2021   

Page 4 

 

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 9, as 

recommended by Staff. The motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Miller, and upon roll 

call the Ayes and Nays were as follows: 

  

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

 Vice Chair Cooper 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

 

Commissioner MacDuff expressed concern stating she would be more comfortable to have the 

incentive as $300 across the board rather than include an additional $200 incentive for front-line 

employees. She expressed that she is saddened that staff needed an economic incentive to receive 

the COVID-19 vaccine.  

 

Chairman Johnson added by commending the Housing Authority for implementing a policy 

which resulted in an increase from 29% to 59% of staff receiving the vaccine in a short amount 

of time. Chairman Johnson added that the cost savings alone of having to replace employees with 

temporary staff would have exceeded the costs of the implementation of this incentive as several 

companies and industries struggle with this issue. Executive Director Razo commended Jennifer 

Dawson, Director of Human Resources, on all the hard work she put towards development of 

this policy.  

 

Discussion calendar item number 10 with Staff recommendation to adopt Resolution No. 125 

authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the Board of 

Commissioners, as authorized by Government Code Section 54953(e) et seq., for the initial 

period of October 12, 2021, through November 11, 2021, was requested. 

 

Fred Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority, explained the item. 

 

Commissioner Tarango moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 10, as 

recommended by Staff.  The motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Miller, and upon roll 

call the Ayes and Nays were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

 Vice Chair Cooper 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

 

Commissioner Tarango stated he preferred to continue the meetings via teleconference. Vice 

Chair Cooper requested clarification regarding the 30-day resolution. Fred Galante, Legal 

190



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for October 12, 2021   

Page 5 

 

 

Counsel to the Housing Authority, explained that a new resolution would be brought back to the 

board next month to continue the virtual board meetings. The resolution presented today is the 

initial resolution to confirm the findings of the Governor that the emergency exists, allowing the 

virtual meeting process to continue for thirty days.  Because the next meeting is more than thirty 

days from this meeting, another resolution to continue the virtual meeting process will be 

presented at that meeting.  Chairman Johnson asked how long we are allowed to continue the 

resolution for virtual meetings. Fred Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority, clarified 

the legislation for this goes to 2024. Chairman Johnson followed up by saying it is his 

observation there has been more public attendance joining the teleconference than in-person 

meetings and recommended to continue to hold the board meetings via teleconference. Chairman 

Johnson inquired as to when a meeting space would be available if the Board decided to go back 

to in-person meetings. Executive Director Razo shared that HACSB’s IT Manager is working on 

the solution to prepare the room as early as November, but it would be great if more time was 

provided. 

 

Discussion calendar item number 11 with Staff recommendation to 1) Approve Amendment No. 

1 to contract No. PC1180, effective October 12, 2021, with Aleshire & Wynder LLP for General 

Legal Counsel Services increasing the current contract by $271,000 for a total amount not to 

exceed $401,000 through December 8, 2022, with the option to extend up to three single-year 

options through December 8, 2025, 2) Authorize and direct the Executive Director to execute 

and deliver the contract amendment to Aleshire & Wynder LLP and, upon consultation with 

Legal Counsel, to approve any non-substantive revisions necessary to complete the transaction, 

was requested. 

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item. 

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 11, as 

recommended by Staff.  The motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Miller, and upon roll 

call the Ayes and Nays were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

 Vice Chair Cooper 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

 

Discussion calendar item number 12 with Staff recommendation to 1) Approve the third 

amendment to the promissory note between the Housing Authority of the County of San 

Bernardino and Knowledge and Education for Your Success to extend the term three months 

beginning retroactively from October 1, 2021, through December 31, 2021, 2) Authorize and 

direct the  Executive Director to execute and deliver the amended promissory note to Knowledge 

and Education for Your Success, and, upon consultation with Legal Counsel, to approve any 

non-substantive revisions necessary to complete the transaction, was requested. 
 

Executive Director Maria Razo explained the item. 

191



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for October 12, 2021   

Page 6 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve discussion calendar item number 12, as 

recommended by Staff, and the motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Miller.  Fred 

Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority, recommended that Commissioner Miller 

abstain from voting. Due to conflict of interest, Commissioner Miller abstained. Upon roll call, 

the Ayes and Nays were as follows: 

 

  Ayes Abstains Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson                    Commissioner Miller 

 Vice Chair Cooper 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

 

Commissioner MacDuff provided a comment of commending KEYS in obtaining the additional 

grant funding and understands most of these grants are restricted funds. Commissioner MacDuff 

went on to provide a recommendation for KEYS to reach out to larger organizations to obtain 

additional unrestricted funding to repay the loan obtained from the Housing Authority, and for 

the Housing Authority to use the funds to assist some of the 84,000 families on the waiting lists.  

 

KEYS Board Chair, Dr. Brian Distelberg, offered additional information with regard to seeking 

additional funding from organizations for unrestricted funds, which is not easily obtained as the 

restricted funds are prioritized. Commissioner Pinedo, with expertise in non-profits, stated that 

due to the increase of unrestricted funding requests, the majority of funders have minimized 

funding efforts or have shifted efforts to fund other specialized non-profit organizations. He also 

explained that many of the grants provide very little overhead costs, and many non-profits end up 

developing new programs and creating additional work just to justify the extra funds received. 

Commissioner Pinedo recommended providing KEYS the $270,000 as a grant and added that it 

is better to have KEYS focus on funding that increases the services that they can provide for our 

residents. Chairman Johnson added that it has been cost-effective to grant KEYS the funds due to 

the amount of in-kind services they have provided over the years to our HACSB families which 

far exceeds the amount of the loan. Commissioner Pinedo disclosed that he was a previous 

KEYS Board member and was at the table when the initial discussions of the loan occurred. 

Commissioner Miller also shared that she is currently a KEYS Board member and has seen the 

organization grow tremendously. Vice Chair Cooper provided comment that KEYS annual in-

kind contribution of $134,000 for at least 2 years exceeds the amount of the loan. Chairman 

Johnson asked Executive Director Razo how many years KEYS has been providing HACSB 

services and Ms. Razo estimated that it had been about 8 years.  

 

Commissioner MacDuff asked who currently represented the Housing Authority on the KEYS 

board. Executive Director Razo responded that she represents the Housing Authority on the 

KEYS board.  

 

Commissioner MacDuff provided an edit to the board item attachment to correct a typo.   

 

 

192



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for October 12, 2021   

Page 7 

 

 

Chairman Johnson logged off the meeting at 4:44 p.m. and Vice-Chair Cooper assumed the 

duties of the Chair to preside over the Board meeting. 

 

Discussion calendar item number 13 with Staff recommendation of Acting as the Housing 

Successor for the former Redevelopment Agency for the City of Redlands: to 1) Adopt 

Resolution No. 123 amending the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for 730 

S. San Mateo Street in Redlands to facilitate sale of the property, 2) Authorize the Executive 

Director of the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino, upon consultation with 

Legal Counsel, to execute and deliver ancillary documents necessary to implement the 

amendment and to release the Participation Agreement and Declaration of Covenants, 

Conditions, and Restrictions to facilitate sale of the property, 3) Direct the Executive Director of 

the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino to transmit and record all documents as 

necessary with the San Bernardino County Recorder within 30 days of execution, was requested. 

 

Executive Director Razo and Deputy Executive Director Gus Joslin explained the item. 

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 13, as 

recommended by Staff, which motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Tarango, and upon 

roll call the Ayes and Nays were as follows:  

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Vice Chair Cooper 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

 

Commissioner MacDuff provided comment that this property is located in an expensive real 

estate market in Redlands and asked if it would be fair to apply the inflation factor on the 

improvement on the home's value over the years rather than the Consumer Price Index (CPI).  

Fred Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority, provided general information on the 

document that created the covenants that typically specifies the methodology and in 

redevelopment law, the document specifically mandates the protection on the agency’s 

investment as low- and moderate-income housing funds which is done through an equity sharing 

arrangement. Fred Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority, explained that the CPI is 

one way to recoup the time value of money at the location and is within the law. For this item, if 

an additional amount is appropriate at this point, it will require a negotiation because the 

document is unclear regarding the CPI. The law requires protection of the investment of housing 

funds through some mechanism. Commissioner MacDuff asked if the agency would receive the 

original investment of the loan. Executive Director Razo stated when this was originally 

approved through the Board of Governors, they agreed on the CPI be included as the 

methodology and if deviated from the Board of Governor's original approval, it would have to be 

justified. Commissioner MacDuff asked what the agency is allowed to do with the funds when it 

is received. Executive Director Razo explained the funds would have to go back into the housing 

successor funds. Fred Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority, also added the receiving 

Housing Authority can use the funds to develop low-income housing or to improve the 

availability of housing for low-income individuals. Deputy Executive Director Joslin also 

193



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for October 12, 2021   

Page 8 

 

 

provided information that HACSB plans to put the funds toward a homeownership development 

phase at Valencia Grove in the city of Redlands. Commissioner Pinedo provided the suggestion 

of a future board-building presentation to provide the board a deeper understanding overall. 

Commissioner Pinedo added that one of the things we know about poverty is that 

homeownership and taking advantage of the appreciation of that asset is a ticket to the middle 

class. Vice-Chair Cooper also agreed on utilizing the CPI as previously approved by the Board of 

Governors on a prior similar action.  

 

Approval of the consent calendar agenda items numbers 14-16 was requested. 

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve consent calendar agenda items numbers 14-16, to: 

14) Approve the meeting minutes for the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of 

the County of San Bernardino Regular Meeting held on September 14, 2021. 

15) Approve and file Agency-wide Financial Statements through June 2021. 

16) Approve vacated tenant accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be written off as 

collection losses for the month ending in July 2021. 

The motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Tarango, and upon roll call the Ayes and Nays 

were as follows: 

 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Vice Chair Cooper 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

  

Vice-Chair Cooper provided an opportunity for individual Board member comments. 

 Commissioner MacDuff shared that she attended the virtual NAHRO Conference in early 

October where, in the Commissioner’s Roundtable session, the session moderators shared about 

the various roles that Commissioners can have within a PHA including acting as ambassadors for 

the agency to advocate for housing initiatives. Commissioner MacDuff went on to ask if the 

board would need to reach out to the Housing Authority staff before reaching out to officials. 

Executive Director Razo asked that board members reach out to her first to ensure that consistent 

information and talking points are provided to the Commissioners for sharing.  Commissioner 

MacDuff also communicated that in a session they also shared information about having 

expanded business cards with agency information for the commissioners and informational 

brochures to serve as talking points while advocating for the agency. 

 

There being no other business, Commissioner Tarango moved for the regular meeting of 

Tuesday, October 12, 2021, to be adjourned, which motion was duly seconded by Commissioner 

MacDuff.  There being no objection to the call for adjournment, the meeting was adjourned by 

unanimous consent at 5:21 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

194



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for October 12, 2021   

Page 9 

 

 

 

                                                           _                                                             _ 

Tim Johnson, Chair                                        Beau Cooper, Vice Chair 

 

 

                                                            _                                                               _ 

Cassie MacDuff       Sylvia Miller 

 

 

                                                                                                                                      _                                              

Jessie Muñoz   Bobby Tarango  

 

                                                           _ 

Dr. Ciriaco “Cid” Pinedo 

 

 

Attest: 

 

______________________________ 

Secretary 

195



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Regular Meeting Minutes for Meeting Held on November 9, 2021 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Approve the meeting minutes for the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 
County of San Bernardino Regular Meeting held on November 9, 2021. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB communication is open, honest, and consistent. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Approval of this item will not result in a financial impact to the Housing Authority of the County of 
San Bernardino (HACSB) as there are no financial impacts associated with this item.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The HACSB Board of Commissioners (Board) Regular Meeting took place on November 9, 2021 
and attached are the comprehensive minutes for review and approval by the Board.   
 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable.  
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 06, 2021. 

 

196



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO 

November 9, 2021 

 

The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino met in a 

regular meeting via teleconference and videoconference (Zoom at call-in number (669) 900-

6833, Meeting ID 847 2341 1128, Password 211168) at 3:00 p.m. on November 9, 2021. 

 

 

The meeting was called to order, and upon roll call, the following were present:  

  

 Chair Johnson   

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango    

 

Vice Chair Cooper and Commissioner Muñoz were recorded as absent.  

                          

Also in attendance were: Maria Razo, Executive Director; Gus Joslin, Deputy Executive 

Director; Rishad Mitha, Director of Operations; Nicole Beydler, Director of Policy and Public 

Relations; Jennifer Dawson, Director of Human Resources; Kristin Maithonis, Assistant Director 

of Housing Services; Perlie Liu, Asset Management Analyst; Evan Miles, Project Manager; 

Angie Lardapide, Procurement and Contracts Supervisor; Jesse Diaz, Finance Manager; Ronald 

Kennedy, Management Analyst; Renee Kangas, Sr. Management Analyst and Claudia Hurtado, 

Executive Assistant.   

 

Also present, Fred Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority.  

 

The Chairman called for additions or deletions to the November 9, 2021, agenda.  

 

Executive Director Maria Razo informed the Board that the October 12, 2021, meeting minutes 

would be tabled and brought before the board at the December 14, 2021, Board of 

Commissioners meeting.  

 

The Chairman provided an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of 

Commissioners. There were no public comments.  

 

The Executive Director’s Report was requested. 

 

Executive Director Razo gave the Executive Director’s Report.  

 

In reference to the 2021 Veteran Standdown and Homeless Resource Event shared in the 

Executive Director’s report, Commissioner MacDuff complimented the HACSB team on being 

able to issue the additional VASH vouchers and asked where the event was held. Executive 

Director Razo and Director of Operations Rishad Mitha stated that the event was held at a third-

party location and hosted by the VA. 

 

Discussion calendar item number 5 to receive the board building presentation for November 9, 

2021, an overview of authorized uses of housing funds received from the Redlands 

Redevelopment Agency presentation was requested.  

 

197



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for November 9, 2021   

Page 2 

 

 

Fred Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority, provided the presentation for Discussion 

calendar item number 5. 

 

Commissioner MacDuff asked for clarification regarding the Housing Set Aside Funding and if 

the loans were repaid or forgiven. Fred Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority stated 

that in years past, the terms repaid and forgiven have been used interchangeably, but also the 

repayments means meeting the terms of the housing covenant by staying in the home and abiding 

by the conditions. Gus Joslin, Deputy Executive Director, added that to forgive the loan, they 

have to be held for the full 20–25-year term, then the loan will be forgiven. If the loan is not held 

for the full term, then the loan will need to be repaid. Commissioner MacDuff went on to ask 

regarding SB 341, whether HACSB can use the funds on Valencia Grove or to create additional 

housing. Deputy Executive Director Joslin stated that some of the funds will be used towards the 

Valencia Grove site to create additional low-income housing in Redlands.  

 

Discussion calendar item number 6 to receive update from staff on Emergency Housing 

Vouchers implementation was requested. 

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item. 

 

Chairman Johnson provided a recommendation for the EHV update item moving forward to add 

two (2) additional columns in the table of the memo; one (1) column to indicate ‘Searching for 

Housing’ and a second (2) column for ‘Housed’. Executive Director Razo added that many of the 

applications being received are incomplete and the Housing Authority has asked the partners to 

assist in ensuring the paperwork for applicants is complete.  

  

Discussion calendar item number 7 with Staff recommendation to Adopt Resolution No. 127 re-

authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the Board of 

Commissioners, as authorized by Government Code Section 54953(e) et seq., for the period of 

November 12, 2021, through December 12, 2021, was requested. 

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item.  

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 7, as 

recommended by Staff, and Commissioner Tarango duly seconded the motion. Upon roll call, 

the Ayes and Nays were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

  

Discussion calendar item number 8 with the Staff recommendation to Adopt Resolution No. 126 

approving revisions to the Administrative Plan governing the Housing Authority of the County 

of San Bernardino’s rental assistance programs, was requested.  

 

198



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for November 9, 2021   

Page 3 

 

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item.  

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 8, as 

recommended by Staff, and Commissioner Tarango duly seconded the motion. Upon roll call, 

the Ayes and Nays were as follows:  

  

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

 

Discussion calendar item number 9 with Staff recommendation to Resolution No. 128 adopting 

procedures for the administration of claims against the Housing Authority of the County of San 

Bernardino, was requested.  

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item.  

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 9, as 

recommended by Staff. The motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Tarango, and upon roll 

call the Ayes and Nays were as follows: 

  

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango  

 

Commissioner MacDuff asked if there is a time limit in responding to the claimant. Fred 

Galante, Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority, stated that, per State Code, HACSB must reply 

within 45 days from the time the claim is filed.  

 

In regard to the resolution, Section 10 – Claims Exceeding Authority Director’s Authority, 

Commissioner MacDuff asked how HACSB determines if the funds come from the Housing 

Authority treasury or third-party insurance pool funds for the claim. Fred Galante, Legal Counsel 

to the Housing Authority, explained that a claim is covered by our insurance pool, HAARP. 

Executive Director Razo also explained that, if the claim is determined to be due to negligence 

after investigation by the insurance company, the Housing Authority will be responsible to pay 

the claim.   

 

Commissioner MacDuff also inquired regarding section 14 – Procedures on disallowance of the 

resolution, if there will be a periodic report provided to the Board for review. Fred Galante, 

Legal Counsel to the Housing Authority, stated that the Board will receive a periodic report of all 

the claims submitted and settled. Rishad Mitha, Director of Operations, added that there are very 

199



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for November 9, 2021   

Page 4 

 

 

few claims that HACSB settles outside of a judicial procedure. Our general liability insurance 

covers many of these types of claims and has no deductible. However, HACSB does consider the 

impact it could have on a loss run for insurance. 

 

Discussion calendar item number 10 with Staff recommendation to 1) Approve Amendment No. 

3 to Contract No. PC1041, effective December 1, 2021, with Reliant Asset Management 

Solutions for Housing Quality Standards Inspection services, increasing the current contract 

amount by $404,000 for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,616,000 and extending the 

contract by an additional one year period pursuant to the original contract terms through 

November 30, 2022, 2) Authorize and direct the Executive Director to execute and deliver the 

contract amendment to Reliant Asset Management Solutions and, upon consultation with Legal 

Counsel, to approve any non-substantive revisions necessary to complete the transaction, was 

requested. 

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item.  

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 10, as 

recommended by Staff.  The motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Tarango, and upon 

roll call the Ayes and Nays were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

 Vice Chair Cooper 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

 

Discussion calendar item number 11 with Staff recommendation to 1) Approve a contract 

extension of a Project-Based Voucher Program Housing Assistance Payments contract for 50 

units at Yucaipa Terrace, for a ten-year period from March 1, 2022 through February 28, 2032, 

with the Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino, and naming Housing Partners I, 

Inc. as the new owner in the Housing Assistance Payments contract, 2) Approve the first 

amendment to the Housing Assistance Payments Contracts Agreement with Housing Partners I, 

Inc. adding Yucaipa Terrace, 3) Approve the first amendment to the Project-Based Voucher 

Program Housing Assistance Payments Contract with Housing Partners I, Inc. to reduce the 

number of units under the Housing Assistance Payments contract from 50 to 8 units effective 

December 1, 2022, 4) Authorize and direct the Executive Director to execute and deliver the 

Project-Based Voucher Program Housing Assistance Payments contract extension, first 

amendment to the Project-Based Voucher Program Housing Assistance Payment Contract, and 

first amendment to the Housing Assistance Payments Contracts Agreement to Housing Partners 

I, Inc. and upon consultation with Legal Counsel, to approve any non-substantive revisions 

necessary to complete the transaction, was requested. 

 

Executive Director Razo explained the item. 

 

200



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for November 9, 2021   

Page 5 

 

 

Commissioner Tarango moved to approve the discussion calendar item number 11, as 

recommended by Staff.  The motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Miller, and upon roll 

call the Ayes and Nays were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

 

Discussion calendar item number 12 with Staff recommendation to 1) Approve a Loan 

Forgiveness Agreement with Knowledge and Education for Your Success for the entirety of the 

loan amount of $270,000, 2) Authorize and direct the Executive Director to execute and deliver 

the amended promissory note to Knowledge and Education for Your Success, and, upon 

consultation with Legal Counsel, to approve any non-substantive revisions necessary to complete 

the transaction, was requested. 
 

Executive Director Razo explained the item. 

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve discussion calendar item number 12, as 

recommended by Staff, which motion was duly seconded by Pinedo, and upon roll call, the Ayes 

and Nays were as follows: 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson                     

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

 

Commissioner MacDuff thanked HACSB staff and fellow Commissioners in answering her 

questions and providing insight regarding this program at the meeting of the Board of 

Commissioners last month.  

 

Approval of the consent calendar agenda items numbers 14-15 was requested. 

 

Commissioner MacDuff moved to approve consent calendar agenda items numbers 14-15, to: 

14) Approve and file Agency-wide Financial Statements through July 2021. 

16) Approve vacated tenant accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be written off as 

collection losses for the month ending in August 2021. 

The motion was duly seconded by Commissioner Tarango, and upon roll call the Ayes and Nays 

were as follows: 

 

 

  Ayes  Nays                                 

 Chair Johnson 

201



Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the 

County of San Bernardino for November 9, 2021   

Page 6 

 

 

 Commissioner MacDuff 

 Commissioner Miller 

 Commissioner Pinedo 

 Commissioner Tarango 

  

Chair Johnson provided an opportunity for individual Board member comments. There were no 

comments.  

 

There being no other business, Commissioner Tarango moved for the regular meeting of 

Tuesday, November 9, 2021, to be adjourned, which motion was duly seconded by 

Commissioner MacDuff.  There being no objection to the call for adjournment, the meeting was 

adjourned by unanimous consent at 4:07 p.m.  

 

 

                                                           _                                                             _ 

Tim Johnson, Chair                                        Beau Cooper, Vice Chair 

 

 

                                                            _                                                               _ 

Cassie MacDuff       Sylvia Miller 

 

 

                                                                                                                                      _                                              

Jessie Muñoz   Bobby Tarango  

 

                                                           _ 

Dr. Ciriaco “Cid” Pinedo 

 

 

Attest: 

 

______________________________ 

Secretary 

202



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Agency-wide Financial Statements through August 2021  
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Approve and file Agency-wide Financial Statements through August 2021. 
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
We have a healthy organization marked by financial stability and a culture of respect, 
empowerment, and passion for the mission. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino’s (HACSB) year-to-date agency-wide net 

income through August 2021 for Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2020-21 is $4,337,314. The net 

income is currently greater than the anticipated $1,033,711 net loss, with a variance of $5.4 

million, primarily due to extraordinary maintenance expenses that were budgeted, but not 

completed in the amount of $1.35 million (reflected in the extraordinary maintenance expenses 

line). 

There were also lower than anticipated costs in administrative and maintenance expenses in the 

amount of $3 million mainly due to lower maintenance, and contract costs due to deferred internal 

maintenance because of the pandemic and several vacant positions.  

Housing assistance payments are $3.7 million lower than expected due to late funding notification 

for the 2021 calendar year.   The funding notification was received in March and included an 8% 

inflationary rate.  This was not enough time to increase the lease rate to match the funding 

received.   

A reconciliation of the Housing Choice Voucher administrative fee funding was completed by the 

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for calendar year 2020 and 

an additional $1.9 million was provided to HACSB.  This amount represents the difference 

between the funding provided by HUD during calendar year 2020 and the actual expenses of 

HACSB for the same time.  This is not additional funding, but reimbursement for 2020 calendar 

year expenses. 

Depreciation expense and other non-operating items are not budgeted and amounted to $4.6 

million through August 2021.   

 

 

203



Agency-wide Financial Statements through August 2021 
December 14, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Financial Summary FY 2021 YTD 

Revenues $142,941,774 

Expenses $134,009,154 

Operating Net Income/(Loss) $ 8,932,620 

Operating Transfers/Non-Operating Items $ 4,595,306 

Net Income/(Loss) $ 4,337,314 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
HACSB administers multiple housing programs and is the largest provider of affordable housing 
in the County of San Bernardino.  The FFY 2020-21 budget and financial operations continue to 
support the vision and mission of HACSB and are in line with its Strategic Plan and Moving to 
Work Annual Plans.  Overall, HACSB has demonstrated fiscal stability even through the 
challenges presented by the pandemic. FFY 2020-21 is expected to be another challenging year 
as the effects of the pandemic continue to impact the agency’s operations and finances.  
 
Funding notifications for the 2021 calendar year were received from HUD in late March, which 
included an unexpected inflation factor of 8%. In the 2020 calendar year, we experienced large 
cost increases, and an insufficient inflation factor increase, which resulted in decreasing the 
overall size of the MTW Housing Choice Voucher program through attrition. Based on current 
analysis, we expect that we will be able to serve approximately 400 additional families through 
the MTW Housing Choice Voucher tenant-based program, which currently has a waiting list of 
20,000+ families. We also expect to serve families in the new Emergency Housing Voucher (EHV) 
program (455 new vouchers).  
 
Following is a recap of the COVID related challenges mentioned above, as well as other financial 
items to highlight:   

• COVID-19 pandemic related:  
o Continued increases in housing assistance payment costs in the Housing Choice 

Voucher Program related to families’ income decreasing and total contract rent 
increasing, which causes a corresponding increase on the portion that the agency 
pays the landlord on behalf of the program participating family.  

o Increases in agency costs (i.e., Office modifications, cleaning costs, paid leave, 

technology, etc.). 

o Rental income losses related to the eviction moratorium in the Authority Owned 
portfolio.   

o Inconsistent staffing levels due to childcare and health issues. 

• Physical needs improvements: The need to continue to address the physical needs 
assessment identified repairs within the Authority Owned Portfolio. Maintenance of aging 
properties is extremely costly, but it is needed to preserve our affordable housing 
developments. Some of this work has been deferred to account for rental income losses 
resulting from the pandemic as well as due to staffing capacity challenges and the need 
to complete HUD’s rehab timelines related to the RAD conversion. This work is greatly 
needed and will be recommended in this new fiscal year.   

• Benefit increases: Increases to employer paid medical, dental and pension benefits. 

 
Despite these challenges, we continue to focus on maintaining the agency’s fiscal stability, 
customer service, innovation, enhancing partnerships that will assist our staff and families, and a 
continued passion for our agency’s mission. 

204



Agency-wide Financial Statements through August 2021 
December 14, 2021 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
Based on HUD’s guidance to routinely present key information to HACSB’s Board of 
Commissioners, HACSB is presenting the financial statements on a monthly basis.   
  
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 
 
REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 2, 2021. 

205



Page 1 of 1

 YTD Actual  YTD Budget  Variance  % Var  Annual 

 INCOME

 TENANT INCOME

     Total Rental Income 24,566,179 22,618,039 1,948,140 8.61 24,674,224

     Total Other Tenant Income 381,742 549,981 -168,239 -30.59 600,191

 NET TENANT INCOME 24,947,921 23,168,020 1,779,900 7.68 25,274,415

 GRANT INCOME

 TOTAL GRANT INCOME 111,412,503 119,363,852 -7,951,349 -6.66 130,215,112

 OTHER INCOME

 TOTAL OTHER INCOME 6,581,350 5,162,572 1,418,778 27.48 5,541,077

 TOTAL INCOME 142,941,774 147,694,444 -4,752,670 -3.22 161,030,604

 EXPENSES

 GRANT EXPENSES

 TOTAL GRANT EXPENSES 6,156,369 12,647,516 6,491,146 51.32 13,797,290

 ADMINISTRATIVE

     Total Administrative Salaries 12,051,945 13,506,077 1,454,132 10.77 14,734,032

     Total Legal Expense 292,970 254,557 -38,412 -15.09 277,685

     Total Other Admin Expenses 5,508,640 5,201,169 -307,471 -5.91 5,685,778

     Total Miscellaneous Admin Expenses 1,718,955 2,288,327 569,372 24.88 2,428,595

 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 19,572,510 21,250,130 1,677,621 7.89 23,126,090

 TENANT SERVICES

 TOTAL TENANT SERVICES EXPENSES 651,138 475,994 -175,144 -36.80 519,252

 UTILITIES

 TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSES 3,364,624 3,507,956 143,332 4.09 3,825,949

 MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS

     Total General Maint Expense 2,538,912 2,324,550 -214,362 -9.22 2,535,690

     Total Materials 768,926 930,772 161,846 17.39 1,015,965

     Total Contract Costs 2,636,369 4,035,406 1,399,037 34.67 4,401,221

 TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 5,944,206 7,290,728 1,346,522 18.47 7,952,877

 GENERAL EXPENSES

 TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 924,465 1,044,524 120,059 11.49 1,141,404

 EXTRAORDINARY MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

 TOTAL EXTRAORDINARY MAINTENANCE EXPENSES 3,724,132 5,071,599 1,347,467 26.57 5,468,747

 HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS

 TOTAL HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS 92,318,682 96,041,634 3,722,952 3.88 104,772,691

 FINANCING EXPENSE

 TOTAL FINANCING EXPENSES 1,353,028 1,398,074 45,046 3.22 1,525,172

 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 134,009,154 148,728,155 14,719,001 9.90 162,129,472

 OPERATING NET INCOME 8,932,620 -1,033,711 9,966,331 964.13 -1,098,868

 NET OPERATING TRANSFER IN/OUT 0 0 0 N/A 0

 NON-OPERATING ITEMS

 TOTAL NON-OPERATING ITEMS 4,595,306 0 -4,595,306 N/A 0

 NET INCOME 4,337,314 -1,033,711 5,371,025 519.59 -1,098,868

HACSB

Budget Comparison
Period = Oct 2020-Aug 2021

 

206



REPORT/RECOMMENDATION TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO AND RECORD 

OF ACTION 

 

December 14, 2021 

FROM 

MARIA RAZO, Executive Director, Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino   

           

SUBJECT   
..Title v 
Vacated Tenant Accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be Written Off as Collection Loss 
for the Month of September 2021 
..End 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
..Recommendation 

Approve vacated tenant accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be written off as collection 
losses for the month of September 2021.  
(Presenter: Maria Razo, Executive Director, 332-6305) 
..Body 
 
GOALS & OBJECTIVES 
HACSB communication is open, honest, and consistent. 
HACSB has secured the resources needed for accomplishing its mission. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The accounts receivable loss for the month ending September 30, 2021, is $20,887.00. The 
Housing Authority of the County of San Bernardino (HACSB) projects and anticipates collection 
losses in its annual budget.  The monthly losses as detailed below are in line with the budgeted 
losses and historical trends. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
On a monthly basis, HACSB records vacated tenant accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio 
for the purpose of being written off to collection losses.  Authority Owned Portfolio units are owned 
by HACSB and were either acquired or developed through a variety of partnerships with local 
governments and/or HACSB’s non-profit affiliate Housing Partners I, Inc., and also include public 
housing developments converted through the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development’s (HUD) Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program.  
 
Despite HACSB’s efforts to collect the debts listed in the attached reports, it has been determined 
that such debts are uncollectible. However, collection efforts will continue with HACSB’s 
contracted collection agency. As part of HACSB’s standard property management business 
practices, Board of Commissioners approval is requested to write off these accounts as accounts 
receivable losses to the Authority Owned Portfolio. Losses during this time period are primarily 
for voluntary move-outs and skips. The total write-off for the month of September 2021 is 
$20,887.00, as delineated in the following table. Attached is a worksheet that itemizes the 
individual accounts.  
 
 

SUMMARY BY PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 

PROPERTY NO. 
VACATED 

TOTAL 

481130 – Maplewood 1 $1,979.00 

481161 – Colton 2 $4,630.00 

207



Vacated Tenant Accounts for the Authority Owned Portfolio to be Written Off as Collection Loss 
for the Month of September 2021 
December 14, 2021 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

SUMMARY BY PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 

PROPERTY NO. 
VACATED 

TOTAL 

481170 – Barstow 2 $7,899.00 

407 – Sunset Pointe 2 $1,627.00 

408 – Sunrise Vista 1 $118.00 

416 – Arrowhead 1 ($32.00) 

418 – Grandview 1 - 

426 – Sunnyside   - 

433c – Stillman   - 

Concessions Write Off          - 

TOTAL RENT WRITE OFF 10 $16,221.00 

Miscellaneous Charges  $1,081.00 

Maintenance Charges  $5,830.50 

Legal Charges  $2,906.50 

Security Deposits Applied    ($5,152.00) 

NET TOTAL WRITE OFF  $20,887.00 

 
PROCUREMENT 
Not applicable. 

REVIEW BY OTHERS 
This item has been reviewed by General Legal Counsel, Fred Galante, on December 2, 2021. 

 

208



Housing Authority County of San Bernardino
COLLECTION WRITE-OFFS - Authority Owned Portfolio 

Item # Last Name First Name ID No. REASON

 MONTHLY

RENT 

 UNPAID

RENT (*) 

 CONC. 

REVERSAL 

 UNPAID

MISC (*) 

 MAINT.

FEES 

 LEGAL

FEES 

 TOTAL

OWED 

 LESS

DEPOSIT 

 NET

DUE 

481130 - Maplewood 

1 J. V. t0032927 Evict-Criminal        332.00      1,979.00           402.50   2,056.50         4,438.00        922.00 3,516.00 

2

 TOTALS:      1,979.00 -   -             402.50   2,056.50         4,438.00        922.00 3,516.00 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

1
3 Day Notice due to 

criminal activity
04/21/21 Yes 04/09/21 07/12/21 Y 08/16/21

2

481161- Colton 

1 P. A. t0029692 V 2,757.00   643.00        - 150.00      300.00          -                  1,093.00     1,000.00 93.00 

2 J. R. t0022414 S        925.00      3,987.00 -         925.00           590.00         5,502.00        500.00 5,002.00 

3

TOTALS: 4,630.00    - 1,075.00   890.00          -          6,595.00       1,500.00   5,095.00           

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

1 30 Day Notice to Vacate NA NA NA NA NA NA 

2 Skip NA NA NA NA NA NA 

3

481170- Barstow 

1 F. K. t0132592 E 125.00      6,597.00    805.00          850.00             8,252.00        635.00 7,617.00 

2 C. P. t0135657 V 328.00      1,302.00    654.00          -                  1,956.00        665.00 1,291.00 

3

TOTALS: 7,899.00    - - 1,459.00       850.00     10,208.00     1,300.00   8,908.00           

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

1
60-day Notice -failure to 

comply with recertification
03/01/21 03/01/21 05/12/21 05/21/21 N N/A

2 30 Day Notice to Vacate N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

3

NA 09/30/21

09/07/21 09/07/21

N/A 09/01/21

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

NA 

09/02/21

09/07/21

09/30/21Month End:

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

NA 

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

*Reasons:  E=Eviction     S=Skip     V=Voluntary     T=Terminated Tenancy        **Unpaid Misc.  D=Deceased   Stipulated agreements for rent, maintenance charges, late charges, etc.209



Housing Authority County of San Bernardino
COLLECTION WRITE-OFFS - Authority Owned Portfolio 

Item # Last Name First Name ID No. REASON

 MONTHLY

RENT 

 UNPAID

RENT (*) 

 CONC. 

REVERSAL 

 UNPAID

MISC (*) 

 MAINT.

FEES 

 LEGAL

FEES 

 TOTAL

OWED 

 LESS

DEPOSIT 

 NET

DUE 

09/30/21Month End:

407 - Sunset Pointe 

1 P. L. - (198.36)                 (198.36) (198.36)

2 J. B. t0034245 V 825.00      443.00        - 1,020.92               1,463.92        400.00 1,063.92 

3 M. A. t0025617 V 825.00      1,184.00    - 724.00                  1,908.00        100.00 1,808.00 

- -   -   

TOTALS: 1,627.00    - - 1,546.56       -          3,173.56       500.00      2,673.56           

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

1

2 60 Day Notice to vacate NA

3 60 Day Notice to vacate NA

408 - Sunrise Vista

4 S. A. t0034318 V 825.00      118.00       - 862.84          980.84        400.00 580.84 

- -   -   

TOTALS: 118.00       - - 862.84          -          980.84          400.00      580.84 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

4 60 Day Notice to vacate NA

416 - Arrowhead 

5 D. M. t0030013 V 875.00      (32.00)        - 597.00          565.00        230.00 335.00 

TOTALS: (32.00)        - - 597.00          -          565.00          230.00      335.00 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

5 30 Day Notice to vacate NA

6 S. A. t0027064 V 700.00      - - 6.00          815.00          821.00        300.00 521.00 

- -   -   

TOTALS: - - 6.00          815.00          -          821.00          300.00      521.00 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

6 30 Day Notice to vacate NA

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

Payment on bad debt

09/10/21

09/13/21

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

09/14/21

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

08/25/21

418 - Grandview

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

09/04/21

*Reasons:  E=Eviction     S=Skip     V=Voluntary     T=Terminated Tenancy        **Unpaid Misc.  D=Deceased   Stipulated agreements for rent, maintenance charges, late charges, etc.210



Housing Authority County of San Bernardino
COLLECTION WRITE-OFFS - Authority Owned Portfolio 

Item # Last Name First Name ID No. REASON

 MONTHLY

RENT 

 UNPAID

RENT (*) 

 CONC. 

REVERSAL 

 UNPAID

MISC (*) 

 MAINT.

FEES 

 LEGAL

FEES 

 TOTAL

OWED 

 LESS

DEPOSIT 

 NET

DUE 

09/30/21Month End:

426 - Sunnyside

7 H. K. (377.40)                 (377.40) (377.40)

-   -   

TOTALS: - - - (377.40)        -          (377.40)         - (377.40) 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

7

8 W. K. (365.00)        (365.00)         (365.00)

-   

TOTALS: - - - (365.00)        -          (365.00)         - (365.00) 

Item # Type of Notice
Date Notice

Served

Posted or

Hand

Delivered

Date File

Sent to

Attorney

 Date

Attorney

Filed in

Court 

 Response

Filed by

Tenant

(Y or N) 

 Court Date 

8

16,221.00  - 1,081.00   5,830.50       2,906.50  26,039.00     5,152.00   20,887.00         

Submitted by: Date: 10/13/2021 Reviewed by: Date:

*Reasons: E=Eviction S=Skip V=Voluntary T=Terminated Tenancy **Unpaid Misc.: D=Deceased Stipulated agreements for rent, maintenance charges, late charges, etc.

Lucy Leslie 

ALL PROPERTY TOTALS:

Payment on bad debt

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

Collection on bad debt

433c - Stillman 

 Lock Out Date Vacate Date

211


	MEMO-BOC-121421 Brown Act AB361 Telecommute Board Mtgs FINAL
	RES-BOC-121421- Brown Act AB361 Telecommute Board Mtgs FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-121421-Executive Director's Report FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-121421 EHV Monthly Update RM RK MR Clean - FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-121421 Employee Policy Revisions FINAL
	RES-BOC-121021 Employee Policy Revisions - Policy 4012 Surveillance FINAL
	ATT-BOC-121421 Policy 4012 Cameras in the Workplace FINAL
	ATT2-BOC-121421 Surveillance Camera Guidelines FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-121421 Development Loan to HPI FINAL
	Predevelopment Loan Agreement Authority to HPI FINAL
	Promissory Note Authority Predevelopment Loan to HPI FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-12.14.21 ACOP Revisions rk clean_LL FINAL
	RES-BOC-121421 ACOP Revisions FINAL
	ATT-BOC-121421 ACOP Revisions - redline FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-121421 PC1232 Los Olivos Panels FINAL
	PC1232 Contract S and Sons Los Olivos Electrical Panel Upgrade FiNAL
	MEMO-BOC-101320 Grant of Easement SCE -CLEAN FINAL
	ATT1-BOC-121421 Grant of Easement FINAL
	ATT2-BOC-121421 590 Withholding Exemption FINAL
	ATT3-BOC-121421 508 The Terrace (SiteMap_Photos) FINAL
	ATT4-BOC-121421 SCE_ Appraisal FINAL
	ATT5-BOC-121421 SCE_Intro letter FINAL
	ATT6-BOC-121421 W-9 Form FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-121421-EVICTION AND NON-EVICTION (KTS) FINAL
	CON-BOC-121421 Amendment #3 - EVICTION AND NON-EVICTION SERVICES (KTS) FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-121421-Meeting Minutes for October 12, 2021 - FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-121421-Meeting Minutes for November 9, 2021 - FINAL
	ATT-BOC-12142021-Approval of the Regular Meeting Minutes for November 09 2021 draft CH rk clean NB MR FG - FINAL
	MEMO-BOC-12142021 Financials - AUGUST 2021 -Corrections by JD - FINAL
	ATT-BOC-121421 Consolidated Budget to Actuals August 2021
	MEMO-BOC-12142021-AOP Collection Loss September 2021 FINAL
	ATT-12142021-AOP Collection Loss September 2021 FINAL



